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IMPORTANT NOTICES
Participants in the Solicitation

BiomX Ltd. (“BiomX”), Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp. (“CHAC”), and their respective directors, executive officers and employees and other persons may be
deemed to be participants in the solicitation of proxies from the holders of CHAC common stock in respect of the proposed transaction described herein. Information
about CHAC’s directors and executive officers and their ownership of CHAC’s common stock is set forth in CHAC’s Prospectus dated December 14, 2018 filed with
the SEC, as modified or supplemented by any Form 3 or Form 4 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) since the date of such filing. Other
information regarding the interests of the participants in the proxy solicitation will be included in the proxy statement pertaining to the proposed transaction when it
becomes available. These documents can be obtained free of charge from the sources indicated below.

Additional Information and Where To Find It

In connection with the transaction described herein, CHAC will file relevant materials with the SEC, including a proxy statement on Schedule 14A. Promptly after
filing its definitive proxy statement with the SEC, CHAC will mail the definitive proxy statement and a proxy card to each stockholder entitled to vote at the special
meeting relating to the transaction. INVESTORS AND SECURITY HOLDERS OF CHAC ARE URGED TO READ THESE MATERIALS (INCLUDING ANY
AMENDMENTS OR SUPPLEMENTS THERETO) AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTION THAT
CHAC WILL FILE WITH THE SEC WHEN THEY BECOME AVAILABLE BECAUSE THEY WILL CONTAIN IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT
CHAC, BIOMX AND THE TRANSACTION. The definitive proxy statement, the preliminary proxy statement and other relevant materials in connection with the
transaction (when they become available), and any other documents filed by CHAC with the SEC, may be obtained free of charge at the SEC’s website (www.sec.gov)
or by writing to Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp., 17 State Street, 21st Floor, New York, NY 10004.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Current Report on Form 8-K and the documents incorporated by reference herein (this “Current Report”) contain certain “forward-looking statements” within
the meaning of “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements can be identified by words such as:
“target,” “believe,” “expect,” “will,” “shall,” “may,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “would,” “positioned,” “future,” “forecast,” “intend,” “plan,” “project” and other
similar expressions that predict or indicate future events or trends or that are not statements of historical matters. Examples of forward-looking statements include,
among others, statements made in this Current Report regarding the proposed transactions contemplated by the merger agreement (the “Merger Agreement”)
among CHAC, CHAC Merger Sub Ltd. and BiomX (the “Merger”), including the anticipated initial enterprise value and post-closing equity value, the benefits of the
Merger, integration plans, expected synergies and revenue opportunities, anticipated future financial and operating performance and results, including estimates for
growth, the expected management and governance of the combined company, and the expected timing of the Merger. Forward-looking statements are neither
historical facts nor assurances of future performance. Instead, they are based only on CHAC and BiomX managements’ current beliefs, expectations and
assumptions. Because forward-looking statements relate to the future, they are subject to inherent uncertainties, risks and changes in circumstances that are difficult
to predict and many of which are outside of our control. Actual results and outcomes may differ materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements.
Therefore, you should not rely on any of these forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause actual results and outcomes to differ materially from
those indicated in the forward-looking statements include, among others, the following: (1) the occurrence of any event that could give rise to the termination of the
Merger Agreement; (2) the outcome of any legal proceedings that may be instituted against CHAC, the combined company, or others following the announcement of
the Merger and the Merger Agreement; (3) the inability to complete the Merger due to the failure to obtain approval of CHAC’s stockholders or to satisfy other
conditions to closing in the Merger Agreement; (4) changes to the proposed structure of the Merger that may be required or appropriate as a result of applicable
laws; (5) the ability to meet NYSE American listing standards following the consummation of the Merger; (6) the risk that the Merger disrupts current plans and
operations of BiomX as a result of the announcement and consummation of the Merger; (7) the ability to recognize the anticipated benefits of the Merger, which may
be affected by, among other things, competition, the ability of the combined company to grow and manage growth profitably, maintain relationships with third
parties and partners, obtain adequate supply of raw materials and retain its management and key employees; (8) costs related to the Merger; (9) changes in applicable
laws or regulations; (10) the possibility that BiomX or the combined company may be adversely affected by other economic, business, regulatory, and/or competitive
factors; (11) BiomX estimates of expenses; (12) the impact of foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates fluctuations on the results of BiomX or the combined
company; and (13) other risks and uncertainties indicated in the proxy statement of CHAC to be filed by CHAC with the SEC in connection with the Merger,
including those under “Risk Factors” therein, and other documents filed or to be filed from time to time with the SEC by CHAC.




A further list and description of risks and uncertainties can be found in CHAC’s Prospectus dated December 14, 2018 filed with the SEC and in the proxy statement
on Schedule 14A that will be filed with the SEC by CHAC in connection with the proposed transaction, and other documents that the parties may file or furnish with
the SEC, which you are encouraged to read. Any forward-looking statement made by us in this Current Report is based only on information currently available to
CHAC and BiomX and speaks only as of the date on which it is made. CHAC and BiomX undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement,
whether written or oral, that may be made from time to time, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise, except as required by law.

Item 1.01. Entry Into a Material Definitive Agreement

On July 16, 2019, Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp. (“CHAC”) entered into a merger agreement (the “Merger Agreement”) with CHAC Merger Sub Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CHAC (the “Merger Sub”), and BiomX Ltd. (“BiomX”), a leader in developing natural and engineered phage therapies that are designed to target and destroy
bacteria that affect the appearance of skin as well as harmful bacteria in chronic diseases.

Acquisition of BiomX; Acquisition Consideration

Upon the closing of the transactions contemplated in the Merger Agreement (the “Closing”), Merger Sub will merge (the “Merger”) with and into BiomX, resulting in BiomX
becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of CHAC.

As a result of the Merger, subject to reduction for indemnification claims as described below, an aggregate of 16,625,000 shares of CHAC common stock will be issued (or
reserved for issuance pursuant to currently exercisable options or warrants) in respect of shares of BiomX capital stock that are issued and outstanding as of immediately prior
to the effective time of the Merger and options and warrants to purchase shares of BiomX capital stock, in each case, that are issued, outstanding and vested as of immediately
prior to the effective time of the Merger. Additional shares of CHAC common stock will be reserved for issuance in respect of options to purchase shares of BiomX capital
stock that are issued, outstanding and unvested as of immediately prior to the effective time of the Merger.

The parties agreed that immediately following the Closing, CHAC’s board of directors will consist of no more than seven directors, two of which will be designated by Chardan
Investments, LLC and five of which will be designated by BiomX.

Stockholder Approval
Prior to the consummation of the Merger, the holders of a majority of CHAC’s common stock attending a stockholder’s meeting (at which there is a quorum) must approve the

transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement (the “Stockholder Approval”). In connection with obtaining the Stockholder Approval, CHAC must call a special meeting
of its common stockholders and must prepare and file with the SEC a Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, which will be mailed to all stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting.




Representations and Warranties

In the Merger Agreement, BiomX makes certain representations and warranties (with certain exceptions set forth in the disclosure schedule to the Merger Agreement) relating
to, among other things: (a) proper corporate organization of BiomX and its subsidiaries and similar corporate matters; (b) authorization, execution, delivery and enforceability
of the Merger Agreement and other transaction documents; (c) absence of conflicts; (d) capital structure; () accuracy of charter and governing documents; (f) affiliate
transactions; (g) required consents and approvals; (h) financial information; (i) absence of certain changes or events; (j) title to assets and properties; (k) material contracts; (1)
insurance; (m) licenses and permits; (n) compliance with laws, including those relating to foreign corrupt practices and money laundering; (o) ownership of intellectual property;
(p) employment and labor matters; (q) taxes and audits; (r) environmental matters; (s) brokers and finders; and (t) other customary representations and warranties.

In the Merger Agreement, CHAC makes certain representations and warranties relating to, among other things: (a) proper corporate organization and similar corporate matters;
(b) authorization, execution, delivery and enforceability of the Merger Agreement and other transaction documents; (c) brokers and finders; (d) capital structure; (e) validity of
share issuance; (f) minimum trust fund amount; (g) Nasdaq listing; and (h) SEC filing requirements.

Conduct Prior to Closing; Covenants
The Merger Agreement contains certain customary covenants of CHAC and BiomX, including, among other things, the following:

e BiomX has agreed to operate its business in the ordinary course prior to the closing of the Merger (with certain exceptions) and not to take certain specified actions
without the prior written consent of CHAC.

o CHAC has agreed to operate its business in the ordinary course prior to the closing of the Merger (with certain exceptions) and not to take certain specified actions
without the prior written consent of BiomX.

In addition, the parties agreed to take the following actions, among others, before the completion of the Merger:
e CHAC and BiomX shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to cause:

o the immediately available funds contained in CHAC’s trust account (net of any redemption amounts) available for release to CHAC immediately following the
closing of the Merger (but prior to the payment of any expenses of CHAC), plus the immediately available funds deposited by third party investors into an escrow
account established for the purposes of holding the cash proceeds paid by such third party investors to purchase shares of CHAC common stock from current CHAC
public stockholders to equal or exceed $30,000,000; and

o the immediately available funds deposited by certain BiomX shareholders into an escrow account established for the purposes of holding the cash proceeds paid by
such BiomX shareholders to purchase shares of CHAC common stock from current CHAC public stockholders, to equal or exceed $20,000,000.

e  Prior to the Closing, BiomX will amend its existing equity incentive plan (or adopt a new equity incentive plan having the same effect that will be assumed by CHAC as
of the Closing), to include: (a) an “evergreen” provision that will provide for an automatic increase on an annual basis in the number of shares available for issuance
under BiomX’s existing equity incentive plan (or such new equity incentive plan) equal to an amount as determined by the compensation committee, not to exceed on an
annual basis four percent (4%) of the total number of shares of CHAC common stock then-issued and outstanding; and (b) such other terms as are customary for a
company whose securities are traded on the NYSE American Stock Exchange or any similar exchange in the United States of America.




Conditions to Closing
General Conditions

The obligation of CHAC and BiomX to consummate the Merger is conditioned on, among other things, (a) the absence of any order, stay, judgment or decree by any
government agency restraining or prohibiting or imposing any condition on the closing of the Merger; (b) at least 50 days shall have elapsed after the filing of a merger proposal
with the Registrar of Companies of the State of Israel (the “Registrar of Companies”), and at least 30 days shall have elapsed after the approval of the Merger by the
shareholders of each of BiomX and Merger Sub, and the certificate of merger shall have been received from the Registrar of Companies; (c) all necessary governmental
approvals having been obtained; (d) the absence of any litigation brought by a governmental agency seeking to enjoin or otherwise restrict the consummation of the Merger; (e)
CHAC s initial listing application with the NYSE American in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement shall have been approved, immediately
following the Closing CHAC shall satisfy any applicable initial and continuing listing requirements of the NYSE American and CHAC shall not have received any notice of
non-compliance therewith, and the CHAC common stock shall have been approved for listing on the NYSE American, subject to completion of the Merger; and (f) each of
CHAC and BiomX shall have obtained the approval of its stockholders.

BiomX’s Conditions to Closing

The obligations of BiomX to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, in addition to the conditions described above, are conditioned upon, among
other things, each of the following:

e CHAC complying in all material respects with all of its obligations required to be performed pursuant to the covenants in the Merger Agreement.

o The Aggregate Investment Amount shall equal or exceed $50,000,000.

e The aggregate amount of indebtedness, expenses and other liabilities of CHAC that remain unpaid as of immediately prior to the Closing is less than $1,000,000.

e The daily volume weighted average price of a share of CHAC common Stock for the 10 trading days immediately preceding the Closing date shall equal at least $9.50.

o The immediately available funds deposited by certain BiomX shareholders into an escrow account established for the purposes of holding the cash proceeds paid by such
BiomX shareholders to purchase shares of CHAC common stock from current CHAC public stockholders, shall equal or exceed $20,000,000.




CHAC'’s Conditions to Closing

The obligations of CHAC to consummate the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, in addition to the conditions described above in the first paragraph of this
section, are conditioned upon, among other things, each of the following:

e  There shall have been no continuing event, change or occurrence which individually or together with any other event, change or occurrence, would reasonably be
expected to have a material adverse effect on BiomX.

e The immediately available funds deposited by certain BiomX shareholders into an escrow account established for the purposes of holding the cash proceeds paid by such
BiomX shareholders to purchase shares of CHAC common stock from current CHAC public stockholders, shall equal or exceed $20,000,000.

Indemnification

From and after the Closing, holders of shares of BiomX capital stock and vested warrants to purchase shares of BiomX capital stock (collectively, the “Escrow Participants™)
have agreed to indemnify and hold harmless CHAC against and in respect of specified actual and direct out-of-pocket losses incurred or sustained by CHAC as a result of: (a)
any breach or inaccuracy of any of the representations, warranties set forth in Article V of the Merger Agreement (as modified by the schedules of the Merger Agreement) or in
a specified certificate delivered by BiomX to CHAC at closing, in each case as of the Closing Date, and (b) any breach or nonfulfillment of any covenants of BiomX contained
in the Merger Agreement to be performed prior to the Closing Date.

Ten percent of the shares of CHAC common stock issuable to (or reserved for issuance for) the Escrow Participants at the Closing shall be deposited into a third party escrow
account (the “Escrow Shares”) to serve as CHAC’s sole and exclusive security for the Escrow Participant’s obligation to indemnify CHAC under the Merger Agreement.

Notwithstanding anything in the Merger Agreement to the contrary:

e CHAC’s sole and exclusive remedy for all indemnifiable losses under the Merger Agreement shall be the recovery of a number of shares of CHAC common stock from
the Escrow Shares having a value equal to the losses that have been finally determined to be owing to CHAC in accordance with the Merger Agreement (at an assumed
value equal to the greater of: (i) $10.00 per share; or (ii) the total amount payable to the stockholders of CHAC holding units or common stock of CHAC who shall have
validly redeemed such units or common stock upon acceptance by CHAC of such units or common stock (the “Escrow Share Value™)), in each case, subject to the
Indemnifiable Loss Limit (as defined below).

o  The maximum liability of the Escrow Participants under the Merger Agreement or otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement
shall in no event exceed an amount equal to: (i) the Escrow Share Value, multiplied by (ii) the Escrow Shares (the “Indemnifiable Loss Limit”).

o CHAC shall not be entitled to indemnification pursuant to Section 11.1 of the Merger Agreement unless and until the aggregate amount of losses to CHAC equals at least
$1,246,875 (the “Basket”), at which time, subject to the other limitations set forth in the Merger Agreement, CHAC shall be entitled to indemnification for any losses
above the Basket, less $124,687.50 per loss.

o The Escrow Participants shall have no liability or obligation to indemnify CHAC under the Merger Agreement with respect to the breach or inaccuracy of any
representation, warranty, covenant or agreement based on any matter, fact or circumstance known to CHAC or any of its representatives or disclosed in the information
set out in any schedule to the Merger Agreement.




Nothing in the Merger Agreement (i) limits the parties’ rights to seek injunctive relief or other equitable remedies, (ii) would prevent CHAC from bringing an action for
fraud (with scienter) against the Person who committed such fraud (with scienter) or (iv) limit the right of any person or entity to pursue remedies under any other
agreement entered into in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement against the parties thereto.

The indemnification to which CHAC is entitled from the Escrow Participants pursuant to Section 11.1 of the Merger Agreement for losses shall be effective so long as it is
asserted prior to the expiration of the six (6) month anniversary of the Closing date (the “Survival Period”); provided, that in the event that any indemnification notice shall have
been given by CHAC in accordance with the provisions of the Merger Agreement (each, an “Indemnification Notice™) prior to the expiration of the Survival Period and such
claim has not been finally resolved by the expiration of the Survival Period, the representations, warranties, covenants, agreements or obligations that are the subject of such
Indemnification Notice shall survive solely for purposes of resolving such claim until such matters are finally resolved.

Termination

The Merger Agreement may be terminated and/or abandoned at any time prior to the closing by:

the mutual written agreement of BiomX and CHAC;

CHAC or BiomX, in the event a governmental authority shall have issued an order, having the effect of permanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the
Merger, which order is final and non-appealable.

CHAC, if the closing has not occurred on or prior to October 31, 2019 (the “Outside Closing Date”); provided, that if the SEC has not declared CHAC’s proxy statement
effective on or prior to September 30, 2019, the Outside Closing Date shall be automatically extended to November 30, 2019; provided, further, that CHAC is not in
material breach of any of its obligations under the Merger Agreement; or

BiomX, if the closing has not occurred on or prior to the Outside Closing Date; provided, further, that BiomX is not in material breach of any of its obligations under the
Merger Agreement.

CHAG, if: (i) BiomX shall have breached any representation, warranty, agreement or covenant contained in the Merger Agreement to be performed on or prior to the
Closing Date, which has rendered the satisfaction of any of the conditions set forth in Section 10.2 of the Merger Agreement impossible; and (ii) such breach shall not be
cured by the earlier of the Outside Closing Date and thirty (30) days following receipt by BiomX of a written notice from CHAC describing in reasonable detail the
nature of such breach.

BiomX, if: (i) CHAC shall have breached any of its covenants, agreements, representations, and warranties contained herein to be performed on or prior to the Closing
Date, which has rendered the satisfaction of any of the conditions set forth in Section 10.3 of the Merger Agreement impossible; and (ii) such breach shall not be cured
by the earlier of the Outside Closing Date and thirty (30) days following receipt by CHAC of a written notice from BiomX describing in reasonable detail the nature of
such breach.




The foregoing summary of the Merger Agreement does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the actual Merger Agreement, which is filed as
Exhibit 2.1 hereto, and which is incorporated by reference in this report. Terms used herein as defined terms and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed
to them in the Merger Agreement.

Additional Agreements

In addition to the Merger Agreement:

L.

Chardan Investments, LLC, CHAC’s initial public offering sponsor, entered into an agreement with BiomX pursuant to which if the Aggregate Investment Amount, is
less than $70,000,000, Chardan Investments LLC, has agreed to forfeit a number of whole shares of CHAC common stock equal to: (a) 500,000 shares of CHAC
common stock; multiplied by (b) the quotient of: (i) the absolute value of the difference between $70,000,000 minus the Aggregate Investment Amount; divided by (ii)
$20,000,000, rounded to the nearest whole share; provided, however, that in no event will Chardan Investments LLC be required to forfeit more than 500,000 shares of
CHAC common stock.

Chardan Securities, LLC entered into an agreement with BiomX pursuant to which it agreed to purchase up to $2.5 million of shares of CHAC’s common stock (either
directly from CHAC (at a price of $10.00 per share) or from public stockholders (at prices no greater than the redemption amount per share) at the Closing in the event
that the Aggregate Investment Amount would be less than $50 million but greater than $47,499,999.

CHAC entered into voting agreements with holders of 1,000,000 shares of its common stock pursuant to which such stockholders agreed to vote in favor of the
transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement and to not redeem or sell such shares.

CHAC and certain current CHAC public shareholders entered into agreements with certain of BiomX’s current shareholders pursuant to which such BiomX shareholders
agreed to purchase an aggregate of 1,879,075 shares of CHAC’s common stock at Closing from such CHAC public stockholders at a price of $10.00 per share. In
addition, CHAC agreed to pay such selling CHAC public shareholders an amount equal to the difference between the redemption price per share at the Closing minus
$10.00 per share. The selling CHAC public shareholders agreed to vote in favor of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement and not to redeem or sell to
third parties such shares of CHAC common stock. In addition, CHAC also agreed to issue such BiomX shareholders the following number of additional shares in the
aggregate subject to the achievement of the conditions specified below:

a. Following the Closing, if the daily volume weighted average price of a share of CHAC common stock in any 20 trading days within a 30 trading day period prior to
January 1, 2022 is greater than or equal to $16.50 per share, then CHAC shall issue 2,000,000 shares of CHAC common stock.

b. Following the Closing, if the daily volume weighted average price of a share of CHAC common stock in any 20 trading days within a 30 trading day period prior to

January 1, 2024 is greater than or equal to $22.75 per share, then CHAC shall issue 2,000,000 shares of CHAC common stock.

c. Following the Closing, if the daily volume weighted average price of a share of CHAC common stock in any 20 trading days within a 30 trading day period prior to
January 1, 2026 is greater than or equal to $29.00 per share, then CHAC shall issue 2,000,000 shares of CHAC common stock.




5. CHAC entered into a letter agreement with certain BiomX shareholders to sell additional CHAC Shares to them in the event that certain events occur.

6. CHAC entered into agreements with investors that agreed to purchase up to 810,000 of shares of CHAC common stock at CHAC’s request and not to redeem such shares
of CHAC common stock in connection with the Closing.

7.  Certain third parties entered into agreements to purchase 1,234,908 shares of CHAC’s common stock from certain of its current public stockholders at the Closing. The
selling CHAC public stockholders agreed to vote in favor of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement and not to redeem or sell to third parties such shares

of CHAC common stock.

8. BiomX shareholders owning 86% of the voting power in BiomX entered into support agreements with CHAC pursuant to which such shareholders agreed to vote in
favor of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement at each meeting of the shareholders of BiomX.

Except as described above, no consideration was paid by CHAC in connection with the agreements described above.
Item 3.02 Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

The disclosure set forth above in Item 1.01 of this Current Report on Form 8-K is incorporated by reference herein. The securities of CHAC to be issued in connection with the
Merger and additional agreements will not be registered under the Securities Act in reliance upon the exemption provided in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.

Item 7.01 Regulation FD Disclosure

Attached as Exhibit 99.1 to this Current Report on Form 8-K and incorporated into this Item 7.01 by reference is a copy of the press release issued July 16, 2019 announcing the
proposed transaction.

Attached as Exhibit 99.2 to this Current Report on Form 8-K and incorporated into this Item 7.01 by reference is the investor presentation dated July 2019 that will be used by
CHAC in making presentations to certain existing and potential stockholders of CHAC with respect to the proposed transaction.

Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2 are being furnished pursuant to Item 7.01 and shall not be deemed to be filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act or otherwise be subject to
the liabilities of that section, nor shall it be deemed to be incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act.

Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits

(d) Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Description

2.1% Merger Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2019, by and among Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp., CHAC Merger Sub Ltd. and BiomX Ltd.
99.1** Press Release dated July 16,2019

99.2%* Investor Presentation dated July 2019

*  Schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The registrant hereby undertakes to furnish copies of any of the omitted schedules
and exhibits upon request by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
**  Furnished but not filed.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly
authorized.

Dated: July 17,2019
CHARDAN HEALTHCARE ACQUISITION CORP.
By: /s/ Jonas Grossman

Name: Jonas Grossman
Title:  President and Chief Executive Officer
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MERGER AGREEMENT
dated
July 16, 2019
by and among
BiomX Ltd., an Israeli company (the ‘Company”),

Shareholder Representative Services LLC, as the Shareholders’ Representative (the ‘Shareholders’ Representative”),

Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (the ‘Purchaser”),
and

CHAC Merger Sub Ltd., an Israeli company (‘Merger Sub”)
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MERGER AGREEMENT

This MERGER AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of July 16, 2019 (the ‘Signing Date™), by and among BiomX Ltd., an Israeli company (the
“Company”), Shareholder Representative Services LLC, a Colorado limited liability company, solely in its capacity as the representative, agent and attorney-in-fact of the
Company Securityholders (the “Shareholders’ Representative”), Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Purchaser”) and CHAC Merger Sub Ltd.,
an Israeli company (“Merger Sub”).

WITNESETH:

A. The Company and/or its Subsidiaries (the “Company Group”) are in the business of developing customized phage therapies that target harmful bacteria in
chronic diseases (which, together with all other businesses and activities conducted by the Company Group, is hereinafter referred to as the “Business”);

B. The Purchaser is a blank check company formed for the sole purpose of entering into a share exchange, asset acquisition, share purchase, recapitalization,
reorganization or other similar business combination with one or more businesses or entities and Merger Sub is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Purchaser;

C. The Company Securityholders are listed on Schedule 1.14 hereto and own 100% of the issued and outstanding Company Securities; and

D. WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the execution of, and as a condition and an inducement to Purchaser and the Company to enter into, this Agreement, each
holder of Company Securities set forth on Schedule 1 are entering into and delivering Support Agreements, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit

A (each, a “Support Agreement”).

E. WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the execution of, and as a condition and an inducement to Purchaser and the Company to enter into, this Agreement,
Chardan Investments LLC, Purchaser and the Company have executed and delivered a Backstop Agreement, substantially in the form attached hereto as

Exhibit B (the “Backstop Agreement”).

F. Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company (the ‘Merger”), after which the Company will be the surviving company (the ‘Surviving Corporation”) and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Purchaser.




The parties accordingly agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

The following terms, as used herein, have the following meanings:

1.1 “102 Company Options” means Equity Awards granted and subject to Taxes pursuant to Section 102(b)(2) of the Ordinance.

1.2 “102 Company Securities” means 102 Company Options and 102 Company Shares, collectively.

1.3 “102 Company Shares” means Ordinary Shares issued upon vesting of or exercise of or otherwise in connection to 102 Company Options.

1.4 102 Trustee” means Altshuler Shaham Trusts Ltd. which serves as the trustee of the Equity Incentive Plan and the awards granted thereunder pursuant to Section
102(b)(2) of the Ordinance.

1.5 “3(i) Company Option” means Equity Awards granted and subject to tax pursuant to Section 3(i) of the Ordinance.

1.6 “Action” means any legal action, suit, claim, hearing or proceeding, including any audit, claim or assessment for Taxes or otherwise, by or before any Authority.

1.7 “Additional Agreements” mean the Voting Agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Voting Agreement ), the Registration Rights
Agreement, Escrow Agreement, the Support Agreements, the Backstop Agreement, and the engagement letter entered into by the Shareholders’ Representative, the Company,
and certain of the Company Securityholders.

1.8 “Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person directly or indirectly Controlling, Controlled by, or under common Control with such Person.

1.9 “Aggregate Investment Amount” means the aggregate amount of immediately available funds contained in the Trust Account (net of any Purchaser Redemption
Amount) immediately prior to the Closing (but prior to the payment of any expenses of Purchaser), plus the immediately available funds contained in the New Investment

Escrow Account available for release to Purchaser immediately following the Closing, if any.

1.10 “Authority” means any governmental, regulatory or administrative body, agency or authority, any court or judicial authority, any arbitrator, or any public, private
or industry regulatory authority, whether international, national, foreign, Federal, state, or local.

1.11 “Books and Records” means all books and records, ledgers, employee records, customer lists, files, correspondence, and other records of every kind (whether
written, electronic, or otherwise embodied) owned or controlled by a Person in which a Person’s assets, the business or its transactions are otherwise reflected, other than stock
books and minute books.

1.12 “Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday on which commercial banking institutions in New York, New York are
authorized to close for business.

1.13 “Closing” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.6.




1.14 “Closing Consideration Conversion Ratio” shall mean a number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (a) the Closing
Payment Shares; by (b) the Fully Diluted Vested Shares, in each case, as listed on Schedule 1.14.

1.15 “Closing Payment Shares” means an aggregate of 16,625,000 shares of Purchaser Common Stock, which includes the Escrow Shares.
1.16 “COBRA” means collectively, the requirements of Sections 601 through 606 of ERISA and Section 4980B of the Code.

1.17 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

1.18 “Company Capital Stock” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.5.

1.19 “Company Securities” means the Ordinary Shares, Ordinary A Shares, Preferred A Shares, Preferred A-1 Shares, Preferred A-2 Shares, Preferred A-3 Shares,
Preferred A-4 Shares, Preferred B Shares, Equity Awards, Ordinary Warrants and Preferred A-1 Warrants.

1.20 “Company Securityholder” means each Person who holds Company Securities immediately prior to the Effective Time and listed on Schedule 1.14 hereto.

1.21 “Company Securityholder Purchase Agreements” means those certain BiomX Stakeholder Stock Purchase Agreements, substantially in the form attached hereto
as Exhibit D, to be entered into among Purchaser, the Company and Persons who hold Company Securities as of the date hereof together with their Affiliates, pursuant to which

such Person’ (or their Affiliates) shall purchase shares of Purchaser Common Stock from Persons who hold shares of Purchaser Common Stock as of the date of this
Agreement.

1.22 “Contracts” means the Leases and all other contracts, agreements, leases (including equipment leases, car leases and capital leases), licenses, Permits,
commitments, client contracts, statements of work (SOWs), sales and purchase orders and similar instruments, oral or written, to which any member of the Company Group is a
party or by which any of its respective assets are bound.

1.23 “Control” of a Person means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such Person,
whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, or otherwise. “Controlled”, “Controlling” and “under common Control with” have correlative meanings.
Without limiting the foregoing, a Person (the “Controlled Person”) shall be deemed Controlled by (a) any other Person (the ‘10% Owner”) (i) owning beneficially, as meant in
Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, securities entitling such Person to cast 10% or more of the votes for election of directors or equivalent governing authority of the
Controlled Person or (ii) entitled to be allocated or receive 10% or more of the profits, losses, or distributions of the Controlled Person; (b) an officer, director, general partner,
partner (other than a limited partner), manager, or member (other than a member having no management authority that is not a 10% Owner) of the Controlled Person; or (c) a
spouse, parent, lineal descendant, sibling, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law, or brother-in-law of an Affiliate of the Controlled Person or a
trust for the benefit of an Affiliate of the Controlled Person or of which an Affiliate of the Controlled Person is a trustee.




1.24 “Environmental Laws” shall mean all Laws that prohibit, regulate or control any Hazardous Material or any Hazardous Material Activity, including, the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, the Resource Recovery and Conservation Act of 1976, the Federal Water Pollution Control
Act, the Clean Air Act, the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act and the Clean Water Act.

1.25 “Equity Award” means the options (“Company Options”) and restricted stock units outstanding under the Equity Incentive Plan.
1.26 “Equity Incentive Plan” means the Company’s 2015 Employee Stock Option Plan.
1.27 “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, and the regulations thereunder.

1.28 “Escrow Agent” means Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company.

1.29 “Escrow Agreement” means an agreement in substantially the form attached hereto asExhibit E, between the Shareholders’ Representative, the Escrow Agent
and the Purchaser with respect to the Escrow Shares to reflect the terms set forth in Section 11.3.

1.30 “Escrow Participant” means each Person who holds Ordinary Shares, Ordinary A Shares, Preferred A Shares, Preferred A-1 Shares, Preferred A-2 Shares,
Preferred A-3 Shares, Preferred A-4 Shares, Preferred B Shares, Equity Awards, Ordinary Warrants or Preferred A-1 Warrants, in each case, that are vested as of immediately
prior to the Effective Time.

1.31 “Escrow Participant Company Securities” means the sum, without duplication, of: (a) the sum of the aggregate number of Ordinary Shares plus the aggregate
number of Ordinary A Shares, in each case, that are issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time; plus (b) the aggregate number of Ordinary Shares and
Ordinary A Shares issuable upon conversion of all Preferred A Shares, Preferred A-1 Shares, Preferred A-2 Shares, Preferred A-3 Shares, Preferred A-4 Shares and Preferred B
Shares, in each case, that are issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time; plus (iii) the aggregate number of Ordinary Shares and Ordinary A Shares issuable
upon exercise or conversion of all Ordinary Warrants and Preferred A-1 Warrants, in each case, that are vested as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

1.32 “Escrow Pro Rata Portion” shall mean, with respect to each Escrow Participant, an amount equal to the quotient (expressed as a percentage) obtained by dividing:
(a) the number of shares of vested Company Capital Stock held by such Escrow Participant as of immediately prior to the Effective Time (on an as converted to Ordinary Share
or Ordinary A Share basis assuming the exercise or conversion of all Escrow Participant Company Securities held by such Escrow Participant); by (b) the total number of vested
shares of Company Capital Stock held by all Escrow Participants as of immediately prior to the Effective Time (on an as converted to Ordinary Share or Ordinary A Share basis
assuming the exercise or conversion of all Escrow Participant Company Securities held by such Escrow Participant).

1.33 “Escrow Shares” means a number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock equal to: (a) ten percent (10%); multiplied by (b) the number shares of Purchaser
Common Stock otherwise issuable to Company Securityholders pursuant Section 4.1(a) plus the number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock issuable upon conversion of
each Ordinary Warrant and Preferred A-1 Warrant held by an Escrow Participant and assumed by Purchaser as of the Effective Time in accordance with Section 4.1(c) and that
are vested as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.




1.34 “Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

1.35 “Fully Diluted Vested Shares” means the sum as set forth on Schedule 1.14, without duplication, of: (a) the sum of the aggregate number of Ordinary Shares plus
the aggregate number of Ordinary A Shares, in each case, that are issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time; plus (b) the aggregate number of Ordinary
Shares and Ordinary A Shares issuable upon conversion of all Preferred A Shares, Preferred A-1 Shares, Preferred A-2 Shares, Preferred A-3 Shares, Preferred A-4 Shares and
Preferred B Shares, in each case, that are issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time; plus (iii) the aggregate number of Ordinary Shares and Ordinary A
Shares issuable upon exercise or conversion of all Equity Awards, Ordinary Warrants and Preferred A-1 Warrants, in each case, that are vested as of immediately prior to the
Effective Time.

1.36 “Hazardous Material” shall mean any material, emission, chemical, substance or waste that has been designated by any Authority to be radioactive, toxic,
hazardous, a pollutant or a contaminant.

1.37 “Hazardous Material Activity” shall mean the transportation, transfer, recycling, storage, use, treatment, manufacture, removal, remediation, release, exposure of
others to, sale, labeling, or distribution of any Hazardous Material or any product or waste containing a Hazardous Material, or product manufactured with ozone depleting
substances, including, any required labeling, payment of waste fees or charges (including so-called e-waste fees) and compliance with any recycling, product take-back or
product content requirements.

1.38 “IPO” means the initial public offering of Purchaser pursuant to a prospectus dated December 18, 2018.

1.39 “Indebtedness” means with respect to any Person, (a) all obligations of such Person for borrowed money, or with respect to deposits or advances of any kind
(including amounts by reason of overdrafts and amounts owed by reason of letter of credit reimbursement agreements), including with respect thereto, all interests, fees and
costs, (b) all obligations of such Person evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or similar instruments, (c) all obligations of such Person under conditional sale or other title
retention agreements relating to property purchased by such Person, (d) all obligations of such Person issued or assumed as the deferred purchase price of property or services
(other than accounts payable to creditors for goods and services incurred in the ordinary course of business), (¢) all Indebtedness of others secured by (or for which the holder of
such Indebtedness has an existing right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured by) any lien or security interest on property owned or acquired by such Person, whether or not the
obligations secured thereby have been assumed, (f) all obligations of such Person under leases required to be accounted for as capital leases under U.S. GAAP, (g) all
guarantees by such Person, (h) all liability of such Person with respect to any hedging obligations, including interest rate or currency exchange swaps, collars, caps or similar
hedging obligations, and (i) any agreement to incur any of the same. For informational purposes, Indebtedness shall include any grants or loans that are not carried as tangible
liabilities on the Financial Statements on a stand-alone basis (whether or not such liabilities are included in the footnotes to the Financial Statements), including the Company’s
obligations under the Contracts set forth on Schedule 5.11(c).




1.40 “Intellectual Property Right” means any trademark, service mark, registration thereof or application for registration therefor, trade name, license, invention,
patent, patent application, trade secret, trade dress, know-how, copyright, copyrightable materials, copyright registration, application for copyright registration, software
programs, data bases, u.r.l.s., and any other type of proprietary intellectual property right, and all embodiments and fixations thereof and related documentation and registrations
and all additions, improvements and accessions thereto, and with respect to each of the forgoing items in this definition, which is owned or licensed or filed by any member of
the Company Group, or used or held for use in the Business, whether registered or unregistered or domestic or foreign.

1.41 “Inventory” is defined in the UCC.

1.42 “ITA” means the Israel Tax Authority.

1.43 “Law” means any domestic or foreign, federal, state, municipality or local law, statute, ordinance, code, rule, or regulation.

1.44 “Leases” means the leases set forth on Schedule 1.44 attached hereto, together with all fixtures and improvements erected on the premises leased thereby.

1.45 “Lien” means, with respect to any property or asset, any mortgage, lien, pledge, charge, security interest or encumbrance of any kind in respect of such property or
asset, and any conditional sale or voting agreement or proxy, including any agreement to give any of the foregoing.

1.46 “Material Adverse Effect” or “Material Adverse Change” means a material adverse change or a material adverse effect upon the assets, liabilities, financial
condition, net worth, management, earnings, cash flows, business, operations or properties of the Company Group and the Business, taken as a whole, provided, however, that
“Material Adverse Effect” or “Material Adverse Change” shall not include any event, occurrence, fact, condition or change, directly or indirectly, arising out of or attributable
to: (i) general economic or political conditions; (ii) conditions generally affecting the industries in which the Company operates; (iii) any changes in financial, banking or
securities markets in general, including any disruption thereof and any decline in the price of any security or any market index or any change in prevailing interest rates; (iv) acts
of war (whether or not declared), armed hostilities or terrorism, or the escalation or worsening thereof; (v) any action required or permitted by this Agreement or any action
taken (or omitted to be taken) with the written consent of or at the written request of Purchaser; (vi) any changes in applicable Laws or accounting rules (including U.S. GAAP)
or the enforcement, implementation or interpretation thereof; (vii) the announcement, pendency or completion of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (provided,
that the exception in this subclause (vii) shall not apply to any representation or warranty contained in Sections 5.3, 5.4 or 5.10 or to the determination of whether any
inaccuracy in such representations or warranties would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect for purposes of Sections 10.2(b)); (viii) any natural or man-
made disaster or acts of God; or (ix) any failure by the Company to meet any internal or published projections, forecasts or revenue or earnings predictions (provided that the
underlying causes of such failures (subject to the other provisions of this definition) shall not be excluded); except, in the case of subclauses (i), (ii), (iv), (vi) and (viii), to the
extent such change, event, circumstance or effect has a disproportionate adverse effect on such entity as compared to other Persons engaged in the same industry.




1.47 “New Investment Escrow Account” means the Escrow Account (as defined in Section 1.03 of the Company Securityholder Purchase Agreements and the Third
Party Purchase Agreements).

1.48 “Order” means any decree, order, judgment, writ, award, injunction, rule or consent of or by an Authority.

1.49 “Ordinance” shall mean the Israeli Income Tax Ordinance (New Version), 1961, as amended, and all rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, as may be
amended from time to time.

1.50 “Ordinary Shares” means the Company’s ordinary shares, par value NIS 0.01 each.
1.51 “Ordinary A Shares” means the Company’s Ordinary A Shares, par value NIS 0.01 each.
1.52 “Ordinary Warrant” means a warrant to purchase Ordinary Shares.

1.53 “Permitted Liens” means (i) all defects, exceptions, restrictions, easements, rights of way and encumbrances disclosed in policies of title insurance which have
been made available to Purchaser; (ii) mechanics’, carriers’, workers’, repairers’ and similar statutory Liens arising or incurred in the ordinary course of business for amounts
(A) that are not delinquent, (B) that are not material to the business, operations and financial condition of the Company so encumbered, either individually or in the aggregate,
and (C) not resulting from a breach, default or violation by the Company Group of any Contract or Law; (iii) liens for Taxes not yet due and payable or which are being
contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings (and for which adequate accruals or reserves have been established on the Financial Statements), and (iv) the Liens set forth
on Schedule 1.53.

1.54 “Person” means an individual, corporation, partnership (including a general partnership, limited partnership or limited liability partnership), limited liability
company, association, trust or other entity or organization, including a government, domestic or foreign, or political subdivision thereof, or an agency or instrumentality thereof.

1.55 “Preferred A Shares” means the Company’s Preferred A Shares par value NIS 0.01 each.
1.56 “Preferred A-1 Shares” means the Company’s Preferred A-1 Shares, par value NIS 0.01 each.

1.57 “Preferred A-1 Warrant” means a warrant to purchase Preferred A-1 Shares.




1.58 “Preferred A-2 Shares” means the Company’s Preferred A-2 Shares, par value NIS 0.01 each.
1.59 “Preferred A-3 Shares” means the Company’s Preferred A-3 Shares, par value NIS 0.01 each.
1.60 “Preferred A-4 Shares” means the Company’s Preferred A-4 Shares, par value NIS 0.01 each.
1.61 “Preferred B Shares” means the Company’s Preferred B Shares, par value NIS 0.01 each,
1.62 “Purchaser Common Stock” means the common stock of Purchaser.

1.63 “Purchaser Private Warrant” means each warrant issued in private placements at the time of consummation of the IPO, entitling the holder thereof to purchase one
share of Purchaser Common Stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per share.

1.64 “Purchaser Public Warrants” means one whole warrant that was included in as part of each Purchaser Unit, entitling the holder thereof to purchase one share of
Purchaser Common Stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per share.

1.65 “Purchaser Warrant” shall mean each Purchaser Private Warrant and Purchaser Public Warrant.

1.66 “Purchaser Unit” means a unit of the Purchaser comprised of (a) one share of Purchaser Common Stock and (b) one-half of one warrant to purchase one share of
Purchaser Common Stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per share.

1.67 “Real Property” means, collectively, all real properties and interests therein (including the right to use), together with all buildings, fixtures, trade fixtures, plant
and other improvements located thereon or attached thereto; all rights arising out of use thereof (including air, water, oil and mineral rights); and all subleases, franchises,
licenses, permits, easements and rights-of-way which are appurtenant thereto.

1.68 “Registration Rights Agreement” means the agreement, in substantially the form attached hereto asExhibit F, governing the resale of (a) all shares of Purchaser
Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Agreement, (b) any shares of Purchaser Common Stock acquired by the Company Securityholder pursuant to the Company
Securityholder Purchase Agreements or otherwise in connection with the Merger and (c) all other securities of the Purchaser (including derivatives thereof, such as options and
warrants) held at any time by the Purchaser’s officers, directors, nominees, and direct and indirect parents, control persons, affiliates and associates.

1.69 “Sarbanes-Oxley Act” means the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended.

1.70 “SEC” means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

1.71 “Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.




1.72 “Shareholder” means each Person who holds shares of Company Capital Stock immediately prior to the Effective Time.

1.73 “Subsidiary” means each entity of which at least fifty percent (50%) of the capital stock or other equity or voting securities are Controlled or owned, directly or
indirectly, by the Company, which for the avoidance of doubt shall include any variable interest entity through which all or a portion of the Business is conducted.

1.74 “Tangible Personal Property” means all tangible personal property and interests therein, including machinery, computers and accessories, furniture, office
equipment, communications equipment, automobiles, laboratory equipment and other equipment owned or leased by the Company Group and other tangible property, including
the items listed on Schedule 5.14(a).

1.75 “Tax(es)” means any federal, state, local or foreign tax, charge, fee, levy, custom, duty, deficiency, or other assessment of any kind or nature imposed by any
Taxing Authority (including any income (net or gross), gross receipts, profits, windfall profit, sales, use, goods and services, ad valorem, franchise, license, withholding,
employment, social security, workers compensation, unemployment compensation, employment, payroll, transfer, excise, import, real property, personal property, intangible
property, occupancy, recording, minimum, alternative minimum, environmental), together with any interest, penalty, additions to tax or additional amount imposed with respect
thereto.

1.76 “Taxing Authority ” means the Internal Revenue Service and any other Authority responsible for the collection, assessment or imposition of any Tax or the
administration of any Law relating to any Tax.

1.77 “Tax Return” means any return, information return, declaration, claim for refund or credit, report or any similar statement, and any amendment thereto, including
any attached schedule and supporting information, whether on a separate, consolidated, combined, unitary or other basis, that is filed or required to be filed with any Taxing
Authority in connection with the determination, assessment, collection or payment of a Tax or the administration of any Law relating to any Tax.

1.78 “Third Party Purchase Agreements” means those certain Stock Purchase Agreements, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G-1 and Exhibit G-2, to
be entered into among Purchaser, the Company and third parties, pursuant to which such third parties shall purchase shares of Purchaser Common Stock from Persons who hold
shares of Purchaser Common Stock as of the date of this Agreement.

1.79 “UCC” means the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of New York, or any corresponding or succeeding provisions of Laws of the State of New York, or any
corresponding or succeeding provisions of Laws, in each case as the same may have been and hereafter may be adopted, supplemented, modified, amended, restated or replaced

from time to time.

1.80 “U.S. GAAP” means U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied.




1.81 “Valid Tax Certificate” means a valid certificate, ruling or any other written instructions regarding Tax withholding (including with respect to the transfer at the
Closing of the applicable Purchaser securities to a paying agent or a trustee), issued by the ITA in customary form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Purchaser (which, for
the avoidance of doubt, includes Purchaser’s reasonable opportunity to review and comment on any application to the ITA submitted by a holder of convertible securities or by
a Company founder who is an individual holding shares, if applicable), that is applicable to the payments to be made pursuant to this Agreement stating that no withholding of
Israeli Tax is required with respect to such payment or providing any other instructions regarding Tax withholding (including the Israeli Tax Ruling).

ARTICLE 11
MERGER

2.1 Merger. At the Effective Time (as defined in Section 2.2), and subject to and upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and in accordance with Sections 314
through 327 of the Israeli Companies Law - 5759-1999 (the “Companies Law”), Merger Sub shall be merged with and into the Company, the separate corporate existence of
Merger Sub (as the target company, or Chevrat Ha 'Ya'ad) shall cease and the Company (as the absorbing company, or HaChevra Ha ’Koletet) shall continue as the Surviving
Corporation. As a result of the Merger, the Company shall (a) become a wholly owned subsidiary of Purchaser, (b) continue to be governed by the Laws of the State of Israel,
(c) have a registered office in the State of Israel, and (d) succeed to and assume all of the rights, properties and obligations of Merger Sub in accordance with the Companies
Law, and the existing shareholders of the Company shall be entitled to the consideration in accordance with the provisions of ARTICLE IV.

2.2 Merger Effective Date. The parties hereto shall, in coordination with each other, inform the Registrar of Companies of the State of Israel (the Registrar of
Companies”) that all conditions to the Merger under the Companies Law and this Agreement have been met (together with any other documentation required to be submitted to
the Registrar of Companies, whether under this Agreement or the Merger Proposal (the “ Articles of Merger”), by the Registrar of Companies or otherwise) and setting forth the
proposed date for the date of effectiveness of the Merger on which the Registrar of Companies is requested to issue a certificate evidencing the Merger in accordance with
Section 323(5) of the Companies Law (the “Certificate of Merger”). The Merger shall become effective upon the date set forth in the Certificate of Merger in accordance with
Section 323(5) of the Companies Law (the time at which the Merger becomes effective is referred to herein as the “Effective Time”). For the avoidance of doubt, the parties
intend that the Merger shall be declared effective and that the issuance by the Registrar of Companies of the Certificate of Merger in accordance with Section 323(5) of the
Companies Law shall both occur on, or as soon as practically possible before, the Closing Date (as defined below).

2.3 Effect of the Merger. At the Effective Time, the effect of the Merger shall be as provided in this Agreement, the Articles of Merger and the applicable provisions of
the Companies Law. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, and subject thereto, at the Effective Time, all the property, rights, privileges, agreements, powers and
franchises, debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Company and Merger Sub shall become the property, rights, privileges, agreements, powers and franchises, debts,
liabilities, duties and obligations of the Surviving Corporation, which shall include the assumption by the Surviving Corporation of any and all agreements, covenants, duties
and obligations of the Company and the Merger Sub set forth in this Agreement to be performed after the Closing. Merger Sub will be merged with and into the Company, and
the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease, and the Surviving Corporation will become wholly owned directly by the Purchaser, all as provided under the
Companies Law and the provisions of this Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, the Purchaser Warrants shall survive the Merger and remain in effect without any change to
their existing terms.




2.4 U.S. Tax Treatment. For U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Merger is intended to constitute a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368 of the Code.
The parties hereto adopt this Agreement as a “plan of reorganization” within the meaning of Section 1.368-2(g) and 1.368-3(a) of the United States Treasury Regulations.

2.5 Atticles of Association. At the Effective Time, the articles of association of Merger Sub, as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall cease to have
effect and the articles of association of the Company (as amended, the “Charter Documents”), as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall be the Charter
Documents of the Surviving Corporation, except that reference to the name of Merger Sub shall be replaced by reference to the name of the Surviving Corporation.

2.6 Closing; Effective Time. Unless this Agreement is earlier terminated in accordance with Article XIII, the closing of the Merger (the ‘Closing”) shall take place at
the offices of Loeb & Loeb LLP, 345 Park Avenue, New York, New York, at 10:00 a.m. local time, on the second (2 "d) Business Day after the satisfaction or waiver (to the
extent permitted by applicable law) of the conditions set forth in Article X or at such other time, date and location as the Purchaser and Company agree in writing. The parties
may participate in the Closing via electronic means. The date on which the Closing actually occurs is hereinafter referred to as the “Closing Date”.

2.7 Board of Directors of Purchaser. Immediately after the Closing, the Purchaser’s board of directors will consist of seven (7) directors. Chardan Investments, LLC
shall have the right to designate two (2) directors to serve for two (2) years from the Closing and the Company shall designate five (5) directors (the “Shareholder Designees”).

2.8 Taking of Necessary Action; Further Action. If, at any time after the Closing, any further action is necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes of this
Agreement and to vest the Surviving Corporation with full right, title and interest in, to and under, and/or possession of, all assets, property, rights, privileges, powers and
franchises of the Company and the Merger Sub, the officers and directors of the Surviving Corporation are fully authorized in the name and on behalf of the Company and the
Merger Sub, to take all lawful action necessary or desirable to accomplish such purpose or acts, so long as such action is not inconsistent with this Agreement.
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2.9 No Further Ownership Rights in Company Capital Stock. At the Effective Time, the register of members of the Company shall be closed and thereafter there shall
be no further registration of transfers of Ordinary Shares of the Company or other securities of the Company on the records of the Company. From and after the Effective Time,
the holders of certificates evidencing ownership of Ordinary Shares of the Company outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall cease to have any rights with
respect to such Ordinary Shares of the Company, except as otherwise provided for herein or by Law.

ARTICLE III
[INTENTIONALLY OMITTED]

ARTICLE 1V
CONSIDERATION

4.1 Conversion of Company Securities.

(a) Conversion of Company Securities. At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of Purchaser, Merger Sub, the
Company or the Shareholders and subject to the receipt of a Valid Tax Certificate covering the entire consideration payable and issuable under this Agreement, each share of
Company Capital Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be canceled and automatically converted into the right to receive, without interest
a number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock equal to the Closing Consideration Conversion Ratio as set forth on Schedule 1.14, in each case, subject to Section 4.1(j) and
Section 11.3.

(b) Treatment of Equity Awards. Prior to the Effective Time, the board of directors of the Company and Purchaser, (or if appropriate, any duly authorized
committee thereof) shall, as applicable, take all corporate actions necessary, including adopting appropriate resolutions and obtaining consents of option-holders if required, to
provide that, as of the Effective Time and subject to the receipt of a Valid Tax Certificate covering the entire consideration payable and issuable under this Agreement , each
outstanding Equity Award, whether vested or unvested, shall be assumed by Purchaser, and shall continue in full force and effect, containing the same terms, conditions, vesting
and other provisions, except that each Company Option under an Equity Award shall be exercisable for such number of Purchaser Common Stock that equals the Closing
Consideration Conversion Ratio as set forth on Schedule 1.14 and at such exercise price that shall equal to the exercise price of such option immediately prior to the Closing
divided by the Closing Consideration Conversion Ratio as set forth on Schedule 1.14, further provided that with respect to any Equity Award, any fractional shares will be
rounded up to the nearest whole number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock. Purchaser undertakes to assume the Equity Incentive Plan as amended pursuant to Section 9.11,
in accordance with the requirements of the capital gains route under Section 102 to the Israeli Tax Ordinance, as needed in order to allow for the assumption of the outstanding
Equity Awards as provided for above.




(c) Treatment of Ordinary Warrants and Preferred A-1 Warrants. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company and the Purchaser (or if appropriate, any duly
authorized committee thereof) shall, as applicable, take all corporate actions necessary, including adopting appropriate resolutions and obtaining consents of warrant-holders if
required, to provide that, as of the Effective Time and subject to the receipt of a Valid Tax Certificate covering the entire consideration payable and issuable under this
Agreement , each outstanding Ordinary Warrant and Preferred A-1 Warrant (collectively, “ Company Warrants”) shall be assumed by Purchaser, and shall continue in full force
and effect, containing the same terms, conditions, vesting and other provisions, except that with respect to each share of the Company (whether Ordinary Share or Preferred A-1
Share) that is subject to a Company Warrant prior to the Closing, shall be exercisable for such number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock that equals the Closing
Consideration Conversion Ratio as set forth on Schedule 1.14, in each case, subject to Section 4.1(j) and Section 11.3, and at such exercise price that shall equal to the exercise
price of such warrant share immediately prior to the Closing divided by the Closing Consideration Conversion Ratio as set forth on Schedule 1.14, further provided that with
respect to any Company Warrant, any fractional share will be rounded up to the nearest whole number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock.

(d) Treatment of 102 Company Securities. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, any consideration payable for 102 Company Securities
shall be deposited with the 102 Trustee to be held and released in accordance with the provisions of Section 102 of the Ordinance, the Israeli Tax Ruling or any other approval
that may be issued by the ITA.

(e) Conversion of Shares of Merger Sub. Each share of Merger Sub that is issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time will, by virtue of
the Merger and without further action on the part of the sole shareholder of Merger Sub, be converted into and become one share of the Surviving Corporation (and the shares of
Surviving Corporation into which the shares of Merger Sub are so converted shall be the only shares of the Surviving Corporation that are issued and outstanding immediately
after the Effective Time). Each certificate evidencing ownership of shares of Merger Sub will, as of the Effective Time, be deemed to evidence ownership of such shares of the
Surviving Corporation.

(f) Treatment of Ordinary Shares Owned by the Company. At the Effective Time, all Ordinary Shares of the Company that are owned by the Company as
treasury shares immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be canceled and extinguished without any conversion thereof.

(g) No Liability. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 4.1, no party hereto shall be liable to any person for any amount properly paid to a
public official pursuant to any applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar law.

(h) Surrender of Certificates. All Closing Payment Shares issued upon the surrender of Ordinary Shares in accordance with the terms hereof, shall be deemed
to have been issued in full satisfaction of all rights pertaining to such securities, other than the additional obligations of Purchaser and the rights of the Shareholders pursuant to
Section 11.3.

(1) Lost or Destroyed Certificates. In the event any certificates representing shares of Company Capital Stock shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, the

Purchaser shall issue in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed certificates or securities, as the case may be, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the holder thereof
(without the requirement to post a bond), such securities, as may be required pursuant to this Section 4.1 and Section 11.3.
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(j) Escrow Shares. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the other provisions of this Section 4.1, Purchaser shall withhold from the shares of Purchaser
Common Stock otherwise issuable to an Escrow Participant pursuant to Section 4.1(a) and from the number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock issuable upon conversion of
each Ordinary Warrant and Preferred A-1 Warrant held by an Escrow Participant and assumed by Purchaser as of the Effective Time in accordance with Section 4.1(c) and that
are vested as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, a number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock equal to: (i) the Escrow Shares; multiplied by (b) such Escrow
Participant’s Escrow Pro Rata Portion, in each case, as set forth on Schedule 1.14.

(k) Schedule 1.14. No later than two (2) days prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall deliver to Purchaser a final Schedule 1.14, which shall set forth, as
of the immediately prior to the Effective Time, the following information: (i) the name of each Company Securityholder, (ii) the number and kind of each Company Security
held by each Company Securityholder, including, if applicable, the number of Ordinary Shares and Ordinary A Shares issuable upon exercise or conversion of such Company
Security and the exercise price per share for such Company Security, (iii) the vesting arrangements with respect to each Company Security held by such Company
Securityholder (including the vesting schedule, vesting commencement date, date fully vested and the extent to which such Company Security is vested as of the Closing), (iv)
the total number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock issuable pursuant to Section 4.1(a) in respect of each Company Security held by such Company Securityholder; (v) the
total number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock issuable upon exercise or conversion of each Company Security held by such Company Securityholder following the
assumption by Purchaser of such Company Security pursuant to Section 4.1(b) and Section 4.1(c) and the respective exercise price per share applicable to such Company
Security following such assumption; (vi) the number of Escrow Shares deposited into the Escrow Account on behalf of such Company Securityholder pursuant to Section 4.1(j);
and (vii) such Company Securityholder’s Escrow Pro Rata Portion.

4.2 Closing Payment Shares.

(a) No certificates or scrip representing fractional shares of Purchaser Common Stock will be issued pursuant to the Merger, including with respect to any
release of the Escrow Shares pursuant to Section 4.1(j) and the Escrow Agreement and such fractional share interests will not entitle the owner thereof to vote or to any rights of
a shareholder of the Purchaser.

(b) Legend. Each certificate representing shares of Purchaser Common Stock issued pursuant to this Agreement shall bear the legend set forth below, or
legend substantially equivalent thereto, together with any other legends that may be required by any securities Laws at the time of the issuance of the Purchaser Common Stock:

THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT”) OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION, AND MAY

NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED UNLESS AND UNTIL (I) SUCH OFFER, SALE,
TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR HYPOTHECATION HAS BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE ACT AND THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OR
OTHER JURISDICTION COVERING SUCH SECURITIES OR (II) THE ISSUER OF THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK HAS RECEIVED AN
OPINION OF COUNSEL IN FORM AND SUBSTANCE SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER THAT SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR
HYPOTHECATION IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE ACT AND SUCH OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS.




4.3 Reserved.

4.4 Withholding Rights and Tax Rulings.

(a) The Company, Purchaser or any Person acting on their behalf (each, a ‘Payor™), shall be entitled to deduct and withhold from any consideration payable or
otherwise deliverable pursuant to this Agreement such amounts as are required to be deducted and withheld therefrom under any applicable provision of federal, local or foreign
Tax law or under any applicable legal requirements (including, for the avoidance of doubt, the regulation of withholding from assets and services). To the extent such amounts
are so deducted and withheld and remitted to the applicable Tax authority, such amounts shall be treated for all purposes under this Agreement as having been paid to the
Person to whom such amounts would otherwise have been paid (each, a “Payee”), and the Payor shall promptly provide the applicable Payee with a document evidencing the
amount so withheld and remitted to the Tax authority with respect to the payment made to such Payee. If any Person presents to Purchaser or anyone on its behalf a Valid Tax
Certificate covering the entire consideration payable and issuable under this Agreement to such Person and exempting Purchaser from any Israeli withholding obligation, then
the deduction and withholding of any Israeli Taxes (if any) shall be made only in accordance with the provisions of such Valid Tax Certificate (subject to withholding on
account of non-Israeli Taxes, if applicable). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, until a Person presents to Purchaser or anyone on its behalf a Valid Tax
Certificate no consideration under this Agreement shall be issued by the Purchaser by such Person.

(b) As soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement, the Company shall instruct its Israeli counsel, advisors and/or accountants to prepare and file with
the ITA, in full coordination with Purchaser’s advisors, an application for a ruling (which shall be confirmed by Purchaser’s advisors prior to its submission and such
confirmation shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed) confirming, among other things, that (1) in relation to the consideration to be paid to the holders of
102 Company Securities, that the payment of consideration in respect of 102 Company Securities with respect to which the minimum trust period required by Section 102 of the
Ordinance has not passed, will not constitute a violation of the requirements of Section 102 of the Ordinance as long as such consideration is deposited with the 102 Trustee, and
that payments of consideration made to the 102 Trustee under this Agreement shall not be subject to withholding of Israeli Tax, and (2) that the assumption of the Company
Options will not trigger a taxable event and that tax continuity will apply to such assumed options such that they shall continue to be subject to the same tax arrangement as

applied to the Company Options (the “Israeli Tax Ruling”).




(c) Each of Purchaser and Company shall cause their respective Israeli counsel, advisors and accountants to coordinate all activities, and to cooperate with
each other, with respect to the preparation and filing of any written or oral submissions or applications that may be necessary, proper or advisable to obtain the Israeli Tax
Ruling. The final text of the Israeli Tax Ruling shall in all circumstances be subject to the prior written confirmation of Purchaser or its counsel which confirmation shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Each of Purchaser and Company shall use reasonable best efforts to promptly take, or cause to be taken, all action and to do, or
cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or advisable under applicable law to obtain the Israeli Tax Ruling, as promptly as practicable.

ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY

Except as set forth in the disclosure schedules delivered by the Company to the Purchaser prior to the execution of this Agreement, the Company hereby
represents and warrants to Purchaser that each of the following representations and warranties are true, correct and complete as of the date of this Agreement and as of the
Closing Date.

5.1 Corporate Existence and Power. The Company is a company duly incorporated, validly existing under the Laws of the State of Israel. The Company has all power
and authority, corporate and otherwise, and all governmental licenses, franchises, Permits, authorizations, consents and approvals required to own and operate its properties and
assets and to carry on the Business as presently conducted and as proposed to be conducted. The Company is not a “defaulting company” as defined under the Companies Law.
The Company has the corporate power and authority to own or lease all of its properties and assets and to carry on its Business as it is now being conducted, and is duly licensed
or qualified to do business in each jurisdiction in which the its properties and owned or leased by it or the operation of its Business as currently conducted makes such licensing
or qualification necessary, except where the failure to be so licensed or qualified would not have a Material Adverse Effect. The Company has offices located only at the
addresses set forth on Schedule 5.1.

5.2 Authorization. The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and the Additional Agreements and the consummation by the
Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby are within the corporate powers of the Company and have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the
part of the Company. This Agreement constitutes, and, upon their execution and delivery, each of the Additional Agreements will constitute, a valid and legally binding
agreement of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with their respective terms, except as may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or
other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and by general principles of equity. The Company Board of Directors, by resolutions duly adopted
(and not thereafter modified or rescinded) by the unanimous vote of the Company Board of Directors, has (i) approved this Agreement and the other Transactions and
determined that this Agreement and the Transactions, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, advisable, fair to and in the best interests of the Company and
the Company Shareholders, (ii) approved this Agreement in accordance with the provisions of Israeli Law and the Charter Documents and (iii) directed that the adoption of this
Agreement be submitted to the Company Shareholders for consideration and unanimously recommended that all of the Company Shareholders adopt this Agreement. The
affirmative vote of more than fifty percent (50%) (on an as-converted basis) of the voting power of the Shareholders who are present in person or by proxy at such meeting and
voting thereon shall be required by the Company to approve the transactions contemplated by this Agreement by the Shareholders (the “Company Shareholder Approval”).
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5.3 Governmental Authorization. Except for the approvals listed on Schedule 5.3, neither the execution, delivery nor performance by the Company of this Agreement
or any Additional Agreements requires any consent, approval, license, order or other action by or in respect of, or registration, declaration or filing with, any Authority as a
result of the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement or any of the Additional Agreements or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or
thereby (each of the foregoing, a “Governmental Approval”).

5.4 Non-Contravention. None of the execution, delivery or performance by the Company of this Agreement or any Additional Agreements does or will (a) contravene
or conflict with the organizational or constitutive documents of any member of the Company Group, (b) contravene or conflict with or constitute a violation of any provision of
any Law or Order binding upon or applicable to the Company Group, (c) except for the Contracts listed on Schedule 5.16(a) requiring Company Consents (but only as to the
need to obtain such Company Consents), constitute a default under or breach of (with or without the giving of notice or the passage of time or both) or violate or give rise to any
right of termination, cancellation, amendment or acceleration of any right or obligation of the Company Group or require any payment or reimbursement or to a loss of any
material benefit relating to the Business to which the Company Group are entitled under any provision of any Permit, Contract or other instrument or obligations binding upon
the Company Group or by which any of the Company Capital Stock or any of the Company Group’s assets is or may be bound or any Permit, (d) result in the creation or
imposition of any Lien on any of the Company Capital Stock, (e) cause a loss of any material benefit relating to the Business to which the Company Group are entitled under
any provision of any Permit or Contract binding upon the Company Group, (f) result in the creation or imposition of any Lien (except for Permitted Liens) on any of the
Company Group’s assets, or (g) require any consent, approval or waiver from any Person pursuant to any provision of the Charter Documents, except for such consent, approval
or waiver which shall be obtained prior to the Closing.

5.5 Capitalization. The Company’s authorized share capital is NIS 236,780, divided into:
(a) 13,044,778 ordinary shares, par value NIS 0.01 each, of which 954,622 are issued and outstanding;

(b) 2,836,880 Preferred B Shares, par value NIS 0.01 each, of which 2,266,314 are issued and outstanding;
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(c) 1,556,185 Preferred A Shares par value NIS 0.01 each, of which 234,147 are issued and outstanding;

(d) 2,554,403 Preferred A-1 Shares, par value NIS 0.01 each, of which 2,500,511 are issued and outstanding;

(e) 130,434 Preferred A-2 Shares, par value NIS 0.01 each, of which 130,434 are issued;

(f) 1,000,000 Ordinary A Shares, par value NIS 0.01 each, none of which are issued and outstanding;

(g) 2,300,000 Preferred A-3 Shares, par value NIS 0.01 each, none of which are issued and outstanding; and

(h) and 255,320 Preferred A-4 Shares, par value NIS 0.01 each, of which 255,320 are issued and outstanding.

(the shares listed in (a) — (h) above shall be referred to collectively as the ‘Company Capital Stock™).

(1) No Company Capital Stock is held in its treasury. All of the issued and outstanding Company Capital Stock has been duly authorized and validly issued, is
fully paid and non-assessable and has not been issued in violation of any preemptive or similar rights of any Person. All of the issued and outstanding Company Capital Stock is
owned of record and, to the Company’s knowledge, beneficially by the Shareholders as set forth on Schedule 5.5, free and clear of all Liens. No outstanding Company Capital
Stock is subject to any right of first refusal, right of first offer, preemptive right or similar restriction. The only shares of Company Capital Stock that will be outstanding
Closing will be the Company Capital Stock owned by the Purchaser following the consummation of the Merger. No other class of shares of the Company is authorized or
outstanding. Except as set forth in Schedule 5.5, there are no: (a) outstanding subscriptions, options, warrants, rights (including “phantom share rights”), calls, commitments,
understandings, conversion rights, rights of exchange, plans or other agreements of any kind providing for the purchase, issuance or sale of any shares of the Company, or (b)
agreements with respect to any of the Company Capital Stock, including any voting trust, other voting agreement or proxy with respect thereto.

(j) The terms of the Equity Incentive Plan permit the treatment of Company Options as provided in this Agreement without the consent or approval of, the
holders of such securities or otherwise and without any acceleration of the exercise schedule or vesting provisions in effect for such Company Options. No outstanding
Company Options, whether under the Equity Incentive Plan or otherwise, will be accelerated in connection with the Agreement.

(k) All Company Options granted by the Company to its officers and employees in Israel that are currently outstanding were granted under an equity

incentive plan approved, or not rejected within thirty (30) days from filing, by the ITA under the capital gains route of Section 102 of the Ordinance.
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(1) The terms of the Company Warrants permit the treatment of Company Warrants as provided herein the consent or approval of, the holders of Company
Warrant, the Company Shareholders.

(m) No employee of the Company or other Person has received an offer letter or other Contract which is still outstanding that contemplates a grant of, or
right to purchase or receive: (i) Equity Awards or (ii) any other securities of the Company, that in each case, have not been issued or granted as of the date of this Agreement.

5.6 Charter Documents. Copies of the Charter Documents have heretofore been made available to Purchaser, and such copies are each true and complete copies of such
instruments as amended and in effect on the date hereof. The Company has not taken any action in violation or derogation of its Charter Documents.

5.7 Corporate Records. All proceedings occurring since January 1, 2016 of the board of directors of the Company, including all committees thereof, and of the
Company Shareholders, and all consents to actions taken thereby, are accurately reflected in the minutes and records contained in the corporate minute books of the Company
and made available to the Purchaser. The register of members of the Company is complete and accurate.

5.8 Assumed Names. Schedule 5.8 is a complete and correct list of all assumed or “doing business as” names currently or, within five (5) years of the date of this
Agreement used by the Company Group, including names on any websites. Since January 1, 2016 none of the members of the Company Group has used any name other than
the names listed on Schedule 5.8 to conduct the Business. The Company Group has filed appropriate “doing business as” certificates in all applicable jurisdictions with respect
to itself.

5.9 Subsidiaries. RondinX Ltd. (“RondinX”, or the “Subsidiary”), a company duly organized and validly existing under the Laws of the State of Israel, is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company is not a participant in any joint venture, partnership, or similar arrangement. The share capital of RondinX is fully paid-up.
Except for RondinX, the Company does not own or Control, directly or indirectly, any ownership, equity, profits or voting interest in any Person or has any agreement or
commitment to purchase any such interest, and has not agreed and is not obligated to make, nor is bound by any Contract under which it may become obligated to make, any
future investment (in the form of a loan, capital contribution or otherwise) in any other Person.

(a) RondinX has all power and authority, corporate and otherwise, and all governmental licenses, Permits, authorizations, consents and approvals required to
own and operate its properties and assets and to carry on the Business as presently conducted and as proposed to be conducted. RondinX is not a “defaulting company” as
defined under the Companies Law. RondinX is not qualified to do business as a foreign entity in any jurisdiction, and there is no other jurisdiction in which the character of the
property owned or leased by RondinX or the nature of its activities make qualification of RondinX in any such jurisdiction necessary. RondinX has offices located only at the
addresses set forth by its name on Schedule 5.9.




(b) No outstanding capital stock or other securities of RondinX are subject to any right of first refusal, right of first offer, preemptive right or similar
restriction. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.9(b), there are no: (i) outstanding subscriptions, options, warrants, rights (including “phantom stock rights”), calls, commitments,
understandings, conversion rights, rights of exchange, plans or other agreements of any kind providing for the purchase, issuance or sale of any shares of the capital stock or
other securities of RondinX, or (ii) agreements with respect to any of the capital stock or other securities of RondinX, including any voting trust, other voting agreement or
proxy with respect thereto.

5.10 Consents. The Contracts listed on Schedule 5.10 are the only Contracts binding upon the Company Group or by which any of the Company Capital Stock or any
of the Company Group’s assets are bound, requiring a consent, approval, authorization, order or other action of or filing with any Person as a result of the execution, delivery
and performance of this Agreement or any of the Additional Agreements or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby (each of the foregoing, a

“Company Consent”).

5.11 Financial Statements.

(a) Schedule 5.11 includes the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and
2016 consisting of the audited consolidated balance sheet as of such date, the audited consolidated income statement for the twelve (12) month period ended on such date, and
the audited consolidated cash flow statement for the twelve (12) month period ended on such date, (collectively, the “Financial Statements” and the audited consolidated balance
sheet as of December 31, 2018 (the “Balance Sheet Date”) included therein, the “Balance Sheet”).

(b) The Financial Statements fairly present, in conformity with U.S. GAAP applied on a consistent basis, the financial position of the Company Group as of
the dates thereof and the results of operations of the Company Group for the periods reflected therein. The Financial Statements (i) were prepared from the Books and Records
of the Company Group; and (ii) were prepared on an accrual basis in accordance with U.S. GAAP consistently applied.

(c) Except as: (i) specifically disclosed, reflected or fully reserved against on the Balance Sheet; (ii) liabilities and obligations incurred in the ordinary course
of business since the date of the Balance Sheet; (iii) liabilities that are executory obligations arising under Contracts to which any member of the Company Group is a party
(none of which results from, arises out of, or relates to any breach or violation of, or default under, a Material Contract or applicable Law); (iv) expenses incurred in connection
with the negotiation, execution and performance of this Agreement, any Additional Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby; (v) liabilities that
would not have a Material Adverse Effect; and (vi) liabilities set forth on Schedule 5.11(c), the Company Group does not have any material liabilities, debts or obligations of
any nature (whether accrued, fixed or contingent, liquidated or unliquidated, asserted or unasserted or otherwise)of the type required to be reflected on a balance sheet in
accordance with GAAP.

20




(d) Except as set forth on Schedule 5.11(d), the Company Group does not have any Indebtedness.

5.12 Books and Records. All Contracts, documents, and other papers or copies thereof delivered to Purchaser by or on behalf of the Company Group are accurate,
complete, and authentic.

(a) The Books and Records accurately and fairly, in reasonable detail, reflect the transactions and dispositions of assets of and the providing of services by the
Company Group. The Company maintains procedures of internal controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurance that:

(i) transactions are executed only in accordance with the respective management’s authorization;

(ii) all income and expense items are promptly and properly recorded for the relevant periods in accordance with the revenue recognition and expense
policies maintained by the Company, as permitted by U.S. GAAP; and

(iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with the respective management’s authorization.

(b) All accounts, books and ledgers of the Company Group have been properly and accurately kept and completed in all material respects, and there are no
material inaccuracies or discrepancies of any kind contained or reflected therein. Except as disclosed on Schedule 5.12(b), the Company Group does not have any records,
systems controls, data or information recorded, stored, maintained, operated or otherwise wholly or partly dependent on or held by any means (including any mechanical,
electronic or photographic process, whether computerized or not) which (including all means of access thereto and therefrom) are not under the exclusive ownership (excluding
licensed software programs) and direct control of the Company Group and which is not located at the relevant office.

5.13 Absence of Certain Changes. Since the Balance Sheet Date, the Company Group has conducted the Business in the ordinary course consistent with past practices.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, except as set forth on Schedule 5.13, since the Balance Sheet Date, there has not been:

(a) any Material Adverse Effect or any material diminishment in the value to Purchaser of the transactions contemplated hereby;
(b) any transaction, Contract or other instrument entered into, or commitment made, by the Company Group, or any of the Company Group’s assets

(including the acquisition or disposition of any assets) or any relinquishment by the Company Group of any Contract or other right, in either case other than transactions and
commitments in the ordinary course of business consistent in all respects, including kind and amount, with past practices and those contemplated by this Agreement;
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(c) (i) any redemption of, declaration, setting aside or payment of any dividend or other distribution with respect to any capital stock or other equity interests
in the Company Group; (ii) any issuance by the Company Group of shares of capital stock or other equity interests in the Company Group, or (iii) any repurchase, redemption
or other acquisition, or any amendment of any term, by the Company Group of any outstanding shares of capital stock or other equity interests;

(d) any material change in any compensation or benefits arrangement or agreement with any employee, officer, director or shareholder of the Company or the
Subsidiary, except for changes or amendments that are expressly provided for in this Agreement;

(e) (i) any creation or other incurrence of any Lien (other than Permitted Liens) on the Company Capital Stock or any other capital stock or securities of the
Company Group or on any of the Company Group’s assets, and (ii) any making of any loan, advance or capital contributions to or investment in any Person by the Company
Group;

(f) any material personal property damage, destruction or casualty loss or personal injury loss (whether or not covered by insurance) affecting the business or
assets of the Company Group;

(g) any material labor dispute, other than routine individual grievances, or any activity or proceeding by a labor union or representative thereof to organize
any employees of the Company Group, which employees were not subject to a collective bargaining agreement at the Balance Sheet Date, or any lockouts, strikes, slowdowns,

work stoppages or threats thereof by or with respect to any employees of the Company Group;

(h) any sale, transfer, lease to others or otherwise disposition of any of its assets by the Company Group except for inventory sold in the ordinary course of
business consistent with past practices or immaterial amounts of other Tangible Personal Property not required by its business;

(i) any capital expenditure by the Company Group in excess in any fiscal month of an aggregate of $400,000 or entering into any lease of capital equipment or
property under which the annual lease charges exceed $400,000 in the aggregate by the Company Group;

(j) any institution of litigation, settlement or agreement to settle any litigation, action, proceeding or investigation before any court or governmental body
relating to the Company Group or its property or suffering of any actual or threatened litigation, action, proceeding or investigation before any court or governmental body
relating to the Company Group or its property;

(k) any waiver by the Company or the Subsidiary of a material right or of a material debt owed to it;

(1) the incurrence of any Indebtedness, or any loan of any monies to any Person or guarantee of any obligations of any Person by the Company Group;
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(m) except as required by U.S. GAAP, any change in the accounting methods or practices (including, any change in depreciation or amortization policies or
rates) of the Company Group or any revaluation of any of the assets of the Company Group;

(n) any amendment to the Company Group’s organizational documents, or any engagement by the Company Group in any merger, consolidation,
reorganization, reclassification, liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction;

(o) any acquisition of assets (other than acquisitions of inventory in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice) or business of any Person;

(p) any material Tax election made by the Company Group outside of the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice, or any material Tax
election changed or revoked by the Company Group; any material claim, notice, audit report or assessment in respect of Taxes settled or compromised by the Company Group;
any annual Tax accounting period changed by the Company Group; any Tax allocation agreement, Tax sharing agreement, Tax indemnity agreement or closing agreement
relating to any Tax entered into by the Company Group; or any right to claim a material Tax refund surrendered by the Company Group; or

(q) any commitment or agreement to do any of the foregoing.

5.14 Properties: Title to the Company’s Assets.

(a) Except as set forth on Schedule 5.14(a), the items of Tangible Personal Property have no defects, are in good operating condition and repair and function
in accordance with their intended uses (ordinary wear and tear excepted) and have been properly maintained, and are suitable for their present uses and meet all specifications
and warranty requirements with respect thereto.

(b) All of the Tangible Personal Property is located at the office of the Company.

(c) The Company has good, valid and marketable title in and to, or in the case of the Leases and the assets which are leased or licensed pursuant to Contracts,
a valid leasehold interest or license in or a right to use, all of their assets reflected on the Balance Sheet. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.14(c), no such asset is subject to any
Liens other than Permitted Liens. The Company Group’s assets constitute all of the assets of any kind or description whatsoever, including goodwill, for the Company Group to
operate the Business immediately after the Closing in the same manner as the Business is currently being conducted.

5.15 Litigation. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.15, there is no Action (or any basis therefore) pending against, or to the best knowledge of the Company threatened
against or affecting, the Company Group, any of its officers or directors, the Business, or any Company Capital Stock or any of the Company’s Group assets or any Contract
before any court, Authority or official or which in any manner challenges or seeks to prevent, enjoin, alter or delay the transactions contemplated hereby or by the Additional
Agreements. There are no outstanding judgments against the Company Group. The Company Group is not, and has not been in the past five (5) years, subject to any proceeding
with any Authority.
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5.16 Contracts.

(a) Schedule 5.16(a) lists all Contracts, oral or written (collectively, “Material Contracts™) to which, as of the date of this Agreement, the Company Group is a
party and which are currently in effect and constitute the following:

(1) all Contracts that require annual payments or expenses incurred by, or annual payments or income to, the Company Group of $400,000 or more
(other than standard purchase and sale orders entered into in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice);

(ii) all sales, advertising, agency, lobbying, broker, sales promotion, market research, marketing or similar contracts and agreements, in each case
requiring the payment of any commissions by the Company Group in excess of $400,000 annually;

(iii) all employment Contracts, employee leasing Contracts, and consultant and sales representatives Contracts with any current officer, director,
employee or consultant of the Company Group, under which the Company Group (A) has continuing obligations for payment of annual compensation of at least
$400,000 (other than arrangements for at-will employment), (B) has severance or post termination obligations to such Person (other than COBRA obligations or
statutory severance under applicable Israeli law), or (C) has an obligation to make a payment upon consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or as a result
of a change of control of the Company;

(iv) all Contracts creating a joint venture, strategic alliance, limited liability company and partnership agreements to which the Company Group is a
party;

(v) all Contracts relating to any acquisitions or dispositions of material assets by the Company Group (other than acquisitions or dispositions of
inventory in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice);

(vi) all Contracts for material licensing agreements, including material Contracts licensing Intellectual Property Rights, other than (a) “shrink wrap” or
other licenses for generally commercially available software (including open source software) or hosted services, (b) customer or channel partner Contracts substantially
on Company’s standard forms, (c) Contracts with Company’s own employees or contractors substantially on Company’s standard forms, and (d) standard non-disclosure
agreements (collectively, and excluding all material transfer and other sample agreements services agreements and scientific advisory board agreements, “Standard
Contracts™);

(vii) all Contracts limiting the freedom of the Company Group to compete in any line of business or with any Person or in any geographic area;
(viii) all Contracts relating to patents, trademarks, service marks, trade names, brands, copyrights, trade secrets and other Intellectual Property Rights

of the Company Group other than Standard Contracts, material transfer and other sample agreements services agreements and scientific advisory board agreements;
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(ix) all Contracts providing for guarantees, indemnification arrangements and other hold harmless arrangements made or provided by the Company
Group, including all ongoing agreements for repair, warranty, maintenance, service, indemnification or similar obligations other than Standard Contracts;

(x) all Contracts with or pertaining to the Company Group to which any Affiliate of the Company Group is a party, other than any Contracts relating to
such Affiliate’s status as a Company Securityholder;

(xi) all Contracts relating to property or assets (whether real or personal, tangible or intangible) in which the Company Group holds a leasehold interest
including the Leases) and which mvolve payments to the lessor thereunder 1n excess o 5 €r year,
including the L d which involve pay: he 1 h der i f $400,000 per yi

(xii) all Contracts relating to outstanding Indebtedness;

(xiii) any Contract relating to the voting or control of the equity interests of the Company Group or the election of directors of the Company Group
(other than the organizational documents of the Company Group);

(xiv) any Contract not cancellable by the Company Group with no more than 60 days’ notice if the effect of such cancellation would result in monetary
penalty to the Company Group in excess of $400,000 per the terms of such contract;

(xv) any Contract that can be terminated, or the provisions of which are altered, as a result of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement or any of the Additional Agreements to which the Company Group is a party;

(xvi) any Contract containing covenants restricting the Company from competing with any Person in any line of business, industry or geographical
area; and

(xvii) any Contract for which any of the benefits, compensation or payments (or the vesting thereof) will be increased or accelerated by the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or the amount or value thereof will be calculated on the basis of any of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement.

(b) Except as set for the on Schedule 5.16(b), each Material Contract is a valid and binding agreement, and is in full force and effect (subject to (i) Laws of
general application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of debtors; and (ii) rules of law governing specific performance, injunctive relief and other equitable
remedies), and neither the Company Group nor, to the Company’s best knowledge, any other party thereto, is in material breach or default (whether with or without the passage
of time or the giving of notice or both) under the terms of any such Material Contract. Except as set for the on Schedule 5.16(b), the Company Group has not assigned,
delegated, or otherwise transferred any of its rights or obligations with respect to any Material Contracts, or granted any power of attorney with respect thereto.
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(c) Except as set forth on Schedule 5.16(c), none of the execution, delivery or performance by the Company of this Agreement or Additional Agreements to
which the Company is a party or the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby constitutes a default under or gives rise to any right of
termination, cancellation or acceleration of any obligation of the Company Group or to a loss of any material benefit to which the Company Group is entitled under any
provision of any Material Contract.

(d) Except as set for the on Schedule 5.16(d), the Company Group is in compliance with all covenants, including all financial covenants, in all notes,
indentures, bonds and other instruments or agreements evidencing any Indebtedness.

5.17 Licenses and Permits. Schedule 5.17 correctly lists each license, franchise, permit, order or approval or other similar authorization required under applicable law
to carry out or otherwise affecting, or relating in any way to, the Business, together with the name of the Authority issuing the same (the “Permits”). Except as indicated on
Schedule 5.17, such Permits are valid and in full force and effect, and none of the Permits will, assuming the related Company Consent has been obtained or waived prior to the
Closing Date, be terminated or impaired or become terminable as a result of the transactions contemplated hereby. The Company Group has all Permits necessary to operate the
Business.

5.18 Compliance with Laws. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.18, the Company Group is not in material violation of, has not since January 1, 2017, violated in any
material respect, and to the Company’s best knowledge, has not since January 1, 2017 been threatened in writing to be charged with or given written notice of any violation of,
any Law, or judgment, order or decree entered by any Authority, domestic or foreign.

(a) Without limiting the foregoing paragraph, the Company Group is not in violation of, has not violated, and to the Company’s best knowledge is not under
investigation with respect to nor has been threatened or charged with or given notice of any violation of any provisions of:

(i) any Law applicable due to the specific nature of the Business, including Laws applicable to data privacy, data security and/or personal information
(“Data Protection Laws”) and Laws applicable to lending activities;

(ii) the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 (§§ 78dd-1 et seq.), as amended (the ‘Foreign Corrupt Practices Act”) or any comparable or similar Law
of any jurisdiction applicable to the Company; or

(iii) any Law regulating or covering conduct in, or the nature of, the workplace, including regarding sexual harassment or, on any impermissible basis,
a hostile work environment.

(b) Without limiting the foregoing paragraph, neither the Company Group nor, to the knowledge of the Company, any director, officer, agent, employee,

Affiliate or Person acting on behalf of the Company is currently subject to any U.S. sanctions administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Treasury
Department (“OFAC”).
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(c) Except as set forth on Schedule 5.18, no permit, license or registration is required by the Company Group in the conduct of the Business under any of the
Laws described in this Section 5.18.

5.19 Intellectual Property.

(a) Schedule 5.19 sets forth a true, correct and complete list of all registered Intellectual Property Rights and applications for registration of Intellectual
Property Rights owned or filed by any member of the Company Group, specifying as to each, as applicable: (i) the nature of such Intellectual Property Right; (ii) the owner of
such Intellectual Property Right; (iii) the jurisdictions by or in which such Intellectual Property Right has been issued or registered or in which an application for such issuance
or registration has been filed; and (iv) other than Standard Contracts, all licenses, sublicenses and other agreements pursuant to which any Person is authorized to use such
Intellectual Property Right.

(b) Within the past five (5) years (or prior thereto if the same is still pending or subject to appeal or reinstatement) the Company Group has not been sued or
charged in writing with or been a defendant in any Action that involves a claim of infringement of any Intellectual Property Rights, and the Company has no knowledge of any
other claim of infringement by the Company Group, and no knowledge of any material continuing infringement by any other Person of any Intellectual Property Rights of the
Company Group.

(c) To the knowledge of the Company Group, as of the date of this Agreement there are no material disputes or litigation with respect to any material
Intellectual Property Rights and the Company is not a party to any dispute or litigation relating to any Intellectual Property. Any Intellectual Property Rights used by the
Company Group in the performance of any services under any Contract is, and upon the performance of such Contract remains, owned or in-licensed by the Company Group
and no client, customer or other third-party has any claim of ownership on the Intellectual Property Rights used by Company Group in the performance of any such Contract.

(d) All current and former Israeli Company Employees have executed an instrument that includes a due waiver of the right to receive compensation in
connection with “Service Inventions” under Section 134 of the Israeli Patent Law-1967, and none of such persons has the right to receive any such compensation.

(e) Except as disclosed on Schedule 5.19(d), all employees, agents, consultants or contractors who have contributed to or participated in the creation or
development of any copyrightable, patentable or trade secret material on behalf of the Company Group or any predecessor in interest thereto either: (i) is a party to a “work-for-
hire” agreement under which the Company Group is deemed to be the original owner/author of all property rights therein; or (ii) has executed an assignment or an agreement to
assign in favor of the Company Group (or such predecessor in interest, as applicable) all right, title and interest in such material or (iii) has licensed to the Company Group
rights to use such Intellectual Property Rights.

(f) None of the execution, delivery or performance by the Company of this Agreement or any of the Additional Agreements to which the Company is a party
or the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby will cause any material item of Intellectual Property Rights owned, licensed, used or
held for use by the Company Group immediately prior to the Closing to not be owned, licensed or available for use by the Company Group on substantially the same terms and
conditions immediately following the Closing.
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(g) The Company has taken reasonable measures to safeguard and maintain the confidentiality and value of all trade secrets and other items of Intellectual
Property Rights that are confidential and all other confidential information, data and materials licensed by the Company Group or otherwise used in the operation of the
Business. The transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not result in the violation of any Data Protection Laws or the privacy policies of the Company Group.

5.20 Suppliers.

(a) Schedule 5.20(a) sets forth a list of the Company Group’s ten (10) largest suppliers as measured by the dollar amount of purchases therefrom or thereby,
for the Company Group’s December 31, 2017 fiscal year, showing the approximate total purchases by the Company Group from each such supplier, during each such period.

(b) Except as indicated on Schedule 5.20(b), to the actual knowledge of the Company, no supplier listed on Schedule 5.20(a) has (i) terminated its relationship
with the Company Group, (ii) materially reduced its business with the Company Group or materially and adversely modified its relationship with the Company Group, (iii)
notified the Company Group in writing of its intention to take any such action, or (iv) to the knowledge of the Company, become insolvent or subject to bankruptcy proceedings.

5.21 Accounts Receivable and Payable: Loans.

(a) All accounts receivable and notes of the Company Group reflected on the Financial Statements, and all accounts receivable and notes arising subsequent
to the date thereof, represent valid obligations arising from services actually performed or goods actually sold by the Company Group in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice. The accounts payable of the Company reflected on the Financial Statements, and all accounts payable arising subsequent to the date thereof, arose
from bona fide transactions in the ordinary course consistent with past practice.

(b) To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no contest, claim, or right of setoff in any agreement with any maker of an account receivable or note
relating to the amount or validity of such account, receivables or note involving an amount in excess of $400,000. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.21(b), to the best knowledge
of the Company, all accounts, receivables or notes are good and collectible in the ordinary course of business.

(c¢) The information set forth on Schedule 5.21(c) separately identifies any and all accounts, receivables or notes of the Company Group which are owed by

any Affiliate of the Company Group. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.21(c), the Company Group is not indebted to any of its Affiliates and no Affiliates are indebted to the
Company Group.
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5.22 Pre-payments. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.22, the Company Group has not received any payments with respect to any services to be rendered or goods to be
provided after the Closing except in the ordinary course of business.

5.23 Employees.

(a) Schedule 5.23(a) sets forth a true, correct and complete list of each of the 5 highest compensated employees of the Company Group as of June 1, 2019,
setting forth the name, title, current salary or compensation rate for each such person and total compensation (including bonuses and commissions) paid to each such person for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018.

(b) Except as set forth on Schedule 5.23(b), the Company Group is not a party to or subject to any collective bargaining agreement, or any similar agreement,
and there has been no activity or proceeding by a labor union or representative thereof to organize any employees of the Company Group.

(c) There are no pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened claims or proceedings against the Company Group under any worker’s
compensation policy or long-term disability policy.

5.24 Employment Matters.

(a) Schedule 5.24(a) sets forth a true and complete list of every employment agreement, commission agreement, employee group or executive medical, life,
or disability insurance plan, and each incentive, bonus, profit sharing, retirement, deferred compensation, equity, phantom stock, stock option, stock purchase, stock
appreciation right or severance plan of the Company Group now in effect or under which the Company Group has or might have any obligation, or any understanding between
the Company Group and any employee concerning the terms of such employee’s employment that does not apply to the Company Group’s employees generally (collectively,
“Labor Agreements”). The Company Group has previously delivered to Purchaser true and complete copies of each such Labor Agreement, any employee handbook or policy
statement of the Company Group, and complete and correct information concerning the Company Group’s employees.

(b) Except as disclosed on Schedule 5.24(b):

(i) to the best knowledge of the Company Group, no employee of the Company Group, in the ordinary course of his or her duties, has breached or will

breach any obligation to a former employer in respect of any covenant against competition or soliciting clients or employees or servicing clients or confidentiality or any
proprietary right of such former employer; and
(i) the Company Group is not a party to any collective bargaining agreement, does not have any material labor relations problems, and there is no

pending representation question or union organizing activity respecting employees of the Company Group.
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5.25 Withholding. Except as disclosed on Schedule 5.25, all obligations of the Company Group applicable to its employees, whether arising by operation of Law, by
contract, by past custom or otherwise, or attributable to payments by the Company Group to trusts or other funds or to any governmental agency, with respect to unemployment
compensation benefits, social security benefits or any other benefits for its employees with respect to the employment of said employees through the date hereof have been paid
or adequate accruals therefor have been made on the Financial Statements. Except as disclosed on Schedule 5.25, all reasonably anticipated obligations of the Company Group
with respect to such employees (except for those related to wages during the pay period immediately prior to the Closing Date and arising in the ordinary course of business),
whether arising by operation of Law, by contract, by past custom, or otherwise, for salaries and holiday pay, bonuses and other forms of compensation payable to such
employees in respect of the services rendered by any of them prior to the date hereof have been or will be paid by the Company Group prior to the Closing Date.

5.26 Employee Benefits and Compensation. Schedule 5.26 sets forth each “employee benefit plan” (as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA), bonus, deferred
compensation, equity-based or non-equity-based incentive, severance or other plan or written agreement relating to employee or director benefits or employee or director
compensation or fringe benefits, maintained or contributed to by the Company Group at any time during the 5-calendar year period immediately preceding the date hereof and/or
with respect to which the Company Group could incur or could have incurred any direct or indirect, fixed or contingent liability (each a “Plan” and collectively, the “Plans”).
Each Plan is in compliance with applicable law in all material respects.

5.27 Real Property.

(a) Except as set forth on Schedule 5.27, the Company Group does not own, or otherwise have an interest in, any Real Property, including under any Real
Property lease, sublease, space sharing, license or other occupancy agreement. The Company Group has good, valid and subsisting title to its respective leasehold estates in the
offices described on Schedule 5.27, free and clear of all Liens. The Company Group has not breached or violated any local zoning ordinance, and no notice from any Person has
been received by the Company Group or served upon the Company Group claiming any violation of any local zoning ordinance.

(b) With respect to the Lease: (i) it is valid, binding and in full force and effect; (ii) all rents and additional rents and other sums, expenses and charges due
thereunder have been paid; (iii) the lessee has been in peaceable possession since the commencement of the original term thereof; (iv) no waiver, indulgence or postponement of
the lessee’s obligations thereunder has been granted by the lessor; (v) there exist no default or event of default thereunder by the Company Group or, to the Company’s
knowledge, by any other party thereto; (vi) there exists no occurrence, condition or act which, with the giving of notice, the lapse of time or the happening of any further event or
condition, would become a default or event of default by the Company Group thereunder; and (vii) there are no outstanding claims of breach or indemnification or notice of
default or termination thereunder. The Company Group holds the leasehold estate on the Lease free and clear of all Liens, except for Liens of mortgagees of the Real Property in
which such leasehold estate is located. The Real Property leased by the Company Group is in a state of maintenance and repair in all material respects adequate and suitable for
the purposes for which it is presently being used, and there are no material repair or restoration works likely to be required in connection with any of the leased Real Properties.
The Company Group is in physical possession and actual and exclusive occupation of the whole of the leased property, none of which is subleased or assigned to another
Person. The Lease leases all useable square footage of the premise located at the leased Real Property. The Company Group does not owe any brokerage commission with
respect to any Real Property.
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5.28 Accounts. Schedule 5.28 sets forth a true, complete and correct list of the checking accounts, deposit accounts, safe deposit boxes, and brokerage, commodity and
similar accounts of the Company Group, including the account number and name, the name of each depositary or financial institution and the address where such account is
located and the authorized signatories thereto.

5.29 Tax Matters. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.29:

(a) (1) The Company Group has duly and timely filed all material Tax Returns which are required to be filed by or with respect to it, and has paid all Taxes
which have become due; (ii) all such Tax Returns are true, correct and complete and accurate in all material respects; (iii) there is no Action, pending or proposed in writing,
with respect to Taxes of the Company Group; (iv) no statute of limitations in respect of the assessment or collection of any Taxes of the Company Group for which a Lien may
be imposed on any of the Company Group’s assets has been waived or extended, which waiver or extension is in effect; (v) the Company Group has complied in all respects
with all applicable Laws relating to the reporting, payment, collection and withholding of Taxes and has duly and timely withheld or collected, paid over to the applicable
Taxing Authority and reported all Taxes (including income, social, security and other payroll Taxes) required to be withheld or collected by the Company Group; (vi) no stock
transfer Tax, sales Tax, use Tax, real estate transfer Tax or other similar Tax will be imposed on the transfer of the Ordinary Shares of the Company by the Shareholders to the
Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement; (vii) there is no Lien (other than Permitted Liens) for Taxes upon any of the assets of the Company Group; (vii) other than the ruling
application in connection with the agreement, there is no outstanding request for a ruling from any Taxing Authority, request for a consent by a Taxing Authority for a change in
a method of accounting, subpoena or request for information by any Taxing Authority, or agreement with any Taxing Authority, with respect to the Company Group; (ix) no
claim has ever been made by a Taxing Authority in a jurisdiction where the Company Group has not paid any Tax or filed Tax Returns, asserting that the Company Group is or
may be subject to Tax in such jurisdiction, the Company Group is not nor has it ever been subject to Tax in any country other than the respective countries of incorporation or
formation of the Company Group members by virtue of having a permanent establishment or other place of business in that country, and the members of the Company Group
are and have always been tax residents solely in their respective countries of incorporation or formation; (x) the Company Group has provided to Purchaser true, complete and
correct copies of all Tax Returns relating to, and all audit reports and correspondence relating to each proposed adjustment, if any, made by any Taxing Authority with respect
to, any taxable period ending after December 31, 2014; (xi) is not, and has ever been, a party to any Tax sharing or Tax allocation Contract; (xii) the Company Group is and has
never been included in any consolidated, combined or unitary Tax Return; (xiii) to the knowledge of the Company, no issue has been raised by a Taxing Authority in any prior
Action relating to the Company Group with respect to any Tax for any period which, by application of the same or similar principles, could reasonably be expected to result in a
proposed Tax deficiency of the Company Group for any other period; and (xiv) the Company Group has not requested any extension of time within which to file any Tax
Return, which Tax Return has since not been filed.
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(b) The Company Group will not be required to include any item of income or exclude any item of deduction for any taxable period ending after the Closing
Date as a result of the use of a method of accounting with respect to any transaction that occurred on or before the Closing Date.

(c) The unpaid Taxes of the Company Group (i) did not, as of the most recent fiscal month end, exceed the reserve for Tax liability (rather than any reserve
for deferred Taxes established to reflect timing differences between book and Tax income) set forth on the Unaudited Financial Statements and (ii) will not exceed that reserve
as adjusted for the passage of time through the Closing Date in accordance with the past custom and practice of the Company in filing its Tax Return.

(d) The Company Group has been in compliance in all respects with all applicable transfer pricing laws and legal requirements. The prices for any property or
services (or for the use of any property), including interest and other prices for financial services, provided by or to the Company Group are arm’s-length prices for purposes of
the relevant transfer pricing laws, including Section 85A of the Ordinance (or any comparable provisions of state, local or foreign Legal Requirements).

(e) The Company Group has never made any election to be treated nor has it claimed any benefits as a “Benefited Enterprise” Mifaal Mutav) nor taken any
position of being a “Preferred Enterprise” (Mifaal Muadaf) or a “Technology Enterprise” (Mifaal Technology) under the Law for Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959.

(f) The Company is duly registered for the purposes of Israeli value added Taxes (‘VAT”) and has complied in all respects with all requirements concerning
VAT. The Company (i) has not made any exempt transactions (as defined in the Israel Value Added Tax Law of 1975) and there are no circumstances by reason of which there
might not be an entitlement to full credit of all VAT chargeable or paid on inputs, supplies, and other transactions and imports made by it, (ii) has collected and timely remitted
to the relevant Tax authority all output VAT which it is required to collect and remit under any Legal Requirements, and (iii) has not received a refund for input VAT for which
it is not entitled under any Legal Requirements. The Company Group (other than the Company) is not required to register in Israel for Israeli VAT purposes.

(g) The Company Group does not participate and has never participated or engaged in any transaction listed in Section 131(g) of the Ordinance and the
Income Tax Regulations (Reportable Tax Planning), 5767-2006 promulgated thereunder, or any similar provision under any other local or foreign Tax Legal Requirement. The
Company Group is not subject to any reporting obligations under Sections 131D and 131E of the Ordinance or any similar provision under any other local or foreign Tax Legal
Requirement, and including with respect to VAT.
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(h) The Company Group is not nor has it ever been a real estate corporation {gud Mekarke’in) within the meaning of this term under Section 1 of the Israeli
Land Taxation Law (Appreciation and Acquisition), 5723-1963.

(i) The Equity Incentive Plan is deemed approved by, or deemed approved by passage of time without objection by, the ITA. All 102 Company Securities
which were issued under the Plan have been granted and issued, as applicable, in compliance with the applicable requirements of Section 102 of the Ordinance and the written
requirements and guidance of the ITA, including the filing of the necessary documents with the ITA, the appointment of an authorized trustee to hold the Company Securities,
and the due deposit of such Company Securities with the 102 trustee pursuant to the terms of Section 102 of the Ordinance and the guidance published by the ITA on July 24,
2012 and clarification dated November 6, 2012. All Tax rulings, and filings with the ITA relating to the Equity Incentive Plan and any award thereunder have been provided to
Purchaser.

5.30 Environmental Laws.

(a) Except as set forth in Schedule 5.30, the Company Group has not (i) received any written notice of any alleged claim, violation of or Liability under any
Environmental Law which has not heretofore been cured or for which there is any remaining liability; (ii) disposed of, emitted, discharged, handled, stored, transported, used or
released any Hazardous Materials, arranged for the disposal, discharge, storage or release of any Hazardous Materials, or exposed any employee or other individual to any
Hazardous Materials so as to give rise to any Liability or corrective or remedial obligation under any Environmental Laws; or (iii) entered into any agreement that may require it
to guarantee, reimburse, pledge, defend, hold harmless or indemnify any other Person with respect to liabilities arising out of Environmental Laws or the Hazardous Materials
Activities of the Company Group.

(b) The Company Group has delivered to Purchaser copies of all material Permits in its possession concerning the Hazardous Materials Activities of the
Company Group.

(c) Except as set forth on Schedule 5.30(c), there are no Hazardous Materials in, on, or under any properties owned, leased or used at any time by the
Company Group such as could give rise to any material liability or corrective or remedial obligation of the Company Group under any Environmental Laws.

5.31 Finders’ Fees. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.31, there is no investment banker, broker, finder or other intermediary which has been retained by or is authorized
to act on behalf of the Company Group or any of Affiliates who might be entitled to any fee or commission from the Company, Merger Sub, Purchaser or any of their Affiliates
upon consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

5.32 Powers of Attorney and Suretyships. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.32, the Company Group does not have any general or special powers of attorney

outstanding (whether as grantor or grantee thereof) or any obligation or liability (whether actual, accrued, accruing, contingent, or otherwise) as guarantor, surety, co-signer,
endorser, co-maker, indemnitor or otherwise in respect of the obligation of any Person.
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5.33 Directors and Officers. Schedule 5.33 sets forth a true, correct and complete list of all directors and officers of the Company Group.

5.34 Anti-Money Laundering Laws. The operations of the Company Group are and have been conducted at all times in compliance with anti-money laundering statutes
in all applicable jurisdictions, the rules and regulations thereunder and any related or similar rules, regulations or guidelines, issued, administered or enforced by any
governmental authority (collectively, the “Money Laundering Laws”), and no Action involving the Company Group with respect to the Money Laundering Laws is pending or,
to the knowledge of the Company, threatened.

5.35 Insurance. All forms of insurance owned or held by and insuring the Company Group are set forth on Schedule 5.36, and such policies are in full force and effect.
All premiums with respect to such policies covering all periods up to and including the Closing Date have been paid, and no notice of cancellation or termination has been
received with respect to any such policy which was not replaced on substantially similar terms prior to the date of such cancellation or termination. There is no existing default
or event which, with or without the passage of time or the giving of notice or both, would constitute as noncompliance with any such policy or constitute a default under any
such policy or entitle any insurer to terminate or cancel any such policy. Such policies will not in any way be affected by or terminate or lapse by reason of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement or the Additional Agreements. The insurance policies to which the Company Group is a party are sufficient for compliance with all
requirements of all Contracts to which the Company Group is a party or by which the Company Group is bound. In the three (3) years preceding the date of this Agreement, the
Company Group has not been refused any insurance with respect to its assets or operations or had its coverage limited by any insurance carrier to which it has applied for any
such insurance or with which it has carried insurance. The Company Group does not have any self-insurance arrangements.

5.36 Related Party Transactions. Except as set forth in Schedule 5.36, as contemplated by this Agreement or as provided in the Financial Statements, no Affiliate of the
Company Group (a) is a party to any Contract, or has otherwise entered into any transaction, understanding or arrangement, with the Company Group or (b) owns any property
or right, tangible or intangible, which is used by the Company Group. None of the contracts listed in Schedule 5.36 was entered into on a basis other than on arm’s length.

ARTICLE VI
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PURCHASER AND MERGER SUB

Except as disclosed in the Purchaser SEC Documents filed with or furnished to the SEC prior to the date of this Agreement (other than any risk factor
disclosures or other similar cautionary or predictive statements therein), Purchaser and Merger Sub (the “Purchaser Parties”) hereby represent and warrant to the Company that
each of the following representations and warranties are true, correct and complete as of the date of this Agreement and as of the Closing Date:

6.1 Corporate Existence and Power. Purchaser is a corporation duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the Delaware. Merger Sub is a

company duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the State of Israel and is not a “defaulting company” as defined in the Companies Law. Merger Sub does not hold
and has not held any material assets or incurred any material liabilities, and has not carried on any business activities other than in connection with the Merger.
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6.2 Corporate Authorization. The execution, delivery and performance by the Purchaser Parties of this Agreement and the Additional Agreements and the
consummation by the Purchaser Parties of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby are within the corporate powers of the Purchaser Parties and have been duly
authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Purchaser Parties. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Purchaser Parties and it
constitutes, and upon its execution and delivery, the Additional Agreements will constitute, a valid and legally binding agreement of the Purchaser Parties, enforceable against it
in accordance with its terms, except as may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally
and by general principles of equity. This Agreement and the other Additional Agreements and the transactions contemplated thereunder have been duly approved by the
Purchaser, in its capacity as sole shareholder of Merger Sub. The affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Purchaser Common Stock entitled to vote
at the Purchaser Stockholder Meeting, assuming a quorum is present, to approve the adoption of the Merger and this Agreement is the only vote of any of Purchaser’s capital
stock necessary in connection with the entry into this Agreement or any Additional Agreement by Purchaser and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby, including the Closing (the “Purchaser Stockholder Approval”).

6.3 Governmental Authorization. Assuming the accuracy of the representations and warranties set forth inSection 5.3, neither the execution, delivery nor performance
of this Agreement requires any consent, approval, license or other action by or in respect of, or registration, declaration or filing with any Authority.

6.4 Non-Contravention. The execution, delivery and performance by the Purchaser Parties of this Agreement does not and will not (i) contravene or conflict with the
organizational or constitutive documents of the Purchaser Parties, or (ii) contravene or conflict with or constitute a violation of any provision of any Law, judgment, injunction,
order, writ, or decree binding upon the Purchaser Parties.

6.5 Finders’ Fees. Except for any liabilities for fees or commissions described on Schedule 5.31 (which are the responsibility of the Company), there is no investment
banker, broker, finder or other intermediary which has been retained by or is authorized to act on behalf of the Purchaser Parties or their Affiliates who might be entitled to any
fee or commission from the Company or any of its Affiliates upon consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any of the Additional Agreements.

6.6 Issuance of Shares. The Closing Payment Shares, when issued in accordance with this Agreement, will be duly authorized and validly issued, and will be fully paid

and nonassessable.
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6.7 Capitalization.

(a) The authorized capital stock of Purchaser consists of 30,000,000 shares of Purchaser Common Stock, and 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value
$0.0001 per share (‘“Purchaser Preferred Stock™) of which 10,062,500 shares of Purchaser Common Stock (inclusive of Purchaser Common Stock included in any outstanding
Purchaser Units), and no shares of Purchaser Preferred Stock are issued and outstanding. In addition, 10,950,000 Purchaser Warrants (inclusive of Purchaser Public Warrants
included in any outstanding Purchaser Units) are issued and outstanding. No other shares of capital stock or other voting securities of Purchaser are issued, reserved for issuance
or outstanding. All issued and outstanding shares of Purchaser Common Stock are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and not subject to or issued in
violation of any purchase option, right of first refusal, preemptive right, subscription right or any similar right under any provision of the Delaware General Corporation Law,
the Purchaser’s organizational documents or any contract to which Purchaser is a party or by which Purchaser is bound. Except as set forth in the Purchaser’s organizational
documents, there are no outstanding contractual obligations of Purchaser to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of Purchaser Common Stock or any capital
equity of Purchaser. There are no outstanding contractual obligations of Purchaser to provide funds to, or make any investment (in the form of a loan, capital contribution or
otherwise) in, any other Person.

(b) The Merger Sub is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares with no par value (Merger Sub Common Stock™) of which 100,000 shares of Merger Sub
Common Stock are issued and outstanding as of the date hereof. No other shares or other voting securities of Merger Sub are issued, reserved for issuance or outstanding. All
issued and outstanding shares of Merger Sub Common Stock are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable and not subject to or issued in violation of any
purchase option, right of first refusal, preemptive right, subscription right or any similar right under any provision of Israeli law, the Merger Sub’s organizational documents or
any contract to which Merger Sub is a party or by which Merger Sub is bound. Except as set forth in the Merger Sub’s organizational documents, there are no outstanding
contractual obligations of Merger Sub to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of Merger Sub Common Stock or any capital equity of Merger Sub. There are no
outstanding contractual obligations of Merger Sub to provide funds to, or make any investment (in the form of a loan, capital contribution or otherwise) in, any other Person.

6.8 Information Supplied. None of the information supplied or to be supplied by the Purchaser Parties expressly for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the filings
with the SEC and mailings to Purchaser’s stockholders with respect to the solicitation of proxies to approve the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Additional
Agreements, if applicable, including the SEC Statement or any Other Filings, or in any other Additional Purchaser SEC Documents, will, at the date of filing and/ or mailing, at
the time of the Purchaser Stockholder Meeting or at the Effective Time, as the case may be, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact
required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading (subject to the
qualifications and limitations set forth in the materials provided by Purchaser or that is included in the Purchaser SEC Documents, the Additional Purchaser SEC Documents,
the SEC Statement or any Other Filing).
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6.9 Trust Fund. As of the date of this Agreement, Purchaser has at least $70,881,150.89 as of June 30, 2019 in the trust fund established by Purchaser for the benefit of
its public stockholders (the “Trust Fund”) in a trust account maintained by Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company (the ‘Trustee”) at Morgan Stanley (the ‘Trust
Account”), and such monies are invested in “government securities” (as such term is defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended) and held in trust by the
Trustee pursuant to the Investment Management Trust Agreement, dated as of December 18, 2018, between Purchaser and the Trustee (the “Trust Agreement”). The Trust
Agreement is valid and in full force and effect and enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other similar
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and by general principles of equity, and has not been amended or modified. There are no separate agreements, side
letters or other agreements or understandings (whether written or unwritten, express or implied) that would cause the description of the Trust Agreement in the Purchaser SEC
Documents to be inaccurate in any material respect and/or that would entitle any Person (other than stockholders of Purchaser holding shares of Purchaser Common Stock sold
in Purchaser’s IPO who shall have elected to redeem their shares of Purchaser Common Stock pursuant to the Certificate of Incorporation) to any portion of the proceeds in the
Trust Account. Prior to the Closing, none of the funds held in the Trust Account may be released except in accordance with the Trust Agreement and the Purchaser’s
organizational documents. Purchaser has performed all material obligations required to be performed by it to date under, and is not in material default or delinquent in
performance or any other respect (claimed or actual) in connection with, the Trust Agreement, and, to the knowledge of Purchaser, no event has occurred which, with due notice
or lapse of time or both, would constitute such a material default thereunder. There are no claims or proceedings pending with respect to the Trust Account.

6.10 Listing. The Purchaser Units, Purchaser Common Stock and Purchaser Warrants are listed on the NYSE American, with trading tickets CHACU, CHAC,
CHACW

6.11 Board Approval. The Purchaser’s board of directors (including any required committee or subgroup of such board) has, as of the date of this Agreement,
unanimously (i) declared the advisability of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, (ii) determined that the transactions contemplated hereby are in the best interests
of the stockholders of Purchaser and (iii) determined that the transactions contemplated hereby constitutes a “Business Combination” as such term is defined in Purchaser’s
amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws.
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6.12 Purchaser SEC Documents and Financial Statements. Purchaser has filed all forms, reports, schedules, statements and other documents, including any exhibits
thereto, required to be filed or furnished by Purchaser with the SEC since Purchaser’s formation under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act, together with any amendments,
restatements or supplements thereto, and will use commercially reasonable efforts to file all such forms, reports, schedules, statements and other documents required to be filed
subsequent to the date of this Agreement (the “ Additional Purchaser SEC Documents”). Purchaser has made available to the Company copies in the form filed with the SEC of
all of the following, except to the extent available in full without redaction on the SEC’s website through EDGAR for at least two (2) days prior to the date of this Agreement:
(i) Purchaser’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K for each fiscal year of Purchaser beginning with the first year Purchaser was required to file such a form, (ii) all proxy statements
relating to Purchaser’s meetings of stockholders (whether annual or special) held, and all information statements relating to stockholder consents, since the beginning of the first
fiscal year referred to in clause (i) above, (iii) its Form 8-Ks filed since the beginning of the first fiscal year referred to in clause (i) above, and (iv) all other forms, reports,
registration statements and other documents (other than preliminary materials if the corresponding definitive materials have been provided to the Company pursuant to this
Section 6.12) filed by Purchaser with the SEC since Purchaser’s formation (the forms, reports, registration statements and other documents referred to in clauses (i), (ii), (iii),
and (iv) above, whether or not available through EDGAR, are, collectively, the (“Purchaser SEC Documents”). The Purchaser SEC Documents were, and the Additional
Purchaser SEC Documents will be, prepared in all material respects in accordance with the requirements of the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as
the case may be, and the rules and regulations thereunder. The Purchaser SEC Documents did not, and the Additional Purchaser SEC Documents will not, at the time they were
or are filed, as the case may be, with the SEC (except to the extent that information contained in any Purchaser SEC Document or Additional Purchaser SEC Document has been
or is revised or superseded by a later filed Purchaser SEC Document or Additional Purchaser SEC Document, then on the date of such filing) contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; provided, however, that the foregoing does not apply to statements in or omissions in any information supplied or to be supplied by the
Company Group expressly for inclusion or incorporation by reference in any SEC Statement or Other Filing. As used in this Section 6.12, the term “file” shall be broadly
construed to include any manner in which a document or information is furnished, supplied or otherwise made available to the SEC.

6.13 Certain Business Practices. Neither the Purchaser, nor any director, officer, agent or employee of the Purchaser (in their capacities as such) has (i) used any funds
for unlawful contributions, gifts, entertainment or other unlawful expenses relating to political activity, (ii) made any unlawful payment to foreign or domestic government
officials or employees, to foreign or domestic political parties or campaigns or violated any provision of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977 or (iii) made any other
unlawful payment. Neither the Purchaser, nor any director, officer, agent or employee of the Purchaser (nor any Person acting on behalf of any of the foregoing, but solely in his
or her capacity as a director, officer, employee or agent of the Purchaser) has, since the IPO, directly or indirectly, given or agreed to give any gift or similar benefit in any
material amount to any customer, supplier, governmental employee or other Person who is or may be in a position to help or hinder the Purchaser or assist the Purchaser in
connection with any actual or proposed transaction, which, if not given or continued in the future, would reasonably be expected to adversely affect the business or prospects of
the Purchaser and would reasonably be expected to subject the Purchaser to suit or penalty in any private or governmental litigation or proceeding.

6.14 Anti-Money Laundering Laws. The operations of the Purchaser are and have been conducted at all times in compliance with the Money Laundering Laws, and no
Action involving the Purchaser with respect to the Money Laundering Laws is pending or, to the knowledge of the Purchaser, threatened.
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6.15 Affiliate Transactions. Except as described in the Purchaser SEC Documents, there are no transactions, agreements, arrangements or understandings between any
of Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries, on the one hand, and any director, officer, employee, stockholder, warrant holder or Affiliate of Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries.

6.16 Litigation. There is no (i) suit, action, charge, complaint, arbitration or similar proceeding pending, or, to the knowledge of Purchaser, threatened against Purchaser
or any of its subsidiaries and no such suit, action, charge, complaint, arbitration or similar proceeding has been filed against Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its or
their assets or properties, or (ii) judgment, decree, injunction, rule or order of any Authority outstanding against Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries or any of its or their assets
or properties. Neither Purchaser nor any of its subsidiaries is party to a settlement or similar agreement regarding any of the matters set forth in the preceding sentence that
contains any ongoing obligations, restrictions or liabilities (of any nature) that are material to Purchaser and its subsidiaries.

6.17 Expenses, Indebtedness and Other Liabilities. Except as set forth in Schedule 6.17 Purchaser does not have any Indebtedness or other liabilities.
6.18 Tax Matters.

(a) (i) The Purchaser has duly and timely filed all material Tax Returns which are required to be filed by or with respect to it, and has paid all Taxes which
have become due; (ii) all such Tax Returns are true, correct and complete and accurate in all material respects; (iii) there is no Action, pending or proposed in writing, with
respect to Taxes of the Purchaser; (iv) no statute of limitations in respect of the assessment or collection of any Taxes of the Purchaser for which a Lien may be imposed on any
of the Purchaser’s assets has been waived or extended, which waiver or extension is in effect; (v) the Purchaser has complied in all respects with all applicable Laws relating to
the reporting, payment, collection and withholding of Taxes and has duly and timely withheld or collected, paid over to the applicable Taxing Authority and reported all Taxes
(including income, social, security and other payroll Taxes) required to be withheld or collected by the Purchaser; (vi) no stock transfer Tax, sales Tax, use Tax, real estate
transfer Tax or other similar Tax will be imposed on the transfer of the Ordinary Shares of the Purchaser by the Shareholders to the Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement; (vii)
there is no Lien (other than Permitted Liens) for Taxes upon any of the assets of the Purchaser; (viii) other than the Israeli Tax Ruling, there is no outstanding request for a
ruling from any Taxing Authority, request for a consent by a Taxing Authority for a change in a method of accounting, subpoena or request for information by any Taxing
Authority, or agreement with any Taxing Authority, with respect to the Purchaser; (ix) no claim has ever been made by a Taxing Authority in a jurisdiction where the Purchaser
has not paid any Tax or filed Tax Returns, asserting that the Purchaser is or may be subject to Tax in such jurisdiction, the Purchaser is not nor has it ever been subject to Tax in
any country other than the respective countries of incorporation or formation of the Purchaser members by virtue of having a permanent establishment or other place of business
in that country, and the members of the Purchaser are and have always been tax residents solely in their respective countries of incorporation or formation; (x) the Purchaser has
provided to Purchaser true, complete and correct copies of all Tax Returns relating to, and all audit reports and correspondence relating to each proposed adjustment, if any,
made by any Taxing Authority with respect to, any taxable period ending after December 31, 2014; (xi) there is no outstanding power of attorney from the Purchaser
authorizing anyone to act on behalf of the Purchaser in connection with any Tax, Tax Return or Action relating to any Tax or Tax Return of the Purchaser; (xii) the Purchaser is
not, and has ever been, a party to any Tax sharing or Tax allocation Contract; (xiii) the Purchaser is and has never been included in any consolidated, combined or unitary Tax
Return; (xiv) to the knowledge of the Purchaser, no issue has been raised by a Taxing Authority in any prior Action relating to the Purchaser with respect to any Tax for any
period which, by application of the same or similar principles, could reasonably be expected to result in a proposed Tax deficiency of the Purchaser for any other period; and
(xiv) the Purchaser has not requested any extension of time within which to file any Tax Return, which Tax Return has since not been filed.
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(b) The Purchaser will not be required to include any item of income or exclude any item of deduction for any taxable period ending after the Closing Date as
a result of the use of a method of accounting with respect to any transaction that occurred on or before the Closing Date.

(c) The unpaid Taxes of the Purchaser (i) did not, as of the most recent fiscal month end, exceed the reserve for Tax liability (rather than any reserve for
deferred Taxes established to reflect timing differences between book and Tax income) set forth on the Unaudited Financial Statements and (ii) will not exceed that reserve as
adjusted for the passage of time through the Closing Date in accordance with the past custom and practice of the Purchaser in filing its Tax Return.

(d) The Purchaser has been in compliance in all respects with all applicable transfer pricing laws and legal requirements. The prices for any property or
services (or for the use of any property), including interest and other prices for financial services, provided by or to the Purchaser are arm’s-length prices for purposes of the
relevant transfer pricing laws.

(e) The Purchaser is not aware of any fact or circumstance that would reasonably be expected to prevent the Merger from qualifying as a “reorganization”
within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code.

ARTICLE V11
COVENANTS OF THE PARTIES PENDING CLOSING

7.1 Conduct of the Business. Each of the Company and the Purchaser covenants and agrees that:

(a) from the date hereof through the Closing Date, each party shall conduct business only in the ordinary course, (including the payment of accounts payable
and the collection of accounts receivable), consistent with past practices, and shall not enter into any material transactions outside the ordinary course of business without the
prior written consent of the other party, and shall use its reasonable best efforts to preserve intact its business relationships with employees, clients, suppliers and other third
parties. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, from the date hereof until and including the Closing Date, without the other party’s prior written consent (which shall

not be unreasonably withheld), neither party shall, and the Company shall cause its Subsidiaries not to:

(1) amend, modify or supplement its certificate of incorporation and bylaws or other organizational or governing documents;
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(i1) amend, waive any provision of, terminate prior to its scheduled expiration date, or otherwise compromise in any way, any material Contract or any
other right or asset of the Company or Purchaser;

(iii) modify, amend or enter into any contract, agreement, lease, license or commitment, which (A) is with respect to Real Property, (B) extends for a
term of one year or more or (C) obligates the payment of more than $500,000 (individually or in the aggregate);

(iv) make any capital expenditures in excess of $500,000 (individually or in the aggregate);

(v) sell, lease, license or otherwise dispose of any of the Company Group’s or Purchaser’s assets or assets covered by any Contract except pursuant to
existing contracts or commitments disclosed herein;

(vi) accept returns of products sold from Inventory except in the ordinary course, consistent with past practice;
(vii) pay, declare or promise to pay any dividends or other distributions with respect to its capital stock or other equity securities, or pay, declare or
promise to pay any other payments to any stockholder or shareholder or other equityholder (other than payment of salary, benefits, leases, commissions and other regular

and necessary similar payments in the ordinary course);

(viii) obtain or incur any loan or other Indebtedness, including drawings under the Company Group’s or the Purchaser’s existing lines of credit, or
repay or satisfy any Indebtedness other than repayment of Indebtedness in accordance with the terms thereof;

(ix) suffer or incur any Lien, except for Permitted Liens, on the Company Group’s assets;

(x) suffer any damage, destruction or loss of property related to any of the Company Group’s or the Purchaser’s assets, whether or not covered by
insurance;

(xi) delay, accelerate or cancel any receivables or Indebtedness owed to the Company Group or the Purchaser or write off or make further reserves
against the same;

(xii) merge or consolidate with or acquire any other Person or be acquired by any other Person;
(xiii) permit any insurance policy protecting any of the Company Group’s or the Purchaser’s assets to lapse, unless simultaneously with such lapse, a

replacement policy underwritten by an insurance company of nationally recognized standing having comparable deductions and providing coverage equal to or greater
than the coverage under the lapsed policy for substantially similar premiums or less is in full force and effect;
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(xiv) adopt any severance, retention or other employee plans, amend any of its employee plans or fail to continue to make timely contributions thereto
in accordance with the terms thereof;

(xv) institute, settle or agree to settle any litigation, action, proceeding or investigation before any court or governmental body in each case in excess of
$500,000 (exclusive of any amounts covered by insurance) or that imposes injunctive or other non-monetary relief on such party;

(xvi) make any change in its accounting principles or methods or write down the value of any Inventory or assets;

(xvii) change the place of business or jurisdiction of organization;

(xviii) issue, redeem or repurchase any capital stock, membership interests or other securities, or issue any securities exchangeable for or convertible
into any shares of its capital stock or other securities (other than any redemption by the Purchaser of its stockholder pursuant to Section 7.6, or as otherwise contemplated
herein);

(xix) make or change any material Tax election or change any annual Tax accounting periods;

(xx) enter into any transaction with or distribute or advance any assets or property to any of its Affiliates other than the payment of salary and benefits
in the ordinary course; or

(xxi) agree to do any of the foregoing.
(b) Neither party shall knowingly and intentionally (i) take or agree to take any action that might make any representation or warranty of such party

inaccurate or misleading in any respect at, or as of any time prior to, the Closing Date or (ii) omit to take, or agree to omit to take, any action necessary to prevent any such
representation or warranty from being inaccurate or misleading in any respect at any such time.
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(c) From the date hereof through the Closing Date, neither the Company Group, on the one hand, nor the Purchaser, on the other hand, shall, and such Persons
shall use reasonable best efforts to cause each of their respective officers, directors, Affiliates, managers, consultant, employees, representatives and agents not to, directly or
indirectly, (i) encourage, solicit, initiate, engage or participate in negotiations with any Person concerning any Alternative Transaction, (ii) take any other action intended or
designed to facilitate the efforts of any Person relating to a possible Alternative Transaction or (iii) approve, recommend or enter into any Alternative Transaction or any
Contract related to any Alternative Transaction. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “ Alternative Transaction” shall mean any of the following transactions involving the
Company Group or the Purchaser (other than the transactions contemplated by this Agreement): (i) any merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination or other
similar transaction, or (ii) any sale, lease, exchange, transfer or other disposition of a material portion of the assets of such Person (other than sales of inventory in the ordinary
course of business) or any class or series of the capital stock or other equity interests of the Company Group or the Purchaser in a single transaction or series of transactions. In
the event that there is an unsolicited proposal for, or an indication of a serious interest in entering into, an Alternative Transaction, communicated in writing to the Company
Group or the Purchaser or any of their respective representatives or agents (each, an “Alternative Proposal”), such party shall as promptly as practicable (and in any event within
one (1) Business Day after receipt) advise the other parties to this Agreement orally and in writing of any Alternative Proposal and the material terms and conditions of any such
Alternative Proposal (including any changes thereto) and the identity of the person making any such Alternative Proposal. The Company and the Purchaser shall keep the other
parties informed on a reasonably current basis of material developments with respect to any such Alternative Proposal.

7.2 Access to Information. From the date hereof until and including the Closing Date, the Company and the Purchaser shall each, to the best of its ability, (a) continue
to give the other party, its legal counsel and other representatives full access to the offices, properties and, Books and Records, (b) furnish to the other party, its legal counsel
and other representatives such information relating to the business of the Company Group and the Purchaser as such Persons may request and (c) cause the employees, legal
counsel, accountants and representatives to cooperate with the other party in its investigation of the Business; provided that no investigation pursuant to this Section (or any
investigation prior to the date hereof) shall affect any representation or warranty given by the Company or the Purchaser and, provided further, that any investigation pursuant to
this Section shall be conducted in such manner as not to interfere unreasonably with the conduct of the Business of the Company. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in
this Agreement, neither party shall be required to provide the access described above or disclose any information if doing so is reasonably likely to (i) result in a waiver of
attorney-client privilege, work product doctrine or similar privilege or (ii) violate any contract to which it is a party or to which it is subject or applicable Law.

7.3 Notices of Certain Events. Each of the Purchaser and the Company shall promptly notify the other party of:
(a) any notice or other communication from any Person alleging or raising the possibility that the consent of such Person is or may be required in connection
with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or that the transactions contemplated by this Agreement might give rise to any Action or other rights by or on behalf of
such Person or result in the loss of any rights or privileges of the Company (or the Purchaser, post-Closing) to any such Person or create any Lien on any Company Capital

Stock or capital stock of the Purchaser or any of the Company Group’s or the Purchaser’s assets;

(b) any notice or other communication from any Authority in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Additional Agreements;
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(c) any Actions commenced or threatened against, relating to or involving or otherwise affecting either party or any of their stockholders or their equity, assets
or business or that relate to the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the Additional Agreements;

(d) the occurrence of any fact or circumstance which constitutes or results, or would reasonably be expected to constitute or result in a Material Adverse
Change; and

(e) any inaccuracy of any representation or warranty of such party contained in this Agreement at any time during the term hereof, or any failure of such party
to comply with or satisfy any covenant, condition or agreement to be complied with or satisfied by it hereunder, that would reasonably be expected to cause any of the
conditions set forth in Article X not to be satisfied.

7.4 Annual and Interim Financial Statements. From the date hereof through the Closing Date, within sixty (60) calendar days following the end of each three-month
quarterly period, the Company shall deliver to Purchaser an unaudited consolidated summary of the Company Group’s earnings and an unaudited consolidated balance sheet for
the period from the Balance Sheet Date through the end of such quarterly period and the applicable comparative period in the preceding fiscal year. The Company shall also
promptly deliver to Purchaser copies of any audited consolidated financial statements of the Company Group that the Company’s certified public accountants may issue.

7.5 SEC Filings.

(a) The Company acknowledges that:

(i) the Purchaser’s stockholders must approve the transactions contemplated by this Agreement prior to the transactions contemplated hereby being
consummated and that, in connection with such approval, the Purchaser must call a special meeting of its stockholders (the “Purchaser Stockholder Meeting”) requiring
Purchaser to prepare and file with the SEC a proxy statement and proxy card (the “Proxy Statement”);

(ii) the Purchaser will be required to file Quarterly and Annual reports that may be required to contain information about the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement; and

(iii) the Purchaser will be required to file Current Reports on Form 8-K to announce the transactions contemplated hereby and other significant events
that may occur in connection with such transactions.

(b) Purchaser shall call and hold the Purchaser Stockholder Meeting as promptly as practicable after the date of this Agreement for the purpose of seeking the
Purchaser Stockholder Approval, and Purchaser shall use reasonable best efforts to hold the Purchaser Stockholder Meeting as soon as practicable after the date of this
Agreement and Purchaser shall consult in good faith with the Company with respect to the date on which such meeting is to be held. Purchaser shall use reasonable best efforts
to solicit from its stockholders proxies in favor of the approval and adoption of the Merger and this Agreement and shall take all other action reasonably necessary or advisable
to secure the Purchaser Stockholder Approval. The Company acknowledges that a substantial portion of the Proxy Statement shall include disclosure regarding the Company
and its management, operations and financial condition. Accordingly, the Company agrees to as promptly as reasonably practical provide Purchaser with such information as
shall be reasonably requested by Purchaser for inclusion in or attachment to the Proxy Statement, and that such information is accurate in all material respects and complies as to
form in all material respects with the requirements of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. The Company understands that such information
shall be included in the Proxy Statement and/or responses to comments from the SEC or its staff in connection therewith and mailings. The Company shall make, and cause
each Subsidiary to make, their managers, directors, officers and employees available to Purchaser and its counsel in connection with the drafting of such filings and mailings and
responding in a timely manner to comments from the SEC.
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7.6 Trust Account. The Purchaser covenants that it shall make appropriate arrangements to cause the funds in the Trust Account to be disbursed in accordance with the
Trust Agreement and for the payment of (i) all amounts payable to stockholders of Purchaser holding Purchaser Units or Purchaser Common Stock who shall have validly
redeemed their Purchaser Units or Purchaser Common Stock upon acceptance by the Purchaser of such Purchaser Units or Purchaser Common Stock (the “Purchaser
Redemption Amount”), (ii) the expenses to the third parties to which they are owed, and (iii) the remaining monies in the Trust Account to Purchaser.

7.7 Merger Proposal. As promptly as practicable after the execution and delivery of this Agreement: (i) Company and Merger Sub shall cause the merger proposal
(in the Hebrew language) in substantially the form annexed hereto as Exhibit H (the “Merger Proposal”) to be executed in accordance with Section 316 of the Companies Law;
and (ii) each of the Company and Merger Sub shall deliver the Merger Proposal to the Registrar of Companies within three days from the calling of the Company’s
shareholders’ meeting in accordance with Section 317(a) of the Companies Law. The Company and Merger Sub shall cause a copy of the Merger Proposal to be delivered to
each of their respective secured creditors, if any, no later than three days after the date on which the Merger Proposal is delivered to the Registrar of Companies, and each of
their respective material creditors, if any, no later than three days after the date on which the Merger Proposal is delivered to the Registrar of Companies, and shall promptly
inform their respective non-secured creditors of the Merger Proposal and its contents in accordance with Section 318 of the Companies Law and the regulations promulgated
thereunder. Promptly after the Company and Merger Sub shall have complied with the immediately preceding sentence and with paragraphs 7.9(a) through 7.9 (d) of this
Section 7.7, but in any event no more than three days following the date on which such notice was sent to the creditors, the Company and Merger Sub shall inform the Registrar
of Companies, in accordance with Section 317(b) of the Companies Law, that notice was given to their respective creditors under Section 318 of the Companies Law and the
regulations promulgated thereunder. In addition to the foregoing, the Company and, if applicable, Merger Sub, shall:

(a) publish a notice to its creditors, stating that a Merger Proposal was submitted to the Registrar of Companies and that the creditors may review the Merger
Proposal at the office of the Registrar of Companies, the Company’s registered offices or Merger Sub’s registered offices, as applicable, and at such other locations as the
Company or Merger Sub, as applicable, may determine, in (i) two daily Hebrew newspapers and a newspaper in such other locations as required by the Companies Regulations
(Merger), 5760-2000, on the day that the Merger Proposal is submitted to the Registrar of Companies, and (ii) if required, in such other manner as may be required by any
applicable law and regulations;
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(b) within four business days from the date of submitting the Merger Proposal to the Registrar of Companies, send a notice by registered mail to all of the
“Substantial Creditors” (as such term is defined in the regulations promulgated under the Companies Law) that the Company or Merger Sub, as applicable, is aware of, in which
it shall state that a Merger Proposal was submitted to the Registrar of Companies and that the creditors may review the Merger Proposal at such additional locations, if such
locations were determined in the notice referred to in paragraph (a) of this Section 7.7;

(c) display in a prominent place at the Company’s premises a copy of the notice published in a daily Hebrew newspaper, no later than three business days
following the day on which the Merger Proposal was submitted to the Registrar of Companies; and

(d) in accordance with customary practice, of the Registrar of Companies, after Purchaser and the Company determine the intended date for the Closing,
Merger Sub and the Company shall request that the Registrar of Companies shall declare the Merger effective and issue the Certificate of Merger upon such date as Purchaser

and the Company shall have determined.
For the purposes of this Section 7.7 only, the term “business day” shall have the meaning set forth in the Israeli Companies Regulations (Merger) 5760-2000

promulgated under the Companies Law.

7.8 Company’s Shareholders Meeting.

(a) The Company shall take all action necessary under applicable Laws to call, give notice of and hold the Company’s shareholders’ meeting for purposes of
seeking the Company’s shareholders’ approval for the Agreement, the transactions contemplated thereunder and other related matters, such as approving the purchase of a run
off insurance pending Closing. The Company shall use reasonable best efforts to solicit from its shareholders proxies for voting on the matters to be voted on at the Company’s
shareholders’ meeting as contemplated under this Agreement. The Company shall call, notice, convene, hold, conduct and solicit all proxies in connection with the Company’s
shareholders’ meeting in compliance with all applicable Laws, including the Companies Law and the Charter Documents.

(b) The Company’s board of Directors shall recommend without reservation that Company’s shareholders vote in favor of granting their approval; and neither
the Company’s board of directors, nor any committee thereof, shall withhold, withdraw, amend, modify, change or propose or resolve to withhold, withdraw, amend, modify or
change, in each case in a manner materially adverse to Purchaser, the recommendation of the Company’s board of Directors that the Company’s shareholders vote in favor of

granting their approval.

(c) No later than three days after the approval of the Merger by the Company’s shareholders at the Company’s shareholders’ meeting, the Company shall (in
accordance with Section 317(b) of the Companies Law) inform the Registrar of Companies regarding the Company’s shareholders’ approval having been obtained.
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7.9 Merger Sub Shareholders Meeting No later than three Business Days after the execution of this Agreement, Merger Sub shall (in accordance with Section 317(b)
of the Companies Law and the regulations thereunder) inform the Registrar of Companies of such decision of Merger Sub’s shareholder with respect to the Merger.

7.10 Obligations of Merger Sub. Purchaser shall take all action necessary to cause Merger Sub to perform its obligations under this Agreement and to consummate the
transactions contemplated under this Agreement, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement.

7.11 11A Notice. Promptly following the execution of this Agreement, but not later than the Closing, in each case in accordance with the Israeli Encouragement of
Research, Development and Technological Innovation in the Industry Law, 5744-1984, the Company shall submit a written notice (the “ IIA Notice”) to the IIA regarding the
change in ownership of the Company effected as a result of the Merger and the transactions contemplated herein.

ARTICLE VIII
COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY

The Company agrees that:
8.1 Reporting and Compliance with Laws. From the date hereof through the Closing Date, the Company shall on behalf of the Company Group duly and timely file all
Tax Returns required to be filed with the applicable Taxing Authorities, pay any and all Taxes required by any Taxing Authority and duly observe and conform in all material

respects, to all applicable Laws and Orders.

8.2 Commercially Reasonable Efforts to Obtain Consents The Company shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to obtain each Company Consent set forth on
Schedule 8.2 and Governmental Approval as promptly as practicable hereafter.

8.3 Termination of Investor Rights Agreement. Effective as of the Closing Date, the Company shall cause the termination of the Amended and Restated Investors’
Rights Agreement, dated as of February 7, 2017, by and among the Company and the other parties thereto.

8.4 Company Shareholder Approval. The Company will not solicit its shareholders for the Company Shareholder Approval until August 11, 2019, and the Company
Shareholder Approval shall have been obtained by no later than August 19, 2019.
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ARTICLE IX
COVENANTS OF ALL PARTIES HERETO

The parties hereto covenant and agree that:

9.1 Commercially Reasonable Efforts; Further Assurances; Governmental Consents.

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each party (other than the Shareholders’ Representative) shall use its commercially reasonable
efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary or desirable under applicable Laws, or as reasonably requested by the other
parties, to consummate and implement expeditiously each of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including using reasonable best efforts to (i) obtain all necessary
actions, nonactions, waivers, consents, approvals and other authorizations from all applicable Authorities prior to the Effective Time, and (ii) avoid an Action or proceeding by
any Authority, and (iii) execute and deliver any additional instruments necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The parties hereto (other than
the Shareholders’ Representative) shall execute and deliver such other documents, certificates, agreements and other writings and take such other actions as may be necessary or
desirable in order to consummate or implement expeditiously each of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(b) Without limiting the generality of Section 9.1(a), each party hereto (other than the Shareholders’ Representative) agrees to, and shall cause its respective
Affiliates to, make as promptly as practicable any filings or notifications required to be made by it under any other applicable antitrust, competition, or trade regulation Law and
to supply as promptly as practicable to the appropriate Authority any additional information and documentary material that may be requested by such Authority pursuant to the
applicable antitrust, competition, or trade regulation Law.

(c) Subject to applicable Law, each of the Company and Purchaser agrees to (i) cooperate and consult with the other regarding obtaining and making all
notifications and filings with Authorities, (ii) furnish to the other such information and assistance as the other may reasonably request in connection with its preparation of any
notifications or filings, (iii) keep the other apprised of the status of matters relating to the completion of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including promptly
furnishing the other with copies of notices or other communications received by such party from, or given by such party to, any third party or any Authority with respect to such
transactions, (iv) permit the other party to review and incorporate the other party’s reasonable comments in any communication to be given by it to any Authority with respect to
any filings required to be made with, or action or nonactions, waivers, expirations or terminations of waiting periods, clearances, consents or orders required to be obtained
from, such Authority in connection with execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (v) to the
extent reasonably practicable, consult with the other in advance of and not participate in any meeting or discussion relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement,
either in person or by telephone, with any Authority in connection with the proposed transactions unless it gives the other party the opportunity to attend and observe; provided,
however, in each of clauses (iii) and (iv) above, that materials may be redacted (A) to remove references concerning the valuation of such party and its Affiliates, (B) as
necessary to comply with contractual arrangements or applicable Laws, and (C) as necessary to address reasonable attorney-client or other privilege or confidentiality concerns.

9.2 Compliance with SPAC Agreements. The Company and Purchaser shall comply with each of the agreements set forth onSchedule 9.2.
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9.3 Cooperation with SEC Statements.

(a) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, it is understood and agreed that as soon as reasonably practicable, but in no event later than
five (5) Business Days after receiving all necessary information relating to the Company from the Company for inclusion in the Proxy Statement, the Purchaser shall prepare
and file with the SEC the Proxy Statement, or such other form, statement, or report as may be required under the United States federal securities laws (such Proxy Statement, or
such other report or form, whether in preliminary or definitive form, and any amendments or supplements thereto, the “SEC Statement”) for the purpose of seeking the
Purchaser Stockholder Approval. Each party (other than the Shareholders’ Representative) shall use its reasonable best efforts to resolve all SEC comments on the SEC
Statement as promptly as practicable after such filing, and Purchaser and the Company shall take all action reasonably required (other than qualifying to do business in any
jurisdiction in which it is not now so qualified or filing a general consent to service of process) to be taken under any applicable state securities Laws in connection with the
issuance of Purchaser Common Stock pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. Each of Purchaser and the Company shall furnish all information as may be reasonably requested
by the other parties in connection with any such action and the preparation, filing and distribution of the SEC Statement and any Other Filing. As promptly as practicable after
all SEC comments on the SEC Statement shall have been resolved, Purchaser shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause the SEC Statement to be mailed to its stockholders as
of the record date for the Purchaser Stockholder Meeting.

(b) The Company shall provide Purchaser with all reasonable information concerning the business of the Company Group and the management, operations
and financial condition of the Company Group as is required by the SEC for inclusion in the SEC Statements (“Company Information”), including, all financial statements
required by relevant securities laws and regulations (the “Required Company Financial Statements™), which shall be prepared under such accounting principles and for such
periods as required by the forms, rules and regulations of the SEC or as requested by the SEC in connection with its review of the SEC Statement or any Other Filing. Subject to
the Company’s review and approval of any SEC Statement including Company Information and the consent of the Company’s auditor to the inclusion of the Required Company
Financial Statements in any SEC Statement (in each case, such approval or consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), the Company acknowledges and
agrees that Company Information (including the Required Company Financial Statements), or summaries thereof or extracts therefrom, may be included in the SEC Statement
and any other filings required under the Exchange Act, Securities Act or any other United States federal, foreign or blue sky laws (““ Other Filings”). In connection therewith,
each of Purchaser and the Company shall instruct their respective employees, counsel, financial advisors, auditors and other authorized representatives to reasonably cooperate
with the other parties and their respective employees, counsel, financial advisors, auditors and other authorized representatives as relevant if required to achieve the foregoing.
No filing of, or amendment or supplement to, the SEC Statement or any Other Filing will be made (in each case including documents incorporated by reference therein) by
either Purchaser or the Company without providing the other with a reasonable opportunity to review and comment thereon. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the
Company nor the Purchaser will file any SEC Statement or Other Filings without the other party’s approval (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed). Purchaser and the Company will advise the other parties hereto promptly after it receives any oral or written request by the SEC for amendment of the SEC Statement
or Other Filings, as applicable, or comments thereon and responses thereto or requests by the SEC for additional information and each party will promptly provide the other
with copies of any written communication between it or any of its representatives, on the one hand, and the SEC, any state securities commission or their respective staffs, on
the other hand, with respect to the SEC Statement or the Merger. Purchaser and the Company shall use their respective reasonable best efforts, after consultation with each
other, to resolve all such requests or comments with respect to the SEC Statement or Other Filings as promptly as reasonably practicable after receipt thereof. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, each of Purchaser and the Company shall cooperate with each other in the preparation of each of SEC Statement and Other Filing and each of
Purchaser and the Company shall furnish the other with all information concerning it and its Affiliates as the requesting party (after consulting with counsel) may deem
reasonably necessary or advisable in connection with the preparation of the SEC Statement or Other Filings, as applicable. Purchaser and the Company shall notify each other
promptly of the time when the SEC Statement shall be declared definitive, of the issuance of any stop order or suspension of the qualification of the Purchaser Common Stock
issuable in connection with the Merger for offering or sale in any jurisdiction, or of the receipt of any comments from the SEC or the staff of the SEC and of any request by the
SEC or the staff of the SEC for amendments or supplements to the SEC Statement, Other Filings or for additional information.
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(c) As of the date of the filing of any SEC Statement with the SEC or Other Filing, none of the Company Information, Required Company Financial
Statements or other financial information supplied by the Company in connection with the SEC Statement or Other Filing shall contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading.

(d) If at any time prior to the Effective Time any information relating to Purchaser or the Company or any of their respective Affiliates, directors, officers or
stockholders, should be discovered by Purchaser or the Company which should be set forth in an amendment or supplement to either the SEC Statement or Other Filings, so
that any such document would not include any misstatement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the
circumstances under which they are made, not misleading, the party that discovers such information shall promptly notify the other parties hereto and an appropriate
amendment or supplement describing such information shall be promptly filed with the SEC and, to the extent required by Law, disseminated to Purchaser’s stockholders.

9.4 Confidentiality. Except as necessary to complete the Proxy Statement or any other SEC Statements or Other Filings, the Company, on the one hand, and Purchaser
and Merger Sub, on the other hand, shall hold and shall cause their respective representatives to hold in strict confidence, unless compelled to disclose by judicial or
administrative process or by other requirements of Law, all documents and information concerning the other party furnished to it by such other party or its representatives in
connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (except to the extent that such information can be shown to have been (a) previously known by the party to
which it was furnished, (b) in the public domain through no fault of such party or (c) later lawfully acquired from other sources, which source is not the agent of the other party,
by the party to which it was furnished), and each party shall not release or disclose such information to any other person, except its representatives in connection with this
Agreement. In the event that any party believes that it is required to disclose any such confidential information pursuant to applicable Laws, to the extent legally permissible,
such party shall give timely written notice to the other party so that such party may have an opportunity to obtain a protective order or other appropriate relief. Each party shall
be deemed to have satisfied its obligations to hold confidential information concerning or supplied by the other party if it exercises the same care as it takes to preserve
confidentiality for its own similar information. The parties acknowledge that some previously confidential information will be required to be disclosed in the Proxy Statement
and any other SEC Statements and Other Filings. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, following the Closing, the Shareholders’ Representative shall be
permitted to disclose information as required by Law or to employees, advisors, agents or consultants of the Shareholders’ Representative and to the Company Securityholders,
in each case who have a need to know such information, provided that such persons are subject to confidentiality obligations with respect thereto.
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9.5 Directors’ and Officers’ Indemnification and Liability Insurance.

(a) All rights to indemnification for acts or omissions occurring through the Closing Date now existing in favor of the current directors and officers of the
Company and the Purchaser as provided in their respective organizational documents or in any indemnification agreements shall survive the applicable Merger and shall
continue in full force and effect in accordance with their terms.

(b) Prior to the Closing Date, Purchaser shall purchase a directors and officers tail liability insurance policy, with respect to claims arising from facts and
events that occurred prior to the Closing Date.

(c) The provisions of this Section 9.5 are intended to be for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, each Person who will have been a director or officer of

the Company or the Purchaser for all periods ending on or before the Closing Date and may not be changed with respect to any officer or director without his or her written
consent.

(d) Prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall be permitted to obtain and fully pay the premium for a seven year prepaid “tail” policy for the extension of
the directors’ and officers’ liability coverage of the Company’s existing directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policies, for claims reporting or discovery period of seven
years from and after the Effective Time, on terms and conditions providing coverage retentions, limits and other material terms substantially equivalent to the current policies of
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by the Company with respect to matters arising on or before the Effective Time, covering without limitation the
transactions contemplated hereby. After the Effective Time, Purchaser shall cause such “tail” policy to be maintained in full force and effect, for its full term, and shall honor all
of its obligations thereunder, and no party shall have any other obligation to purchase or pay for any insurance hereunder.
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9.6 Execution of Offer [ etters with Senior Management. The Company will identify members of the senior management team and will execute an offer letter or other
employment related agreement with each such senior management member, in such form and terms as agreed upon by the Company.

9.7 Repayment of Purchaser Indebtedness and other Liabilities. Prior to or concurrent with the Closing, Purchaser shall repay and extinguish all expenses, Indebtedness
and other liabilities without any further Liability to the Company or Purchaser, and shall deliver, at least five (5) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, executed waivers,
payoff letters or final invoices, as applicable, from each vendor, lender, creditor, noteholder or other counterparty to which such expenses, Indebtedness or other liabilities,
including those liabilities required to be set forth on Schedule 6.17.

9.8 Equity Financing.

(a) Purchaser and the Company shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to cause the immediately available funds contained in the Trust Account (net
of any Purchaser Redemption Amount) available for release to Purchaser immediately following the Closing, plus the immediately available funds contained in the New
Investment Escrow Account available for release to Purchaser immediately following the Closing, if any, that have been deposited into the New Investment Escrow Account
pursuant to the Third Party Purchase Agreements to equal or exceed Thirty Million Dollars ($30,000,000).

(b) Purchaser and the Company shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to cause the immediately available funds contained in the New Investment
Escrow Account available for release to Purchaser immediately following the Closing that have been deposited into the New Investment Escrow Account pursuant to the
Company Securityholder Purchase Agreements to equal or exceed Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000).

9.9 Certain Tax Matters. Purchaser and the Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Merger to qualify as a “reorganization” within the meaning of
Section 368(a) of the Code. Neither Purchaser nor the Company shall take any action, or fail to take any action, that could reasonably be expected to cause the Merger to fail to
qualify as a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. Purchaser and the Company intend to report and, except to the extent otherwise required by a
change in Law, shall report, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Merger as a “reorganization” within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code, unless otherwise required
by applicable Law.

9.10 Founder Share Cancellation. If the Aggregate Investment Amount is less than Seventy Million Dollars ($70,000,000), Chardan Investments LLC agrees to forfeit
a number of whole shares of Purchaser Common Stock equal to: (a) Five Hundred Thousand (500,000) shares of Purchaser Common Stock; multiplied by (b) the quotient of: (i)
the absolute value of the difference between Seventy Million Dollars ($70,000,000) minus the Aggregate Investment Amount; divided by (ii) Twenty Million Dollars
($20,000,000), rounded to the nearest whole share; provided, however, that in no event will Chardan Investments LLC be required to forfeit more than Five Hundred Thousand
(500,000) shares of Purchaser Common Stock pursuant to this Section 9.10.
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9.11 Equity Incentive Plan. Prior to the Closing, the Company shall amend the Equity Incentive Plan (or adopt a new equity incentive plan having the same effect that
will be assumed by Purchaser as of the Effective Time), to include: (a) an “evergreen” provision that will provide for an automatic increase on an annual basis in the number of
shares available for issuance under the Equity Incentive Plan (or such new equity incentive plan) equal to an amount as determined by the compensation committee of the
Company, not to exceed on an annual basis four percent (4%) of the total number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock then-issued and outstanding; and (b) such other terms
are customary for a company whose securities are traded on the NYSE American or any similar exchange in the United States of America.

ARTICLE X
CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

10.1 Condition to the Obligations of the Parties. The obligations of all of the parties to consummate the Closing are subject to the satisfaction of all the following
conditions:

(a) No provisions of any applicable Law, and no Order shall restrain or prohibit or impose any condition on Closing;

(b) At least fifty (50) days shall have elapsed after the filing of the Merger Proposal with the Registrar of Companies and at least thirty (30) days shall have
elapsed after the approval of the Merger by the shareholders of each of the Company and Merger Sub, and the Certificate of Merger shall have been received from the Registrar
of Companies;

(c) Any Governmental Approvals shall have been obtained;

(d) There shall not be any Action brought by any governmental Authority to enjoin or otherwise restrict the consummation of the Closing;

(e) The Purchaser’s initial listing application with the NYSE American in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby shall have been approved,
immediately following the Closing Purchaser shall satisfy any applicable initial and continuing listing requirements of the NYSE American and Purchaser shall not have
received any notice of non-compliance therewith, and the Purchaser Common Stock shall have been approved for listing on the NYSE American, subject to completion of the
Merger; and

(f) Each of the Purchaser Stockholder Approval and the Company Shareholder Approval shall have been obtained.

10.2 Conditions to Obligations of Purchaser and Merger Sub. The obligation of Purchaser and Merger Sub to consummate the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, or
the waiver at Purchaser’s sole and absolute discretion, of all the following further conditions:

(a) The Company shall have duly performed in all material respects all of its obligations hereunder required to be performed by it at or prior to the Closing
Date.
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(b) All of the representations and warranties of the Company contained in this Agreement and in any certificate delivered by the Company pursuant hereto,
disregarding all qualifications and exceptions contained therein relating to materiality or Material Adverse Effect, shall: (i) be true and correct at and as of the date of this
Agreement, or, (ii) if otherwise specified, when made or when deemed to have been made, and (iii) be true and correct as of the Closing Date, except in the case of (i), (ii) and
(iii) for any inaccuracies in such representations and warranties which would not in the aggregate reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(c) There shall have been no continuing event, change or occurrence which individually or together with any other event, change or occurrence, would
reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

(d) Purchaser shall have received a certificate signed by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company to the effect set forth in
clauses (a) through (c) of this Section 10.2 (the “Company Certificate™).

(e) Purchaser shall have received the Financial Statements.

(f) Purchaser shall have received (i) a copy of the Charter Documents certified as of a recent date by the Secretary of State or similar official of its
jurisdictions of organization, (ii) copies of resolutions duly adopted by the board of directors of the Company and by vote or consent of the Shareholders authorizing this
Agreement, the Additional Agreements and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, and (iii) a certificate of the Secretary of the Company certifying as to signatures
of the officer(s) executing this Agreement and any certificate or document to be delivered pursuant hereto, together with evidence of the incumbency of such Secretary.

(g) Each of the Voting Agreement, Registration Rights Agreement and Escrow Agreement shall have been duly executed and delivered by each party thereto
other than Purchaser.

(h) The immediately available funds contained in the New Investment Escrow Account available for release to Purchaser immediately following the Closing
that have been deposited into the New Investment Escrow Account pursuant to the Company Securityholder Purchase Agreements shall equal or exceed Twenty Million Dollars
($20,000,000).

10.3 Conditions to Obligations of the Company. The obligations of the Company to consummate the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, or the waiver at the
Company’s discretion, of all of the following further conditions:

(a) (1) The Purchaser and Merger Sub shall each have performed in all material respects all of its obligations hereunder required to be performed by it at or
prior to the Closing Date, (ii) the representations and warranties of Purchaser and Merger Sub contained in this Agreement, and in any certificate or other writing delivered by
the Purchaser pursuant hereto, disregarding all qualifications and expectations contained therein relating to materiality shall be true and correct in all respects at and as of the
Closing Date, as if made at and as of such date, except for any inaccuracies in such representations and warranties which would not in the aggregate reasonably be expected to
have a material adverse effect on the Purchaser or on Purchaser’s ability to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Additional Agreements, and
(iii) the Company shall have received a certificate signed by an authorized officer of the Purchaser to the foregoing effect.
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(b) Purchaser shall have executed and delivered to the Company a copy of each Additional Agreement to which it is a party.
(c) The Shareholder Designees shall have been appointed to the board of directors of the Purchaser, effective as of the Closing.
(d) The Aggregate Investment Amount shall equal or exceed Fifty Million Dollars ($50,000,000) in the aggregate.

(e) Purchaser shall have delivered to the Company executed payoff letters for all Indebtedness, expenses and other liabilities of Purchaser that remain unpaid
as of immediately prior to the Closing.

(f) The aggregate amount of Indebtedness, expenses and other liabilities of Purchaser that remain unpaid as of immediately prior to the Closing is less than
$1,000,000.

(g) The daily volume weighted average price of a share of Purchaser Common Stock for the 10 trading days immediately preceding the Closing Date shall
equal at least Nine Dollars and Fifty Cents ($9.50).

(h) The immediately available funds contained in the New Investment Escrow Account available for release to Purchaser immediately following the Closing
that have been deposited into the New Investment Escrow Account pursuant to the Company Securityholder Purchase Agreements shall equal or exceed Twenty Million Dollars
($20,000,000).

ARTICLE XI
INDEMNIFICATION

11.1 Indemnification of Purchaser. From and after the Closing, the Escrow Participants hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless Purchaser against and in respect
of any actual and direct out-of-pocket loss, cost, payment, demand, penalty, forfeiture, expense, liability, judgment, deficiency or damage (including actual costs of
investigation and attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses) (all of the foregoing collectively, “ Losses”) incurred or sustained by Purchaser as a result of: (a) any breach or
inaccuracy of any of the representations, warranties set forth in Article V (as modified by the Schedules) or in the Company Certificate, in each case as of the Closing Date, and
(b) any breach or nonfulfillment of any covenants of the Company contained in this Agreement to be performed prior to the Closing Date. Notwithstanding anything in this
Agreement to the contrary, the maximum liability of the Escrow Participants under this Agreement, including this Article XI, or otherwise in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement shall in no event exceed an amount equal to: (i) the Escrow Share Value, multiplied by (ii) the Escrow Shares (the “Indemnifiable Loss Limit”).
The Purchaser shall not be entitled to indemnification pursuant to this Section 11.1 unless and until the aggregate amount of Losses to Purchaser equals at least $1,246,875 (the
“Basket™), at which time, subject to the Indemnifiable Loss Limit, the Purchaser shall be entitled to indemnification for any Losses above the Basket, less $124,687.50 per Loss.
The Escrow Participants shall have no liability or obligation to indemnify any Purchaser or any other Indemnified Party under this Agreement with respect to the breach or
inaccuracy of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement based on any matter, fact or circumstance known to Purchaser or any of its representatives or disclosed in the
information set out in any Schedule to this Agreement.
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11.2 Procedure. The following shall apply with respect to all claims by the Purchaser (an ‘Indemnified Party”) for indemnification pursuant to this Article XI:

(a) An Indemnified Party shall give the Shareholders’ Representative prompt notice (an “Indemnification Notice™) of any third-party action with respect to
which such Indemnified Party seeks indemnification pursuant to Section 11.1 or 11.2 (a “Third-Party Claim”), which shall describe in reasonable detail the Loss that has been
or may be suffered by the Indemnified Party. The failure to give the Indemnification Notice shall not impair any of the rights or benefits of such Indemnified Party under
Sections 11.1 or 11.2, except to the extent such failure prejudices the ability of the Escrow Participants (any of such parties, “Indemnifying Parties”) to defend such claim or
increases the amount of such liability.

(b) In the case of any Third-Party Claims as to which indemnification is sought by any Indemnified Party, such Indemnified Party shall be entitled, at the sole
expense and liability of the Escrow Participants, to exercise full control of the defense, compromise or settlement of any Third-Party Claim unless the Shareholders’
Representative, within a reasonable time after the giving of an Indemnification Notice by the Indemnified Party (but in any event within twenty (20) Business Days thereafter),
shall notify such Indemnified Party in writing of the intention of the Shareholders’ Representative to assume the defense thereof.

(c) If the Indemnifying Parties assume the defense of any such Third-Party Claim pursuant to Section 11.3(b), then the Indemnified Party shall cooperate with
the Indemnifying Parties in any manner reasonably requested in connection with the defense, and the Indemnified Party shall have the right to be kept fully informed by the
Indemnifying Parties and their legal counsel with respect to the status of any legal proceedings, to the extent not inconsistent with the preservation of attorney-client or work
product privilege. If the Indemnifying Parties so assume the defense of any such Third-Party Claim the Indemnified Party shall have the right to employ separate counsel and to
participate in (but not control) the defense, compromise, or settlement thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel employed by the Indemnified Party shall be at the
expense of such Indemnified Party unless (i) the Indemnifying Parties have agreed to pay such fees and expenses, or (ii) the named parties to any such Third-Party Claim
(including any impleaded parties) include an Indemnified Party and an Indemnifying Party and such Indemnified Party shall have been advised by its counsel that there may be
a conflict of interest between such Indemnified Party and the Indemnifying Parties in the conduct of the defense thereof, and in any such case the reasonable documented out-of-
pocket fees and expenses of one separate counsel of the Indemnified Party shall be borne by the Indemnifying Parties subject to the limitations set forth in this Article XI.
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(d) If the Indemnifying Parties elect to assume the defense of any Third-Party Claim pursuant to Section 11.3(b), the Indemnified Party shall not pay, or
permit to be paid, any part of any claim or demand arising from such asserted liability unless the Indemnifying Parties withdraw from the defense of such Third-Party Claim, or
unless a judgment is entered against the Indemnified Party for such liability by an Authority of competent jurisdiction. If the Indemnifying Parties do not elect to defend, or if,
after commencing or undertaking any such defense, the Indemnifying Parties withdraw such defense, the Indemnified Party shall have the right to undertake the defense or
settlement thereof, at the Indemnifying Parties’ expense subject to the limitations set forth in this Article XI. In the event the Indemnified Party retains control of the Third-Party
Claim, the Indemnified Party will not settle the subject claim without the prior written consent of the Indemnifying Party, which consent will not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed.

(e) If the Indemnified Party undertakes the defense of any such Third-Party Claim pursuant to Section 11.1 or 11.2 and proposes to settle the same prior to a
final judgment thereon or to forgo appeal with respect thereto, then the Indemnified Party shall give the Indemnifying Parties prompt written notice thereof and the
Indemnifying Parties shall have the right to participate in the settlement, assume or reassume the defense thereof or prosecute such appeal, in each case at the Indemnifying
Parties’ expense. The Indemnifying Parties shall not, without the prior written consent of such Indemnified Party settle or compromise or consent to entry of any judgment with
respect to any such Third-Party Claim (i) in which any relief other than the payment of money damages is or may be sought against such Indemnified Party, (ii) in which such
Third-Party Claim could be reasonably expected to impose or create a monetary liability on the part of the Indemnified Party (such as an increase in the Indemnified Party’s
income Tax) other than the monetary claim of the third party in such Third-Party Claim being paid pursuant to such settlement or judgment, or (iii) which does not include as an
unconditional term thereof the giving by the claimant, person conducting such investigation or initiating such hearing, plaintiff or petitioner to such Indemnified Party of a
release from all liability with respect to such Third-Party Claim and all other actions (known or unknown) arising or which might arise out of the same facts.

(f) Following the Closing, the disinterested members of the board of directors of the Purchaser shall have the authority to institute and prosecute any claims
for indemnification hereunder in good faith on behalf of the Purchaser to enforce the terms of this Agreement.

11.3 Escrow of Escrow Shares by Escrow Participants. The Company hereby authorizes the Purchaser to deliver the Escrow Shares into escrow (the Escrow Fund”)
pursuant to the Escrow Agreement. For purposes of this Article XI, the Escrow Shares are valued at the greater of: (i) $10.00 per share; or (ii) the Purchaser Redemption
Amount (the “Escrow Share Value”).

(a) Escrow Shares. Payment of Dividends; Voting. Any dividends, interest payments, or other distributions of any kind made in respect of the Escrow Shares
will be delivered promptly to the Escrow Agent to be held in escrow (the “Escrow Income”). Each Escrow Participant shall be entitled to vote such Escrow Participant’s Escrow
Pro Rata Portion of the Escrow Shares on any matters to come before the shareholders of the Purchaser. It is intended that for U.S. federal income tax purposes that while the
Escrow Shares are held by the Escrow Agent, the Escrow Participants shall be treated owners of the Escrow Shares, and to the extent required by Applicable Law, the Escrow
Agent shall report in a manner consistent with such treatment.
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(b) Distribution of Escrow Shares. At the times provided for in Section 11.3(d), the Escrow Shares shall be distributed to each Escrow Participant in
accordance with such Escrow Participant’s Escrow Pro Rata Portion. The Purchaser will take such action as may be necessary to cause such certificates to be issued in the names
of the appropriate persons. Certificates representing Escrow Shares so issued that are subject to resale restrictions under applicable securities laws will bear a legend to that
effect. No fractional shares shall be released and delivered from the Escrow Fund and all fractional shares shall be rounded to the nearest whole share.

(c) Assignability. No Escrow Shares or any beneficial interest therein may be pledged, sold, assigned or transferred, including by operation of law, by the
Escrow Participants or be taken or reached by any legal or equitable process in satisfaction of any debt or other liability of the Escrow Participants, prior to the delivery to such
Escrow Participants of the Escrow Fund by the Escrow Agent as provided herein.

(d) Release from Escrow Fund. As soon as practicable, but in no event later than five (5) Business Days, following expiration of the Survival Period (the
“Release Date”), the Escrow Shares will be released from escrow to the Escrow Participants (in accordance with such Escrow Participant’s Escrow Pro Rata Portion) less the
number of Escrow Shares (at an assumed value equal to the Escrow Share Value per Escrow Share) reasonably necessary to serve as security for Losses set forth in any
Indemnification Notice delivered by the Purchaser prior to the expiration of the Survival Period that remain pending and unresolved. Prior to the Release Date, the Shareholders’
Representative and the Purchaser shall jointly issue to the Escrow Agent a certificate executed by each of them instructing the Escrow Agent to release such number of Escrow
Shares (in accordance with such Escrow Participant’s Escrow Pro Rata Portion) determined in accordance with this Section 11.4(d). Promptly, but in no event later than five (5)
Business Days, following the resolution in accordance with the provisions of this Article XI of any claim(s) for indemnification that remain unresolved as of the Release Date
the Shareholders’ Representative and the Purchaser shall jointly issue to the Escrow Agent a certificate executed by each of them instructing the Escrow Agent to release to each
Escrow Participant (in accordance with such Escrow Participant’s Escrow Pro Rata Portion) the number of Escrow Shares retained in escrow following the resolution of such
claim(s) and not released to Purchaser.

11.4 Payment of Indemnification. In the event that Purchaser is entitled to any indemnification for any Losses pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise in connection
with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the Purchaser’s sole and exclusive remedy for such Losses shall be the recovery of a number of shares of Purchaser
Common Stock from the Escrow Shares having a value equal to the Losses that have been finally determined to be owing to the Purchaser in accordance with this Article XI (at
an assumed value equal to the Escrow Share Value per Escrow Share), in each case, subject to the limitations set forth in this Article XI. Any payments to Purchaser from the
Escrow Shares will be treated as a reduction in the number of shares of Purchaser Common Stock issued to the Escrow Participants for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

11.5 Insurance. In calculating amounts of Losses payable to an Indemnified Party hereunder, the amount of any indemnified Losses shall be determined net of amounts
actually recovered under any insurance policy or other third party reimbursement actually received.
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11.6 Survival of Indemnification Rights. The representations and warranties of the Company shall survive until six (6) months (the “Survival Period”) following the
Closing. The covenants of the Company contained in this Agreement to be performed prior to Closing shall expire and be of no further force or effect as of the Closing,
provided, that claims for breach or nonfulfillment thereof shall survive until the expiration of the Survival Period. The indemnification to which any Indemnified Party is
entitled from the Indemnifying Parties pursuant to Section 11.1 for Losses shall be effective so long as it is asserted prior to the expiration of the Survival Period; provided, that
in the event that any Indemnification Notice shall have been given in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement prior to the expiration of the Survival Period and such
claim has not been finally resolved by the expiration of the Survival Period, the representations, warranties, covenants, agreements or obligations that are the subject of such
Indemnifications Notice shall survive solely for purposes of resolving such claim until such matters are finally resolved. The parties acknowledge that the time periods set forth
in this Section 11.6 for the assertion of claims under this Agreement are the result of arms’-length negotiation among the parties and that they intend for the time periods to be
enforced as agreed by the parties without regard to the applicable statute of limitations with respect to such matters and that the 20 year statute of limitations contemplated by
Title 10 of Section 8106(c) of the Delaware Code shall not apply to this Agreement.

11.7 Sole and Exclusive Remedy. The remedies provided in this Article XI and the rights to enforce the Additional Agreements in accordance with their terms shall be
deemed the sole and exclusive remedies of the Indemnified Parties, from and after the Closing Date, with respect to any and all claims arising out of or related to this Agreement
or in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, except nothing in this Agreement (i) will limit the parties’ rights to seek injunctive relief or other equitable remedies,
(ii) would prevent Purchaser from bringing an action for fraud (with scienter) against the Person who committed such Fraud (with scienter) or (iv) limit the right of any Person
to pursue remedies under any Additional Agreement against the parties thereto.

ARTICLE XII
DISPUTE RESOLUTION

12.1 Arbitration.

(a) The parties shall promptly submit any dispute, claim, or controversy arising out of or relating to this Agreement (including with respect to the meaning,
effect, validity, termination, interpretation, performance, or enforcement of this Agreement) or any alleged breach thereof (including any action in tort, contract, equity, or
otherwise), to binding arbitration before one arbitrator (the “Arbitrator”). Binding arbitration shall be the sole means of resolving any dispute, claim, or controversy arising out
of or relating to this Agreement (including with respect to the meaning, effect, validity, termination, interpretation, performance or enforcement of this Agreement) or any
alleged breach thereof (including any claim in tort, contract, equity, or otherwise).

(b) If the parties cannot agree upon the Arbitrator, the Arbitrator shall be selected by the New York, New York chapter head of the American Arbitration
Association upon the written request of any Party. The Arbitrator shall be selected within thirty (30) days of the written request of any party.
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(c) Except with respect to matters set forth in Article II that relate to the effectuation of the Merger, which are exclusively governed by the Law of the State of
Israel, the laws of the State of Delaware shall apply to any arbitration hereunder. In any arbitration hereunder, this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Delaware applicable to a contract negotiated, signed, and wholly to be performed in the State of Delaware, which laws the Arbitrator shall apply in rendering his decision. The
Arbitrator shall issue a written decision, setting forth findings of fact and conclusions of law, within sixty (60) days after he shall have been selected. The Arbitrator shall have
no authority to award punitive or other exemplary damages.

(d) The arbitration shall be held in New York, New York in accordance with and under the then-current provisions of the rules of the American Arbitration
Association, except as otherwise provided herein.

(e) On application to the Arbitrator, any party shall have rights to discovery to the same extent as would be provided under the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure, and the Federal Rules of Evidence shall apply to any arbitration under this Agreement; provided, however, that the Arbitrator shall limit any discovery or evidence
such that his decision shall be rendered within the period referred to in Section 12.1(c).

(f) The Arbitrator may, at his discretion and at the expense of the party who will bear the cost of the arbitration, employ experts to assist him in his
determinations.

(g) The costs of the arbitration proceeding and any proceeding in court to confirm any arbitration award or to obtain relief as provided in Section 12.1(h), as
applicable (including actual attorneys’ fees and costs), shall be borne by the unsuccessful party (if the Shareholders’ Representative, then solely on behalf of the Company
Securityholders) and shall be awarded as part of the Arbitrator’s decision, unless the Arbitrator shall otherwise allocate such costs in such decision. The determination of the
Arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties and not subject to appeal.

(h) Any judgment upon any award rendered by the Arbitrator may be entered in and enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction. The parties expressly
consent to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts (Federal and state) in Delaware, to enforce any award of the Arbitrator or to render any provisional, temporary, or
injunctive relief in connection with or in aid of the Arbitration. The parties expressly consent to the personal and subject matter jurisdiction of the Arbitrator to arbitrate any and
all matters to be submitted to arbitration hereunder. None of the parties hereto shall challenge any arbitration hereunder on the grounds that any party necessary to such
arbitration (including the parties hereto) shall have been absent from such arbitration for any reason, including that such party shall have been the subject of any bankruptcy,
reorganization, or insolvency proceeding.

(i) The parties (in the case of the Shareholders’ Representative, solely on behalf of the Company Securityholders) shall indemnify the Arbitrator and any

experts employed by the Arbitrator and hold them harmless from and against any claim or demand arising out of any arbitration under this Agreement or any agreement
contemplated hereby, unless resulting from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the person indemnified.
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(j) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the parties agree that irreparable damage would occur if any of the provisions of this Agreement were not
performed in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise breached. It is accordingly agreed that the parties shall be entitled to seek an injunction or injunctions,
specific performance and other equitable relief to prevent breaches of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions of this Agreement. The parties
expressly consent to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts (Federal and state) in Delaware to render such relief and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions of this
Agreement.

12.2 Waiver of Jury Trial; Exemplary Damages

(a) THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT HEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND IRREVOCABLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT EACH SUCH
PARTY MAY HAVE TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OF ANY KIND OR NATURE, IN ANY COURT IN WHICH AN ACTION MAY BE COMMENCED,
ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT. NO PARTY SHALL BE AWARDED PUNITIVE OR OTHER EXEMPLARY DAMAGES
RESPECTING ANY DISPUTE ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

(b) Each of the parties to this Agreement acknowledge that each has been represented in connection with the signing of this waiver by independent legal
counsel selected by the respective party and that such party has discussed the legal consequences and import of this waiver with legal counsel. Each of the parties to this
Agreement further acknowledge that each has read and understands the meaning of this waiver and grants this waiver knowingly, voluntarily, without duress and only after
consideration of the consequences of this waiver with legal counsel.

ARTICLE XIII
TERMINATION

13.1 Termination Without Default.

(a) In the event that the Closing of the transactions contemplated hereunder has not occurred by October 31, 2019 (the Outside Closing Date”); provided,
that if the SEC has not declared the Proxy Statement effective on or prior to September 30, 2019, the Outside Closing Date shall be automatically extended to November 30,
2019, and no material breach of this Agreement by the party (i.e., the Purchaser or the Merger Sub, on one hand, or the Company, on the other hand) seeking to terminate this
Agreement shall have occurred or have been made (as provided in Section 13.2 hereof), Purchaser or the Company shall have the right, at its sole option, to terminate this
Agreement without liability to the other party. Such right may be exercised by Purchaser or the Company, as the case may be, giving written notice to the other at any time after
the Outside Closing Date.
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(b) In the event an Authority shall have issued an Order, having the effect of permanently restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the Merger, which
Order is final and non-appealable, Purchaser or the Company shall have the right, at its sole option, to terminate this Agreement without liability to the other party.

13.2 Termination Upon Default.

(a) The Purchaser may terminate this Agreement by giving notice to the Company on or prior to the Closing Date, without prejudice to any rights or
obligations Purchaser may have, if: (i) the Company shall have breached any representation, warranty, agreement or covenant contained herein to be performed on or prior to
the Closing Date, which has rendered the satisfaction of any of the conditions set forth in Section 10.2 impossible; and (ii) such breach shall not be cured by the earlier of the
Outside Closing Date and thirty (30) days following receipt by the Company of a written notice from Purchaser describing in reasonable detail the nature of such breach.

(b) The Company may terminate this Agreement by giving notice to Purchaser, without prejudice to any rights or obligations the Company may have, if: (i)
Purchaser shall have breached any of its covenants, agreements, representations, and warranties contained herein to be performed on or prior to the Closing Date, which has
rendered the satisfaction of any of the conditions set forth in Section 10.3 impossible; and (ii) such breach shall not be cured by the earlier of the Outside Closing Date and thirty
(30) days following receipt by Purchaser of a written notice from the Company describing in reasonable detail the nature of such breach.

13.3 Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Article XIII, this Agreement shall become void and of no effect without liability of any
party (or any shareholder, director, officer, employee, Affiliate, agent, consultant or representative of such party) to the other party hereto; provided that, if such termination
shall result from the willful breach by a party of its covenants and agreements hereunder or fraud, such party shall be fully liable for any and all liabilities and damages incurred
or suffered by the other party as a result of such failure. The provisions of Section 9.4, Article XII, this Section 13.3 and Article XIV shall survive any termination hereof
pursuant to this Article XIII.
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ARTICLE XIV
MISCELLANEOUS

14.1 Notices. Any notice hereunder shall be sent in writing, addressed as specified below, and shall be deemed given: (a) if by hand or recognized courier service, by
4:00PM on a business day, addressee’s day and time, on the date of delivery, and otherwise on the first business day after such delivery; (b) if by fax, on the date that
transmission is confirmed electronically, if by 4:00PM on a business day, addressee’s day and time, and otherwise on the first business day after the date of such confirmation;
(c) if email, on the date of transmission; or (d) five days after mailing by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested. Notices shall be addressed to the respective parties
as follows (excluding telephone numbers, which are for convenience only), or to such other address as a party shall specify to the others in accordance with these notice
provisions:

if to the Company (or, following the Closing, the Surviving Corporation), to:

BiomX Ltd.

7 Sapir St.

Ness Ziona,

Israel, 7414002

Attn: Jonathan Solomon

Fax: TBD

e-mail: jonathans@biomx.com

with a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Mayer Brown LLP

1221 Avenue of the Americas

New York, NY 10020

United States of America

Attn.:  Anna T. Pinedo

Phyllis G. Korff

Email: APinedo@mayerbrown.com
PKorff@mayerbrown.com

and a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):

Shy S. Baranov, Adv.

Zysman, Aharoni, Gayer & Co.
41-45 Rothschild Blvd., Beit Zion
Tel Aviv, 6578401, Israel

Email: sbaranov(@zag-sw.com

if to the Shareholders’ Representative, or to the Company Securityholders after Closing, to:

Shareholder Representative Services LLC
950 17" Street, Suite 1400

Denver, CO 80202

Attn: Managing Director

Fax: (303) 623-0294

Email: deals@srsacquiom.com

if to the Purchaser or Merger Sub:

Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp.
17 State Street, 215 Floor

New York, NY 10004

Attn: Jonas Grossman

Fax:
e-mail:grossmanj@chardanspac.com
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to (which shall not constitute notice):

Loeb & Loeb LLP

345 Park Ave

New York, NY 10154
Attention: Giovanni Caruso
Fax: (212) 937-3943
e-mail: gcaruso@loeb.com

to (which shall not constitute notice):

Meitar Liquornik Geva Leshem Tal
16 Abba Hillel Road

Ramat Gan, Israel

Attention: Mike Rimon, Adv.
Email: mrimon@meitar.com

14.2 Amendments: No Waivers:; Remedies.

(a) This Agreement cannot be amended, except by a writing signed by each party, and cannot be terminated orally or by course of conduct. No provision
hereof can be waived, except by a writing signed by the party against whom such waiver is to be enforced, and any such waiver shall apply only in the particular instance in
which such waiver shall have been given.

(b) Neither any failure or delay in exercising any right or remedy hereunder or in requiring satisfaction of any condition herein nor any course of dealing shall
constitute a waiver of or prevent any party from enforcing any right or remedy or from requiring satisfaction of any condition. No notice to or demand on a party waives or
otherwise affects any obligation of that party or impairs any right of the party giving such notice or making such demand, including any right to take any action without notice
or demand not otherwise required by this Agreement. No exercise of any right or remedy with respect to a breach of this Agreement shall preclude exercise of any other right or
remedy, as appropriate to make the aggrieved party whole with respect to such breach, or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy with respect to any other breach.

(c) Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, no statement herein of any right or remedy shall impair any other right or remedy stated herein or that
otherwise may be available.

(d) Notwithstanding anything else contained herein, neither shall any party seek, nor shall any party be liable for, punitive or exemplary damages, under any

tort, contract, equity, or other legal theory, with respect to any breach (or alleged breach) of this Agreement or any provision hereof or any matter otherwise relating hereto or
arising in connection herewith.
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14.3 Arm’s length bargaining: no presumption against drafter. This Agreement has been negotiated at arm’s-length by parties of equal bargaining strength, each
represented by counsel or having had but declined the opportunity to be represented by counsel and having participated in the drafting of this Agreement. This Agreement
creates no fiduciary or other special relationship between the parties, and no such relationship otherwise exists. No presumption in favor of or against any party in the
construction or interpretation of this Agreement or any provision hereof shall be made based upon which Person might have drafted this Agreement or such provision.

14.4 Publicity. Except as required by law or applicable stock exchange rules and except with respect to the Additional Purchaser SEC Documents, the parties agree that
neither they nor their agents shall issue any press release or make any other public disclosure concerning the transactions contemplated hereunder without the prior approval of
the other party hereto. If a party is required to make such a disclosure as required by law or applicable stock exchange rules, the party making such determination will, if
practicable in the circumstances, use reasonable commercial efforts to allow the other party reasonable time to comment on such disclosure in advance of its issuance.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, following the Closing Date and the public announcement of the Merger, the Shareholders’ Representative shall be
permitted to include in its marketing materials that it has been engaged to serve as the Shareholders’ Representative in connection with the Merger as long as such materials do
not disclose any of the other terms of the Merger or the other transactions contemplated herein.

14.5 Expenses. The costs and expenses in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be paid by the Purchaser after the Closing. If
the Closing does not take place, each party (in the case of the Shareholders’ Representative, solely on behalf of the Company Securityholders) shall be responsible for its own
expenses.

14.6 No Assignment or Delegation. No party may assign any right or delegate any obligation hereunder, including by merger, consolidation, operation of law, or
otherwise, without the written consent of the other party. Any purported assignment or delegation without such consent shall be void, in addition to constituting a material
breach of this Agreement.

14.7 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Delaware, without giving effect to the conflict of
laws principles thereof, except that matters referred to in Article II that relate to the effectuation of the Merger are exclusively governed by the Law of the State of Israel.

14.8 Counterparts: facsimile signatures. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original, but all of which shall constitute
one agreement. This Agreement shall become effective upon delivery to each party of an executed counterpart or the earlier delivery to each party of original, photocopied, or
electronically transmitted signature pages that together (but need not individually) bear the signatures of all other parties.
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14.9 Entire Agreement. This Agreement together with the Additional Agreements, sets forth the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof
and thereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous understandings and agreements related thereto (whether written or oral), all of which are merged herein. No provision
of this Agreement or any Additional Agreement may be explained or qualified by any agreement, negotiations, understanding, discussion, conduct or course of conduct or by
any trade usage. Except as otherwise expressly stated herein or any Additional Agreement, there is no condition precedent to the effectiveness of any provision hereof or thereof.

14.10 Severability. A determination by a court or other legal authority that any provision that is not of the essence of this Agreement is legally invalid shall not affect
the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof. The parties shall cooperate in good faith to substitute (or cause such court or other legal authority to substitute) for
any provision so held to be invalid a valid provision, as alike in substance to such invalid provision as is lawful.

14.11 Construction of certain terms and references; captions In this Agreement:

(a) References to particular sections and subsections, schedules, and exhibits not otherwise specified are cross-references to sections and subsections,
schedules, and exhibits of this Agreement.

(b) The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder,” and words of similar import refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this
Agreement, and, unless the context requires otherwise, “party” means a party signatory hereto.

(c) Any use of the singular or plural, or the masculine, feminine, or neuter gender, includes the others, unless the context otherwise requires; “including”
means “including without limitation;” “or” means “and/or;” “any” means “any one, more than one, or all;” and, unless otherwise specified, any financial or accounting term has
the meaning of the term under United States generally accepted accounting principles as consistently applied heretofore by the Company.

(d) Unless otherwise specified, any reference to any agreement (including this Agreement), instrument, or other document includes all schedules, exhibits, or
other attachments referred to therein, and any reference to a statute or other law includes any rule, regulation, ordinance, or the like promulgated thereunder, in each case, as
amended, restated, supplemented, or otherwise modified from time to time. Any reference to a numbered schedule means the same-numbered section of the disclosure schedule.
Any reference in a schedule contained in the disclosure schedules delivered by a party hereunder shall be deemed to be an exception to (or, as applicable, a disclosure for
purposes of) the applicable representations and warranties (or applicable covenants) that are contained in the section or subsection of this Agreement that corresponds to such
schedule and any other representations and warranties of such party that are contained in this Agreement to which the relevance of such item thereto is reasonably apparent on
its face. The mere inclusion of an item in a schedule as an exception to (or, as applicable, a disclosure for purposes of) a representation or warranty shall not be deemed an
admission that such item represents a material exception or material fact, event or circumstance or that such item would have a Material Adverse Effect or establish any
standard of materiality to define further the meaning of such terms for purposes of this Agreement.
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(e) If any action is required to be taken or notice is required to be given within a specified number of days following a specific date or event, the day of such
date or event is not counted in determining the last day for such action or notice. If any action is required to be taken or notice is required to be given on or before a particular
day which is not a Business Day, such action or notice shall be considered timely if it is taken or given on or before the next Business Day.

(f) Captions are not a part of this Agreement, but are included for convenience, only.

(g) For the avoidance of any doubt, all references in this Agreement to “the knowledge or best knowledge of the Company” or similar terms shall be deemed
to include the actual knowledge of Sigal Fattal, Assaf Oron and Jonathan Solomon.

14.12 Further Assurances. Each party shall execute and deliver such documents and take such action, as may reasonably be considered within the scope of such party’s
obligations hereunder, necessary to effectuate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

14.13 Third Party Beneficiaries. Except as provided in Section 9.5 and Section 14.16, neither this Agreement nor any provision hereof confers any benefit or right upon
or may be enforced by any Person not a signatory hereto.

14.14 Waiver. Reference is made to the final prospectus of the Purchaser, dated December 18, 2018 (the ‘Prospectus”). The Company has read the Prospectus and
understands that the Purchaser has established the Trust Account for the benefit of the public shareholders of the Purchaser and the underwriters of the IPO pursuant to the Trust
Agreement and that, except for a portion of the interest earned on the amounts held in the Trust Account, the Purchaser may disburse monies from the Trust Account only for
the purposes set forth in the Trust Agreement. For and in consideration of the Purchaser agreeing to enter into this Agreement, each of the Company and the Shareholders’
Representative, for itself and on behalf of the Shareholders, hereby agrees that it does not have any right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies in the Trust
Account and hereby agrees that it will not seek recourse against the Trust Account for any claim it may have in the future as a result of, or arising out of, any negotiations,
contracts or agreements with the Purchaser.
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14.15 Shareholders’ Representative. By virtue of the adoption of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, the approval of the principal terms of the
Merger, and the consummation of the Merger or participating in the Merger and receiving the benefits thereof, including the right to receive the consideration payable in
connection with the Merger, each Company Securityholder shall be deemed to have appointed the designation of, and hereby designates, Shareholder Representative Services
LLC as the Shareholders’ Representative for all purposes in connection with this Agreement and the agreements ancillary hereto, including, but not limited to, (i) to give and
receive notices and communications to Purchaser for any purpose under this Agreement and the Additional Agreements, (ii) to agree to, negotiate, enter into settlements and
compromises of and demand arbitration and comply with orders of courts and awards of arbitrators with respect to any indemnification claims (including Third-Party Claims)
under Section 11.1 or, following the Closing, other disputes arising under or related to this Agreement, (iii) to enter into and deliver the Escrow Agreement on behalf of each of
the Company Securityholders, (iv) to authorize or object to delivery to Purchaser of the Escrow Fund, or any portion thereof, in satisfaction of indemnification claims by the
Purchaser in accordance with the provisions of the Escrow Agreement, (v) to act on behalf of Company Securityholders in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement, the
securities described herein and any other document or instrument executed in connection with the Agreement and the Merger and (vi) to take all actions necessary or appropriate
in the judgment of the Shareholders’ Representative for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The Shareholders’ Representative may resign at any time. Such agency may be
changed by the Company Securityholders from time to time upon no less than twenty (20) days prior written notice to the Purchaser, provided, however, that the Shareholders’
Representative may not be removed unless holders of a majority of the shares of Company Capital Stock (on an as converted to Ordinary Shares and Ordinary A Shares basis)
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time agree to such removal. Any vacancy in the position of Shareholders’ Representative may be filled by approval of the
holders of a majority of the shares of Company Capital Stock (on an as converted to Ordinary Shares and Ordinary A Shares basis) outstanding immediately prior to the
Effective Time. No bond shall be required of the Shareholders’ Representative. The Shareholders’ Representative will incur no liability of any kind with respect to any action or
omission by the Shareholders’ Representative in connection with the Shareholders’ Representative’s services pursuant to this Agreement and any agreements ancillary hereto,
except in the event of liability directly resulting from the Shareholders’ Representative’s gross negligence or willful misconduct. The Shareholders’ Representative shall not be
liable for any action or omission pursuant to the advice of counsel. The Company Securityholders will indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Shareholders’ Representative
from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, claims, penalties, fines, forfeitures, actions, fees, costs and expenses (including the fees and expenses of counsel and
experts and their staffs and all expense of document location, duplication and shipment) (collectively, “Representative Losses”) arising out of or in connection with the
Shareholders’ Representative’s execution and performance of this Agreement and any agreements ancillary hereto, in each case as such Representative Loss is suffered or
incurred; provided, that Representative Losses shall not include costs (other than third party expenses) incurred by the Shareholders’ Representative in the ordinary course of
business of the Shareholders’ Representative under the engagement letter entered into by the Shareholders’ Representative, the Company, and certain of the Company
Securityholders; provided, further, that in the event that any such Representative Loss is finally adjudicated to have been directly caused by the gross negligence or willful
misconduct of the Shareholders’ Representative, the Shareholders’ Representative will reimburse the Company Securityholders the amount of such indemnified Representative
Loss to the extent attributable to such gross negligence or willful misconduct. If not paid directly to the Shareholders’ Representative by the Company Securityholders, any such
Representative Losses may be recovered by the Shareholders’ Representative from (x) the funds in the Expense Fund, and (y) the amounts in the Escrow Fund at such time as
remaining amounts would otherwise be distributable to the Company Securityholders; provided, that while this section allows the Shareholders’ Representative to be paid from
the aforementioned sources of funds, this does not relieve the Company Securityholders from their obligation to promptly pay such Representative Losses as they are suffered
or incurred, nor does it prevent the Shareholders’ Representative from seeking any remedies available to it at law or otherwise. In no event will the Shareholders’ Representative
be required to advance its own funds on behalf of the Company Securityholders or otherwise. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, any restrictions or
limitations on liability or indemnification obligations of, or provisions limiting the recourse against non-parties otherwise applicable to, the Company Securityholders set forth
elsewhere in this Agreement are not intended to be applicable to the indemnities provided to the Shareholders’ Representative under this section. The foregoing indemnities will
survive the Closing, the resignation or removal of the Shareholders’ Representative or the termination of this Agreement. Upon the Closing, the Company will wire US$30,000
(the “Expense Fund”) to the Shareholders’ Representative, which will be used for the purposes of paying directly, or reimbursing the Shareholders’ Representative for, any third
party expenses pursuant to this Agreement and the agreements ancillary hereto. The Company Securityholders will not receive any interest or earnings on the Expense Fund and
irrevocably transfer and assign to the Shareholders’ Representative any ownership right that they may otherwise have had in any such interest or earnings. The Shareholders’
Representative will not be liable for any loss of principal of the Expense Fund other than as a result of its gross negligence or willful misconduct. The Shareholders’
Representative will hold these funds separate from its corporate funds, will not use these funds for its operating expenses or any other corporate purposes and will not
voluntarily make these funds available to its creditors in the event of bankruptcy. As soon as practicable following the completion of the Shareholders’ Representative’s
responsibilities, the Shareholders’ Representative will deliver any remaining balance of the Expense Fund to the Company. For tax purposes, the Expense Fund will be treated as
having been received and voluntarily set aside by the Company at the time of Closing.
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14.16 Non-Recourse. This Agreement may be enforced only against, and any dispute, claim or controversy based upon, arising out of or related to this Agreement or
the transactions contemplated hereby may be brought only against, the entities that are expressly named as parties hereto and then only with respect to the specific obligations
set forth in this Agreement with respect to such party. No past, present or future director, officer, employee, incorporator, member, partner, shareholder, agent, attorney, advisor,
lender or representative or Affiliate of any named party to this Agreement (which Persons are intended third party beneficiaries of this Section 14.16) shall have any liability
(whether in contract or tort, at law or in equity or otherwise, or based upon any theory that seeks to impose liability of an entity party against its owners or Affiliates) for any
one or more of the representations, warranties, covenants, agreements or other obligations or liabilities of such named party or for any dispute, claim or controversy based on,
arising out of, or related to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, provided, that this Section 14.16 shall not apply to Section 14.15, which shall be
enforceable by the Shareholders’ Representative in its entirety against the Company Securityholders.

14.17 Waiver of Conflict; Privilege.

(a) Each of the parties hereto acknowledge and agree that Goodwin Procter LLP (‘Goodwin”) and Zysman, Aharoni, Gayer & Co (“ZAG”, and together with
Goodwin, “Company Counsel”) have each acted as counsel to the Company in connection with the negotiation of this Agreement and consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby.
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(b) Purchaser hereby consents and agrees to, and agrees to cause the Company to consent and agree to, Company Counsel representing the Shareholders’
Representative and/or any of the Company Securityholders (collectively, the “Seller Parties”) after the Closing, including with respect to disputes in which the interests of the
Seller Parties may be directly adverse to Purchaser and its Affiliates (including the Company).

(c) In connection with the foregoing, Purchaser hereby irrevocably waives and agrees not to assert, and agrees to cause the Company to irrevocably waive and
not to assert, any conflict of interest arising from or in connection with (i) either Company Counsel’s prior representation of the Company or (ii) either Company Counsel’s
representation of the Seller Parties after the Closing.

(d) Purchaser further agrees, on behalf of itself and, after the Closing, on behalf of the Company, that all communications in any form or format whatsoever
between or among any of either Company Counsel, the Company, any of the Seller Parties, or any of their respective directors, officers employees or other representatives that
directly relate to the negotiation, documentation and consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any dispute arising under this Agreement
(collectively, the “Deal Communications”) shall be deemed to be retained and owned collectively by the Company Securityholders, shall be controlled by the Shareholders’
Representative on behalf of the Company Securityholders and shall not pass to or be claimed by Purchaser or the Company. All Deal Communications that are attorney-client
privileged (the “Privileged Deal Communications™) shall remain privileged after the Closing and the privilege and the expectation of client confidence relating thereto shall
belong solely to the Shareholders’ Representative and the Company Securityholders, shall be controlled by the Shareholders’ Representative on behalf of the Company
Securityholders and shall not pass to or be claimed by Purchaser or the Company.

(e) Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a dispute arises between any Indemnified Party, on the one hand, and a third party other than the
Shareholders’ Representative or any Company Securityholder, on the other hand, Purchaser or the Company may assert the attorney-client privilege to prevent the disclosure of
the Privileged Deal Communications to such third party; provided, however, that neither Purchaser nor the Company may waive such privilege without the prior written consent
of the Shareholders’ Representative. In the event that Purchaser or the Company is legally required by an Order or otherwise to access or obtain a copy of all or a portion of the
Deal Communications, Purchaser (x) shall, to the extent legally permissible, reasonably promptly notify the Shareholders” Representative in writing (including by making
specific reference to this Section), (y) agrees that the Shareholders’ Representative can seek a protective order and (z) agrees to use, at the Securityholders’ sole cost and
expense, commercially reasonable efforts to assist therewith.

(f) To the extent that files or other materials maintained by either Company Counsel constitute property of its clients, only the Shareholders’ Representative

and the Company Securityholders shall hold such property rights and neither Company Counsel shall have no duty to reveal or disclose any such files or other materials or any
Deal Communications by reason of any attorney-client relationship between a Company Counsel, on the one hand, and the Company, on the other hand.
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14.18 No Other Representations; No Reliance. NONE OF THE COMPANY, ANY COMPANY SECURITYHOLDER NOR ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE
REPRESENTATIVES HAS MADE ANY REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OF ANY NATURE WHATSOEVER RELATING TO THE
COMPANY OR THE BUSINESS OR OTHERWISE IN CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY
ADDITIONAL AGREEMENT, OTHER THAN THOSE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN ARTICLE V, IN EACH CASE, AS
MODIFIED BY THE SCHEDULES TO THIS AGREEMENT. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, neither the Company, any Company Securityholder nor any of
their respective representatives has made, and shall not be deemed to have made, any representations or warranties in the materials relating to the Company made available to
Purchaser and its representatives, including due diligence materials, or in any presentation of the business of the Company by management of the Company or others in
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, and no statement contained in any of such materials or made in any such presentation shall be deemed a representation or
warranty hereunder or otherwise or deemed to be relied upon by Purchaser or Merger Sub in executing, delivering and performing this Agreement, the Additional Agreements
or the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, in each case except for the representations and warranties set forth in Article V as modified by the Schedules to this
Agreement. It is understood that any cost estimates, projections or other predictions, any data, any financial information or any memoranda or offering materials or
presentations, including but not limited to, any offering memorandum or similar materials made available by the Company, any Company Securityholder or their respective
representatives are not and shall not be deemed to be or to include representations or warranties of the Company or any Company Securityholder, and are not and shall not be
deemed to be relied upon by Purchaser or Merger Sub in executing, delivering and performing this Agreement, the Additional Agreement and the transactions contemplated
hereby or thereby, in each case except for the representations and warranties set forth in Article V, in each case, as modified by the Schedules to this Agreement. Except for the
specific representations and warranties expressly made by the Company in Article V, in each case as modified by the Schedules: (i) Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that: (A)
neither the Company, the Company Securityholders nor any of their respective representatives is making or has made any representation or warranty, express or implied, at law
or in equity, in respect of the Company, the business, assets, liabilities, operations, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company, the nature or extent of any
liabilities of the Company, the effectiveness or the success of any operations of the Company or the accuracy or completeness of any confidential information memoranda,
projections, forecasts or estimates of earnings, or other information (financial or otherwise) regarding the Company furnished to the Purchaser, Merger Sub or their respective
representatives or made available to Purchaser and its representatives in any “data rooms,” “virtual data rooms,” management presentations or any other form in expectation of,
or in connection with, the transactions contemplated hereby, or in respect of any other matter or thing whatsoever; and (B) no representative of any Company Securityholder or
the Company has any authority, express or implied, to make any representations, warranties or agreements not specifically set forth in Article V of this Agreement and subject to
the limited remedies herein provided; (ii) Purchaser specifically disclaims that it is relying upon or has relied upon any such other representations or warranties that may have
been made by any Person, and acknowledges and agrees that the Company Securityholders and the Company have specifically disclaimed and do hereby specifically disclaim
any such other representation or warranty made by any Person; and (iii) none of the Company, the Company Securityholders nor any other Person shall have any liability to
Purchaser or any other Person with respect to any such other representations or warranties, including without limitation projections, forecasts, estimates, plans or budgets of

future revenue, expenses or expenditures, future results of operations, future cash flows or the future financial condition of the Company or the future business, operations or
affairs of the Company.

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank; signature pages to follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the day and year first above written.
Purchaser:
CHARDAN HEALTHCARE ACQUISITION CORP.
By: /s/ Jonas Grossman

Name: Jonas Grossman
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Merger Sub:
CHAC MERGER SUB LTD.

By: /s/ Jonas Grossman
Name: Jonas Grossman
Title: Director

Company:
BIOMX LTD.

By: /s/ Jonathan Solomon

Name: Jonathan Solomon
Title: Chief Executive Officer

Shareholders’ Representative:

SHAREHOLDER REPRESENTATIVE SERVICES LLC, solely in
its capacity as the Shareholders’ Representative

By: /s/ Sam Riffe
Name: Sam Riffe
Title: Managing Director

Solely for the purposes of Section 9.10
CHARDAN INVESTMENTS LLC

By: /s/ Jonas Grossman
Name: Jonas Grossman
Title: Director




Exhibit 99.1
Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp. Announces Merger Agreement with BiomX Ltd.

— Combined Company Expected to Be Listed on the NYSE American Stock Exchange —
— Joint Investor Conference Call Scheduled for July 17, 2019 —

NEW YORK and Ness Ziona, Israel, July 16, 2019-- Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp. (NYSE: CHAC, “CHAC”), a special purpose acquisition company (“SPAC”)
sponsored by affiliates of Chardan Capital Markets LLC (“Chardan”), announced today that it has entered into a definitive agreement for a business combination with BiomX
Ltd. (“BiomX”), a microbiome company developing both natural and engineered phage therapies.

Assuming no redemption of CHAC shareholders, the combined company will have an initial market capitalization of approximately $254 million. Upon closing of the
transaction, it is expected that CHAC will be renamed BiomX and remain on the NYSE American Stock Exchange, listed under a new ticker symbol.

CHAC has entered into a mix of commitments including purchase and sale, backstop, and voting agreements with BiomX and with investors — including OrbiMed, RTW
Investment, Johnson & Johnson Innovation - JJDC, Inc. (JJIDC), Takeda Ventures, Inc., Seventure Partners’ Health for Life Capital I, SBI Japan-Israel Innovation Fund, as well
as RM Global Partners (RMGP) BioPharma Investment Fund — so that the $50 million minimum closing condition for the transaction has been satisfied prior to today’s
announcement.

Proceeds from the transaction will provide BiomX with substantial growth capital and the flexibility of a public listing to further accelerate BiomX’s expansion as a leading
microbiome product discovery company. BiomX is developing customized phage-based products designed to improve the appearance of acne-prone skin and eradicate harmful
bacteria in chronic diseases. The company’s pipeline includes preclinical candidates for acne-prone skin, inflammatory bowel disease (IBD), primary sclerosing cholangitis
(PSC), and colorectal cancer (CRC). BiomX’s product for acne-prone skin is anticipated to begin clinical testing by the end of 2019. The combined company will continue to be
led by BiomX’s experienced management team headed by Chief Executive Officer Jonathan Solomon.

“We created CHAC to partner with an innovative biotechnology company that would benefit from a public listing, could use our cash resources to implement groundbreaking
clinical work, and whose products and technology could lead to significant growth and drive long-term returns for our shareholders,” said Jonas Grossman, CHAC’s President
and Chief Executive Officer. “BiomX has all those qualities, along with an experienced management team ready to take the reins of a public company. We believe this
transaction leaves BiomX with a strong balance sheet and sufficient cash for the company to reach multiple value inflection points in its leading clinical programs”. George
Kaufman, CFO and Head of Strategy at CHAC, noted, “We believe we have structured a transaction that will deliver value to all stakeholders and creates opportunity for new
investors. We are excited to make use of inherent features of the SPAC in combination with the fundamental qualities of BiomX- and supportive shareholders for the benefit of
all of our partners.”




“Having our existing investors participate in this financing, along with additional life science funds who have not previously invested in BiomX, demonstrates their confidence
in our approach of using both natural and engineered phage cocktails to eradicate harmful bacteria in chronic diseases and conditions,” said Jonathan Solomon, Chief Executive
Officer of BiomX. “This merger will provide us with substantial additional financial resources that will support our upcoming clinical trials, speed up our preclinical research
and help expand our manufacturing capabilities.”

Gbola Amusa, M.D., C.F.A, Executive Chairman of CHAC, added, “We see growing investment momentum and interest in phage as a potentially disruptive and safe precision
tool for the eradication of specific harmful strains of bacteria. BiomX is well positioned to develop novel phage therapies based in part on its unique blend of state-of-the-art
microbiome, phage, computational biology, and synthetic biology technologies originally licensed from sources like the Weizmann Institute and MIT. In addition, BiomX is
targeting substantial commercial markets. The global market for cosmetics products for acne-prone skin according to WiseGuy Reports was approximately $4 billion in 2018.
EvaluatePharma estimates the global IBD and global colorectal cancer markets, respectively, generated $17.7 billion and $8.4 billion in prescription sales in 2018. For another
of BiomX’s target indications, PSC, we estimate the total addressable US market could be more than $3.5 billion in sales.”

“We have supported BiomX’s development and growth because of its talented management team and innovative drug development capabilities,” said Robbie Woodman, Ph.D.,
Senior Partner at Takeda Ventures, Inc. and member of the BiomX Board of Directors. “The combined company is well positioned to advance its programs for acne-prone skin,
IBD and PSC.”

The respective boards of directors of both CHAC and BiomX have approved the proposed transaction. Completion of the transaction, which is expected in October 2019, is
subject to approval by CHAC stockholders and satisfaction of other closing conditions.

Chardan is acting as CHAC’s M&A and capital markets advisor. Cantor is acting as capital markets advisor to BiomX. Loeb & Loeb LLP and Meitar Liquornik Geva Leshem
Tal are representing CHAC. Goodwin Procter LLP, Mayer Brown LLP and ZAG-S&W Zysman Aharoni Gayer & Co are representing BiomX.

Summary of Transaction

CHAC raised $70 million in its IPO which is now held in a trust account. Under the terms of the proposed transaction announced today, CHAC will issue 16.625 million shares
and vested securities to current securityholders of BiomX. Certain BiomX shareholders may, subject to the terms of the investment agreements, receive up to an additional 6.0
million CHAC shares: 2.0 million shares if the share price exceeds $16.50 by fiscal year 2021, an additional 2.0 million shares if the share price exceeds $22.75 by fiscal year
2023, and an additional 2.0 million shares if the share price exceeds $29.00 by fiscal year 2025.




After giving effect to the investor transactions being undertaken in order to meet the minimum cash condition, and assuming no redemption from CHAC shareholders, it is
estimated that the current securityholders of BiomX will own approximately 73% of the issued and outstanding vested securities in the combined company at closing.

Post-closing, Mr. Solomon and three current BiomX directors will join Mr. Grossman and Dr. Amusa from CHAC on the seven-person board of directors. An additional board
member will be designated by BiomX.

The description of the business combination contained herein is only a summary and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the definitive agreement relating to the business
combination, a copy of which will be filed by CHAC with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) as an exhibit to a Current Report on Form 8-K. Additional
information about the proposed transaction will be described in CHAC’s preliminary proxy statement relating to the business combination, which CHAC will file with the SEC.

Conference Call Scheduled

CHAC will host a conference call to discuss the proposed business combination with the investment community on July 17, 2019 at 8:30 AM EDT. Investors may listen to the
conference call by dialing (877) 705-6003 toll-free in the U.S. or (201) 493-6725 internationally. The conference ID number is 13692693. The conference call webcast will be
available at http://public.viavid.com/index.php?id=135425. A related investor presentation with more detailed information regarding the proposed transaction will be furnished
today to the SEC, and can be viewed at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. A transcript of the investor call, when available, as well as the investor presentation, can also be
found on the BiomX website provided below.

About BiomX

BiomX is a preclinical stage microbiome company developing both natural and engineered phage cocktails designed to target and destroy bacteria that affect the appearance of
skin, as well as harmful bacteria in chronic diseases, such as IBD, PSC, and cancer. BiomX discovers and validates proprietary bacterial targets and customizes phage
compositions against these targets.

www.biomx.com.

No portion of BiomX’s website is incorporated by reference into or otherwise deemed to be a part of this press release.

About Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp.

CHAC is a special purpose acquisition company formed for the purpose of effecting a merger, acquisition, or similar business combination. CHAC raised $70.0 million in

December 2018 for the purpose of combining with a public or privately-held operating business. CHAC was founded and sponsored by affiliates of Chardan Capital Markets
LLC. CHAC is Chardan’s fifth publicly traded acquisition vehicle.




Safe Harbor Language

This press release contains certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the “safe harbor” provisions of the US Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Forward-looking statements can be identified by words such as: “target,” “believe,” “expect,” “will,” “may,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “would,” “positioned,” “future,” and
other similar expressions that predict or indicate future events or trends or that are not statements of historical matters. Examples of forward-looking statements include, among
others, statements made in this press release regarding the proposed business combination, including the anticipated initial enterprise value and post-closing equity value, the
benefits of the proposed business combination, integration plans, expected synergies and revenue opportunities, anticipated future financial and operating performance and
results, including estimates for growth, the expected management and governance of the combined company, and the expected timing of the proposed transactions contemplated
by the definitive agreement. Forward-looking statements are neither historical facts nor assurances of future performance. Instead, they are based only on CHAC and BiomX
managements’ current beliefs, expectations and assumptions. Because forward-looking statements relate to the future, they are subject to inherent uncertainties, risks and
changes in circumstances that are difficult to predict and many of which are outside of our control. Actual results and outcomes may differ materially from those indicated in the
forward-looking statements. Therefore, you should not rely on any of these forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause actual results and outcomes to differ
materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements include, among others, the following: (1) the occurrence of any event that could give rise to the termination of
the agreement with respect to the business combination; (2) the outcome of any legal proceedings that may be instituted against CHAC, the combined company, or others
following the announcement of the business combination and the business combination agreement; (3) the inability to complete the business combination due to the failure to
obtain approval of CHAC’s stockholders or to satisfy other conditions to closing in the business combination agreement; (4) changes to the proposed structure of the business
combination that may be required or appropriate as a result of applicable laws; (5) the ability to meet NYSE American listing standards following the consummation of the
business combination; (6) the risk that the business combination disrupts current plans and operations of BiomX as a result of the announcement and consummation of the
business combination; (7) the ability to recognize the anticipated benefits of the business combination, which may be affected by, among other things, competition, the ability of
the combined company to grow and manage growth profitably, maintain relationships with third parties and partners, obtain adequate supply of raw materials and retain its
management and key employees; (8) costs related to the business combination; (9) changes in applicable laws or regulations; (10) the possibility that BiomX or the combined
company may be adversely affected by other economic, business, regulatory, and/or competitive factors; (11) BiomX estimates of expenses; (12) the impact of foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates fluctuations on the results of BiomX or the combined company; and (13) other risks and uncertainties indicated in the proxy statement of
CHAC to be filed by CHAC with the SEC in connection with the business combination, including those under “Risk Factors” therein, and other documents filed or to be filed
from time to time with the SEC by CHAC. A further list and description of risks and uncertainties can be found in CHAC’s Prospectus dated December 14, 2018 filed with the
SEC and in the proxy statement on Schedule 14A that will be filed with the SEC by CHAC in connection with the proposed transaction, and other documents that the parties
may file or furnish with the SEC, which you are encouraged to read. Any forward-looking statement made by us in this press release is based only on information currently
available to CHAC and BiomX and speaks only as of the date on which it is made. CHAC and BiomX undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking
statement, whether written or oral, that may be made from time to time, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise, except as required by law.
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Important Information

BiomX Ltd. (“BiomX”), Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp. (“CHAC?”), and their respective directors, executive officers and employees and other persons may be deemed
to be participants in the solicitation of proxies from the holders of CHAC common stock in respect of the proposed transaction described herein. Information about CHAC’s
directors and executive officers and their ownership of CHAC’s common stock is set forth in CHAC’s Prospectus dated December 14, 2018 filed with the SEC, as modified or
supplemented by any Form 3 or Form 4 filed with the SEC since the date of such filing. Other information regarding the interests of the participants in the proxy solicitation will
be included in the proxy statement pertaining to the proposed transaction when it becomes available. These documents can be obtained free of charge from the sources indicated
below.

In connection with the transaction described herein, CHAC will file relevant materials with the SEC including a proxy statement on Schedule 14A. Promptly after filing its
definitive proxy statement with the SEC, CHAC will mail the definitive proxy statement and a proxy card to each stockholder entitled to vote at the special meeting relating to
the transaction. INVESTORS AND SECURITY HOLDERS OF CHAC ARE URGED TO READ THESE MATERIALS (INCLUDING ANY AMENDMENTS OR
SUPPLEMENTS THERETO) AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTION THAT CHAC WILL FILE WITH THE
SEC WHEN THEY BECOME AVAILABLE BECAUSE THEY WILL CONTAIN IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT CHAC, BIOMX AND THE TRANSACTION.
The definitive proxy statement, the preliminary proxy statement and other relevant materials in connection with the transaction (when they become available), and any other
documents filed by CHAC with the SEC, may be obtained free of charge at the SEC’s website (www.sec.gov) or by writing to Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp., 17 State
Street, 21st Floor, New York, NY 10004.

CHAC contact:

Jonas Grossman

Chief Executive Officer

Chardan Healthcare Acquisition Corp.
+1-212-920-9000
grossmanj@chardanspac.com

BiomX contact:
Assaf Oron

Chief Business Officer
BiomX
+972-54-2228901
assafo@biomx.com

Media contact:

Shai Biran, Ph.D.
MacDougall
+1-781-235-3060
biomx@macbiocom.com
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Disclaimer

Thiz investor wﬁenﬁﬁon[‘lnuesmrl’msmmiun”}isfor informational purposas only and does not consttute anoffer tosall, solickation of an offerto buy, or arecommendation to purchase any equity, debtor othar
financial instrumaents of Chardan Healthcare Acquisition [*CHAC”] or BiemX Ltd [*BiomX” ) or anyof BiomX or CHAC's affiliate securities (a5 such term is defined under the U.S, federal securities laws). The information
conteined herain does not purport to be sll-nclusive and (2 guslfied in ksentirety by the defintve merger szreament entered inm July 16, 20091 led by CHAC an & Current Report on Form 8-K on July 17, 2003 The
data contzined herein isdervvedfrom various internal and externalsources. Mo representation is made as totha reasonableness of the sssumptions made within or theacouracy or completenass of any other
information containad harsin, All levels, pricas and spreads are histoncal snd donot raprasant cumant market levals, prices or spraads, someor all of which may have changed sincethe isuance of thisdoourmant. Any
data on pas: parfarmance, medeling contained harein isnotanindicstion astefuture parformance. CHAC and Biom assume na cbligation to updete the information inthis Investor Presereation. Neither CHAC or
BlomX =coepts 3ny lisbility whatsoever for anylossesarsing from the use of this Investor Presentation or reliance onthe information contained herein. Nothing herein shall be desmed toconstinute invesmment, legsl,
tax, finandal, sccourting or other advice. This Investor Presentation is baing providedfor useonly by the intended rad pient,

Mo representation orwarranty (whether expressed or implied) has besn made by CHALD, BlomX or any of their respective afiliateswith respect wo the matters setforth in this | nvestor Pressntation, and theredpient
disclsims any such representation or warsnty. Only those particular re presentstions and wamanties of CHAC, BiomX or any of theirrespedive affilistes made in a definitewritten subsoription agreement, if any,
ragarding the matters sat forth in thisInvestor Prasentation [which will net contain any representation of warranty relating tothis Imeestor Prasentation or information containad in oromittedfrom thisInvestor
Presentstion ) whenandif execited, and subject to such limistons snd restricions 85 specified therein, shall have any legal effect At any time upon the requestof CHAC far any reason, recipient shall prampaly deliver
o CHAC or securely destroy this Investor Presentation and any other documentsfurnished toredpientby or onbehal of CHAC or BiomX without kesping any coples, in whole or part, thereof.
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Disclaimer Continued

Forward-Looking Statements

Thizs Invastor Presantationincludas "forward-locking statemants” within tha maaning of tha*safe harbor” provisions of tha US Private Securities Litigation Reform Actof 1995, Forward-logking statements can be
identified by the uss of words such as "orscas " "intend,” "target,” "believe,” wil|,” "axpect,” "astimate,” "plan,” snd"preject” and other similar expressions thee pradict or indicate future averesor trends or that are
not statements of hismorical matzrs. Such forward-looking setements ind ud e sEtements about our beliefs and expectstions and the estimated financial information and other projections contained herein. Examples
of fererard-looking statemants incuds, 3 mong others, =ataments made inthis Investor Presemeation raganding the revenues, eamings, paformance, strategies, prospacs and other aspects of the business of BiomX,
CHAC or the combined company sfter completion of the proposad transaction ["the Business Combination” ). Forward-looking statements ane neither historical facts nor assurances of future performance. Instesd,
they are based only on management’s current ballefs, experations and az=umptions. Because forwand-looking sEtements relzte to the fure, they are subjec o inheren unceraint es, risks and changes in
circumstancesthat aradifficult to predict snd many of which areoutsade of our control. Actua| results and outcomes may differ materis by from thoss indicatzdin the forwand-looking ststements. Thersfore, you should
nat rely on any of thess forward-locking statemaents. Importantfacions that could causes acta | results and outcomes to differ mataerially from thoss indicatadin the forward-looking statemants indude, among othars,
the following: [1)the sccurrence of Bny event that could giverise ta the =minstion of the merger sereament betwesn CHAC and Biormx (the *Mesger Agreameant”) with respect to the Busness Combinstion (2) the
outcome of any lagal proceed ingsthat may be instituted agsinst CHAC, the combined company, or others following the announcement of the Business Combination and theMearger Agreement; (3} theinability to
cempletetha Business Combination dueto thefailurate obtain spproval of CHAL s stodkhelders or to satisfy otharconditions to closing inthe Marger Agreement; (4] changes to tha propesed structure of the Business
Cambination thet may berequired or appropriste as a resultof spplicable lsw=or regulations; (5) the ability to maet NYSE American listing standards following the consummation of the Business Combination; [(B) the
rizk that the Business Combinetion disrupts current plans and operations of Biomi 2= 3 resul of the announcement and consummation of the Business Combination; (7| theahility to recognize the antid pated bensfits
of the Business Combination, which may beaffected by, among other things, ion, thaability of th binad companyto growand manage growth profitably, mai meain reEtionships with third paries and
partners, obtain adequate supply of raw materak and retain its management and keyemployeess; [2) cost=related tothe Business Combination; [39) changes in applicable law= or regul stions; (10] the possibility that
BiomX or the combined company may be adversely affectad by other economiz, business, regulatany, and for competithve facmes; (11) BiomX estmares of expenses; (12] the impac of foreign urrency exchangerates
and interestrates fluctuations on theresults of BiomX or the combined company; and (12) other risks and uncertsintiesindicted inthis Investor Presentation under “Risks Related toProjectionsand ProForma
Prasentation,” tha proxy statement of CHAC (the "ProxyStatament”) to be fiked by CHAC with the Securities and Exchangs Commission [tha "SEC™) in connection with the Businass Combinaticn, induding these undar
"Risk Factors” therein, end other documentsfiled or to befiled from time to timewith the SEC by CHAL. You are cautioned notto place undue refiance upon any forward-looking statements, which speak only asof the
date made. CHAC and BiomX undemske no obligation topublidy update any forwand-looking sEtement, whether writtenor oral, thatmay be madefrom timetotime, whetheras a result of new information, future
davalopmants or otherwisa, axcept 2 required by law.

Industry and Market Data

In this Investor Presentation, BiomXrelieson and refers to ifformation and statistics inthe sectors in which it intends o compete. BiomX obmined thisinformation and statistics from third-party sources believed tobe
reliable, including reparts by market ressarchfirms BlomX hassupplemented thisinfermation where necessan with itsown interra | 2= mares, taking into scount publicly 3vailable infommation about other industry
participants and its management' s best view asto information thatisnotpublidyavel sble. Neither BiomX norCHAL has independently verified the sccuracy or completenessof any such thind-party infomaton,
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Chardan Healthcare Investment Criteria

3 Venture-backed healthcare company in the biopharma or digital health sector
AR Public-company-ready management team
QE:( Actively considering public listing

@©)  $200-$500mm IPO valuation

=1
=3
|
—)

Upcoming catalysts to drive valuation post-business combination
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Transaction Overview: CHAC Merging with BiomX Ltd.
Business combination creates a leading publicly traded microbiome discovery company

Transaction Summary* Post Transaction Ownership

* CHAC to merge with BiomX Ltd. to create a publicly-listed company focused on
delivering novel microbiome-based technologies designed to improve the
appearance of acne-prone skin? and treat conditions such as inflammatory bowel
disease, primary sclerosing cholangitis, and cancer

CHAC Public

Shareholders
* Pro forma valuation of $254 million 20%

* ~599 million of post-transaction cash

* BiomX securityholders to roll 100% of their vested equity holdings in the
transaction, resulting in ~73% pro forma ownership post merger

* 16,625 million shares® to be issued to BiomX securityholders at $10.00 per share

* Earn-out provision provides certain shareholders of BiomX additional potential
milestone-based equity consideration as follows:

— 6,000,000 in total potential earn-out shares if the share price exceeds each of
$16.50, $22.75 and $29.00 by FYE21, FYE23 and FYEZ25, respectively“

{1} Assuming noredemptionsfrom the CHAC shareholders.
(2} For brevity, from here forward in this presentation we use the term “acne” to mean acne-prone skin.

) (3} Includes vested securities convertible into CHAC shares.
I (4} Bosed on VWAPduring any 20 out of a 30-day period.




Transaction Summary?!

Pro forma valuation Sources of Funds

Illustrative share price (per share) 510.00 CHAC Cash in Trust $70,000,000
Vested securities outstanding {million) 25.375 BiomX Shareholder Equity Rollover 5166,250,000
Equity Value $253,750,000 Sponsor Promote 517,500,000
Estimated post-close cash on Balance Sheet $99,000,000 Total Sources $253,750,000

Uses of Funds

Equity Issued to BiomX Shareholders $166,250,000
Additionalcash to Biom¥ Balance Sheet $69,000,000
CHAC Estimated Transaction Costs 51,000,000
Sponsor Promote 517,500,000
Total Uses $253,750,000

ma Ownership with Earn-out to BiomX and % total ownership (1) (Millions of shares)
Pro Forma Share Price, pershare

5$10.00 516.50 522.75 $29.00

Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares %
BiomX Initial Shareholders 18.625 18.625 18.625 18.625
Earn-out Shares, cumulative 2.000 4.000 6.000
BiomX Initial Shareholders 18.625 73% 20,625 70% 22,625 T0% 24.625 0%
CHAC PublicShareholders 5.000 20% 6.061 21% 6.731 20% 7.112 20%
CHAC Sponsors 1.750 7% 2629 9% 3.184 10% 3.500 10%
Pro Forma Shares Qutstanding 25.375 100% 29.315 100% 32.540 100% 35.237 100%

(1) Assuming no redemptions from the CHAC shareholders, giving effect to warrants to exercisable ot $11.50
per share, using treasury method to calculate fully diluted shares outstanding and 2 million shares of

[
Blmx currently outstanding CHAC shares purchased at closing by current BiomX investors.




Executive Summary

Phage: A disruptive technology targeting significant market opportunities
*+  The customized (natural and engineered) phage platform is disruptive and has a long history of use in humans and animals?
* |nvestment momentum in phage modality has been seen in recent months

*  Acne isa significant initial opportunity, with a potential cosmetic commercialization path (Approximately a 54 bn global cosmetic
market?)

= IBD, primary sclerosing cholangitis (an orphan indication), and oncology are significant opportunities

Investors: Robust science fuels support from leading life sciences and strategic investors
*  The platform and IP portfolio originate from leading scientists at MIT and the Weizmann Institute

*  Strong support exists from institutional life sciences investors

* BiomXinsiders include big biopharma investors, which could support meaningful future partnerships

Catalysts: Several value inflection points (acne, IBD, PSC) over an expected 2-3-year period
»  ~5100mm of post-transaction cash offers certain clinical valuation inflection points

*+  Platform PoC acne data read out expected in 1Q20, with PoC expected to follow in IBD (2020) and PSC (2021)

* Performance is likely on microbiome sector macro, given modest valuation and upcoming clinical data

{1} Kortrightet al. (2015), Cell Host & Microbe; Schmidt et al. {2019}, Noture Biotechnology
(2} Global AntiAcne Cosmetics industry Market Research Report 2019, Wise Guy Reports
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Leadership Team

Management Team

Jonathan Solomon CEO and Board Member
Assaf Oron cBO
Sailaja Puttagunta, MD cMO

Sigal Fattal! cro

Scientific Founders

Prof. Rotem Sorek
Prof. Eran Elinav

Prof. Timothy K. Lu

E Drocloro  BiomX

POCLtd ChondroSite W BlomX

@ PH?H{‘.
Ectel Ltd ]}a:ka}i’}lim;:‘.al ‘E

i*Allergan @ITERUM Biomx

Biom(

CVOgCno

(1) Following the closing of the transaction Sigal Fattalwill transition from the CFO role.
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Leadership Team

Board of Directors

Rob Woodman, PhD
Erez Chimovits

Zeev Zehavi

Henk Brulleman

Eric de La Fortelle, PhD

Yaron Breski

Biom
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Mission Statement

We develop precision medicines in the
microbiome sector using customized phage
therapies that target harmful bacteria in
chronic diseases such as IBD and cancer.

Biom)(




Unique Position

Technology

Pipeline

Exclusive access
to novel targets

Partnerships

Leading life science
and strategic investors

Biom)(

Phage discovery platform

Proprietary synthetic biology capabilities I I I H =
Cutting-edge data science I l
In-house manufacturing

Initial 4 programs: acne, IBD, PSC (a liver disease), colorectal cancer
Phase I data in acne expected in Q1 2020

Phase I data in IBD expected in H2 2020

Phase I/Il data in PSC expected in 2021

Proprietary targets in IBD and PSC

v L e
Target discovery and validation platform steered by cutting-edge Scienge
research of scientific founders

Acne collaboration with leading global cosmetic company -
Biomarker discovery in IBD for key Janssen (J&J)IBD drug janssen )'

&) OrbilVied (otrmonfohmon Takeda Seventure 8\/6




Growing Evidence of Harmful Bacteria Role
iIn Acne and Chronic Diseases

PSC Il Acne

Klebsiella pneumoniae strains @ ;} Propionibacterium acnes is
induce leaky gut and initiate liver ,r associated with acne vulgaris

inflammation and fibrosis }
e H Fitz-Gibbonetal. (2013),

e Makamoto et al. (2019], ™ L
1m lcrcblnlogy Nature Micrabislogy ™ . ;I

| ]
- - 1BD

I I|I | -

I | e
Colorectal cancer s = 5 | Klebsiella pneumoniae strains
Reducing Fusobacterium load [~ 1§ | cause aberrantactivationand
results in reduced cancer cell I @ | H stimulation of the immune system
proliferationand tumor growth .| e

I \ \ S(’:i(.‘n(,‘(: E:!’:fi:: ik
Cell Buliman et al. (2017), | i \ [
Cell ) ;.1 | f J
y II: | /{
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Phage ¢ Nature's Precision Targeting Vector

bacterial strains

€ Locate

© Inject - O
N4 ‘:‘ K, © Infect
@ Multiply

o
/ @ Assemble
-

|
” l \
° - s / @ Eradicate ‘j@ ‘
€ Seek 4

Source: Kortright et ol, (2015), Cell Host & Microbe
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Phage Technology Platform

Phage Hunting Phage Engineering
+ Sample sourcing (Syn BlO)

* Automated sample processing + Host range expansion

* SynBio prophage extraction . Lysogenic to lytic

* Payloadincorporation

Customized
Phage Cocktail

Cocktail Optimization

» Multi-dimensional optimization in vitro
and in vivo: host range, biofilm,
resistance, receptor analysis, toxic genes

Biom)(




Proprietary Synthetic Biology Capabilities

Expanding phage host range Switching phage mode of action
against multiple targets from lysogenic to lytic
PhageC
Phage A Phage B i%
Phage synthetic
: engineering KP2
KP2 KPT -
6V

2 different
bacterial targets

Lysogenic to lytic

Repressor
deletion

=D

Lysogenic Lytic

KPT

Source: Internal experiments
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Pipeline

Phage discovery Preclinical Phasel Phasell Partners
Product Candidates
» Phase I results expected 1Q20 Frin
Acne - BX001! Py
» Phase I results expected 2H20 company
= Pre-IND meeting expected 2H19
1BD - BX002 3 | ey
» Pre-IND meeting expected 2H20
PSC + BX0O === |
8 » Phase /I results expected 2H21
Colorectal cancer I

Biomarkerdiscovery  Validation Development

Diagnostics

IBD (responder/
non-responder)

Janssen)—'

(1) BX001 is intended to be developed and commercialized as a cosmetic
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Acne ¢ Indication Offers Quick Phage Platform POC

» Strong rationale for phage approach: Biology Y
underpins efficient eradication of P. acnes _

*  Will run clinical trial in collaboration with a leading
multi-national cosmetic company

* Approximate $4 billion global cosmetic market
exists!

(1) Global AntiAcne Cosmetics industry Market Research Report 2013, Wise Guy Reports
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Acne * BX001 Product Attributes

* Active in-vitro on 96% of tested P acnes clinical strains

* Active in-vitro on antibiotic-resistant strains

+ Self-amplifying: 50-100 phage BX001
per bacteria killed A topical gel containing
natural phage agalnst-
« Penetrates biofilm (in contrast to antibiotic il :c"rg‘;g:E“ .
erythromycin)

* Highly specific: Does not affect
other skin microbiome bacteria

* Proprietary gel formulation

Sources: Internalexperiments;

BiomX




Acne - BX001 Pre-clinical Results

BX001 eradicates P acnes Phage cocktails penetrate biofilm

10007
1
L2 1.00E+06 I
1 | =2 "2
Non-infected £ 1006805
= acne strain = T mith
£ o8 g
g 100504
O 0.6
8 8 1,068
5 0.4 -
[s] £ 1m0 =
0.2 E
1.00E+01
: I Bl AL
0 30 60 50 120 150

1.00E=00
Hours Nophage  Eryth dn (100  Iphage Iphage 4 phage
e Codmil 1 Codtad 2 Coda:

Source: internalexperiments
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Acne - BX001 Pre-clinical Results

Release of active phage from gel
on P acnes bacterial lawn artificially infected with P acnes

Release of active phage from gel on human skin

Effect of phage on R acnes colonized skin

10000.00

*®
*
000.00
i
E
= Bacterial reduction
L on human skin after
gel application
10.00
1.00 T
SNgie oplcaion Repeat app iCation |SNEIE sppIICAIon Repest sppication
Black: Where gel with BX001 was applied Placsko Formutar e BX-001
Red:  Area of phage activity (eradicated P. acnes) “pe0.05

Source: internalexperiments
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Acne - BX001 Planned Clinical Trials

4-week study (placebo-controlled)
+ Objectives
i, Safety
+ Exploratory endpoints
i. Reduction of 2. acnes (efficacy)
ii. Skin microbiome evaluation
. Lesion numbers (efficacy, trend)
« 75 patients total over 3 cohorts
-2 doses + 1 placebo (vehicle)
— 23 patients per cohort

8-week study (placebo-controlled)
+ Objectives
i, Safety and efficacy
+ Endpoints
i. Reduction of P. acnes (efficacy)
ii. Skin microbiome evaluation
li. IGA and lesion numbers (efficacy)
+ 100 patients total over 2 cohorts
—1 dose + 1 placebo {(vehicle)
— 50 patients per cohort

2019 I 3019 | 2q19 | 1920

Biom)(
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IBD - Targeting Pro-inflammatory Klebsiella Strains

Inflammatory induction is seen in GF mice

GF + 7 other mix GF + target strain

= 107 = 32.4] W THL
Pro-inflammatory Klebsiella strains = : = o
affect IBD pathology ; o 4 -0 ; L& & |
™ i a2 ™ R |
. u “ ‘.
"L T

Higher abundance of Klebsiella strains in IBD patients

Abundance of Klebsiella strains

wf T PRISM| 50[ T UPenn|
@ 25 a0l
o Induce 2 x| 2
@ = o inflammation i:; |
&, 0|

Activity of bacterial target confirmed by BiomX

Source: Atarashiet al, (2017), Sclence
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PSC - Klebsiella Identified as Novel Pathobiont

KP isolated from
mice’s lymph nodes

nature
Th17 is induced in livers of GF mice

microbiology
inoculated with fecal samples from

PSC patient cullor!izedwith
Discovery approach s patient samples

Liver Liver | MILN |Sgpleen

Thi7 .
) SPFmico | ND ND

mmp Metagenomic analysis of gut
amvions| 10 | @] 40

micrﬂbimﬂﬂmpoiiﬁoﬂ )
PSCUC-
gnotobiote | NP . b

GF mice = :
' ; GF H1 H2 H3 H4 P1 P2 P} P4 PS U1 U2 U3 4 U5
- Lo . 4

PSC patients  Colitis patients & -
Fecal samples Humanized Analysis of Klebsiella pneumoniae
Fram PSC patierts microbiotamice immune responsa play; a gatlng role

(- N -

W IL-177 I CD4

Klebsiella pneumoniae (KP) is a specific gut pathobiont of PSCthat

an intestinal barrier disrupter and is pro-inflammatory (“leaky gut”)

Source: Nakamoto et al. (2019), Nature Microblology
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PSC - Bacterial Pathogens Contribute to Orphan
Liver Disease

» Evidencethat
manipulationof the
microbiome impacts
the disease

* High abundance of

PSC (primary sclerosing cholangitis) bacteria found in bile
: G : : fluid of patients
Characterized by stricturing of bile ducts that impedes the flow of

bile to the intestines and gradually leading to cirrhosis of the liver * A majority of PSC
and liver failure. patients suffer from

) ulcerative colitis
« ~30,000 patients in the US

« 10-15 years until liver transplant is required
* No existing therapy to avoid eventual liver transplant

Source: NEIM 2016, P5CReview, LoRusso and Lozaridls
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BX002 for IBD « Looking to Address Resistance by
Using Phage Cocktails

How a phage cocktail overcomes resistance Infection dynamics of phage cocktails (in vitro)

Comparing various phage cocktail combinations
Phage cocktail
0.5

——F

Bacteria target

/

Uninfected
(no phage)

Sub-optimal cocktails:

03 / "“‘-—-, Resistant strains

ODeo0

0.2
Cptimized cocktails:

Mo-resistant strains

Phage cocktails are rationally optimized L

to prevent resistance by targeting multiple
bacterial receptors and defense mechanisms

=
u

10 15

Time post infection [h]

Source: internalexperiments
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BX002 for IBD « Cocktail Composition Drives Activity

o - eI
1 generatlonﬁ&aa]ge cocktail (in 2nd-generation phage cocktail (in-vivo)

Fecal bacterial load @ Fecal bacterial load &5 Mucosa
Application of phage Application of phage
1ot * Addil"lg 2 0. 105
5 108 3 phages with o ¥ Control E v
L] —_——
£ 105 “* Control new MOA é . s 104 v ]
B * 1:t-gen cacktail ‘ 5 g ' ;
E 104 LOD E 404 z"d—gen a 102 - S
1029 102
100 I 1084, L .
[ 2 rl [ B 10 e P N 13 T "y
Day from inoculation Day from inoculation £ 2.:
£ 8
g =d
*p 2001 *Pa0.05 ; **P < 0.001

Source: Internal experiments
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IBD ¢+ Planned Clinical Development - Phase 1

Study Phase 1a/b

Study objectives
Population -
Cohorts =

Treatmentroute, *
duration .

Biom)(

Primary:

+ Safety and tolerability of orally-administered BX002
Secondary:

* Reduction of target bacteria levels in stool

* Evaluation of microbial composition in stool
Exploratory:

* Local inflammataory

Target bacteria carriers — patients or healthy individuals

30-45 patients across 3 cohorts
2 dose levels + placebo (vehicle)
10-15 patients per cohort

Oral route
4 weeks, daily administration

Specific gPCR
companion
diagnostic

Phage treatment BX002




CRC - Most Colorectal Cancer (CRC) Patients
Do Not Respond to Immunotherapy

\ Immune
"Hot” tumor .+ checkpoint =

& =

\
A

Immune

"Cold"” tumor 5 + checkpoint =

7 =

\
\

Sources: Vareki {2018), Journalforimmunotherapy of Cancer; Galon et al. (2013), Noture Reviews/Drug Discovery
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CRC - Bacteria Residing Inside Tumors Offer a Novel
Targeted Intervention to “Uncloak” Tumors to “Hot”

Numerous observations of bacteria residing inside tumors

F. nucleatum




CRC - IV Delivery of Phage to Intra-tumor Bacteria has
been Demonstrated

Experimental outline Results - Mice tumor qPCR analysis

i -iv P;f- Mean qPCR of lysogenic +/- SD
- Auclegrum oge
cT26sC - Ag ry PR .. X 1.+ W
ingculaton o
- Al BlE s
Y } HERES
- s E % A5 .
0 di2 di3 Days gl >
T a0
2 & *ele,
Termination: 24h after IV administration of phage, ll B ; :
followed by qPCR analysis of the tumor for presence of et s .
phage and F. nucleatum
IV adm. Phage - +

Detection of lysogenized intra-tumor F. nucleatum demonstrates phage delivered IV reached

bacteria within tumor microenvironment and integrated stably into host bacteria genome

Source: internalexperiments
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CRC - Engineered Phage Designed to Bring Immune-
stimulating Payload to Bacteria in Tumors

Phage are designed to carry payload o ;
P A P e ail wit I t cold tumors into hot
targeting intra-tumor bacteria D e

Phage cocktail

Im
& % “Cold"tumor | 4 checkpoint =
ra . inhibitors

Add payload using SynBio

Phage cocktail
“Cold” tumor
+ new gene o\ | @
She
Phage cocktail l
5 o Immune
S '/;i ‘Hot™ tumor + checkpoint =
Al N . inhibitors
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Key Catalysts

1H19
Mfg.

Phage
cocktail

Phage
discovered
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2H19

Phase I
starts

Pre-IND
meeting

Phage
cocktail

1H20

Phase I
Results

Mfg.

Pre-IND
meeting

2H20

Phase I
results

Phase I
results

Mfg

1H21

Prep large-
scale mfg.

Phase Il
starts

Phase I/TI
starts

2H21

Prep large-
scale mfg.

Interim
results

Interim
results




Transaction and Valuation Summary




Transaction Highlights?

» Pro forma valuation of $254 million

—  ~$%99 million of post-transaction cash on the combined company balance sheet to pursue clinical and
commercial development

» BiomX securityholders to roll 100% of their vested equity holdingsin the transaction
- Holders exchange all BiomX vested securities for 16.625 million CHAC shares? at $10.00 per share

- Certain BiomX Shareholders are also purchasing an additional 2.000 million CHAC shares directly from
current CHAC shareholders via purchase and sale agreements

- Results in BiomX vested securityholders with approximately 73% ownership post-merger

» Earn-outprovision provides certain shareholders of BiomX additional potential milestone-based equity
consideration as follows®:

- Additional 2.0 million shares if share price exceeds $16.50 by fiscal year 2021
— Additional 2.0 million sharesif share price exceeds $22.75 by fiscal year 2023
— Additional 2.0 million shares if share price exceeds $29.00 by fiscal year 2025

(1} Assuming noredemptions from the CHAC shareholders.
(2} Includes vested securities convertible into CHAC shares.

Biomx (3} Based on VWAPduring any 20 out of a 30-day period.




Risks Related to Projections and Pro Forma Presentation

The inclusion of the CHAC projections for BlomX in the Proxy Statement and the inclusion in this Investor Presentation of certain analyses referencing such
projections should not be regarded as an indication that BiomX, CHAC or their respective advisors or other representatives considered or considerthe
projections to be necessarily predictive of actual future financial performance or events, and the projections should not be relied upon as such.

BiomX isa preclinical stage microbiome company expecting to start a first clinical trial by the end of 2019, and as such does notyet have any revenue-
generating products, and thus does not make public its long-term financial forecasts driven by the potential of its phage products. In connection with BiomX's
Board of Directors” evaluation of the Business Combination, Biomx's management did not prepare long-range, risk-adjusted revenue projections but did
provide expense estimates for the years 2019 through 2022, which were based on numerous assumptions and qualifications believed by BiomX to be
reasonable. CHAC conducted additional analyses, independently of Biomi, to assess the risk-adjusted revenue prospects of acne (assuming the product
candidate will be marketed as a cosmetic), IBD, PSC, and colorectal cancer products by relying on assumptions, none of which were approved by BiomX, about
the robustness of BiomX's technologies, the likelihood of the emergence of phage asa therapeutic platform, regulatory postures around phage technology,
and individual product probabilities of success, launch timing, pricing, pricing growth, market growth, phage market penetration, BiomX product candidates
market share, effects from competition and certain other factors affecting the commercial prospects of BiomX's product candidates.

Factors considered and assumptions made by CHAC are extremely uncertain and difficult to predict, with many being beyond the control of BiomX or its
competitors. CHAC thought it appropriateto prepare forecasts representing three cases (A, B, and C) reflecting arange of risk-adjusted commercial outcomes
on BiomX's portfolio of product candidates, none of which has received any regulatory or marketing approvals. As such, there can be no certainty thatthe
projections presented will be realized or that BiomX will ever receiveregulatory approvals required in connection with any product candidates or achieve
profitability.

CaseA: Limited marketacceptance of BiomX product pipeline
Case B: Moderate market acceptance of BiomX product pipeline
Case C: Wide market acceptance of BiomX product pipeline

The projections below were not prepared for the purposes of public disclosure, nor for adherence to compliance with published guidelines of the SEC, nor for

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles or other foreign or international accounting standards. In addition, the projections below were prepared by
CHAC without the assistance, compilation, examination, or other review by independent accountants.
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Risks Related to Projections and Pro Forma Presentation (continued)

There may be differences between actual and projected results, and the differences may be material. Therisk that these uncertainties and contingencies
could cause the assumptions to fail to be reflective of actual results is further increased by the length of time over which thess assumptions apply. The failure
to achieve assumptions and projections in early periods could have a compounding effect on the projections shown for the later periods. Thus, any such
failure of an assumption or projection to be reflective of actual results in an early period could have a greater effect on the projected results failingto be
reflective of actual events in later periods.

Biomx isa preclinical stage company, without aregulatorily-approved product, and as discussed in the Proxy Statement, its business is subject to numerous

risks. Inthe contextof a preclinical stage company projections are inherently unreliable given the many variables, especially in later years, that may affect
results.

All projections are “forward-locking statements” within the meaning of the “safe harbor” provisions of the US Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
See "Forward-Looking Statements” in this Investor Presentation.

Biom




Merger Valuation versus DCF Analysis

Discounted Cash Flow Analysis, based on forecasts prepared by CHAC using a range of assumptions regarding clinical success
and commercial acceptance. Information on this page should be read in conjunction with prior pages and with disclosures
in the Proxy Statement regarding the risk and uncertainties related to pro forma forecasts.

Pro Forma
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Thank you.




